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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF
THE SAFE HARBOR PROVISIONS OF

THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

WHEN USED IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K, THE WORDS BELIEVES, ANTICIPATES, EXPECTS AND SIMILAR
EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. STATEMENTS LOOKING FORWARD IN
TIME ARE INCLUDED IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K PURSUANT TO THE SAFE HARBOR PROVISION OF THE
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995. SUCH STATEMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES WHICH COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
THOSE SET FORTH IN MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. READERS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE HEREOF.
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PART I

Item 1. Business.

General

We are CharterMac, a Delaware statutory trust, which commenced operations in October 1997. We and our subsidiaries are in the
business of (i) portfolio investing, which includes acquiring and holding (directly and indirectly through our
subsidiaries) federally tax-exempt multi-family housing revenue bonds issued by various state or local governments,
agencies or authorities and other investments designed to produce federally tax-exempt income; (ii) mortgage
banking, which includes originating and servicing mortgage loans on behalf of third parties such as the Federal
National Mortgage Association ( Fannie Mae ), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ( Freddie Mac ), the
Government National Mortgage Association ( Ginnie Mae ) and the Federal Housing Authority ( FHA ); (iii) credit
enhancement, which includes guaranteeing tax credit equity returns and mortgage loans; and (iv) fund management,
which includes sponsoring investment programs for a fee.

We and a majority of our subsidiaries, are each either treated as partnerships or disregarded for federal income tax purposes. Therefore, we pass
through to our shareholders, in the form of distributions, income (including federally tax-exempt income) derived from our investments without
paying federal income tax on that income.

Corporate Strategy

We are one of the nation s leading full-service multi-family finance companies. We focus on providing both capital solutions to developers and
owners of multi-family rental housing throughout the country, as well as quality investment products to institutional and retail investors.
Collectively, we and our subsidiaries offer financing for every part of a multi-family property s capital structure.

Significant Subsidiaries

CharterMac Equity Issuer Trust

In 1999, we created CharterMac Equity Issuer Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary, ( Equity Issuer ) which holds a substantial portion of our revenue
bonds. From time to time, Equity Issuer may issue Cumulative Preferred Shares ( Preferred Shares ) to institutional investors. The Preferred
Shares have a senior claim to the tax-exempt income derived from the investments owned by Equity Issuer. Any income in Equity Issuer after

the payment of the cumulative distributions on its Preferred Shares, and after the fulfillment of certain covenants, may then be distributed to
CharterMac. The assets of Equity Issuer, while included in our consolidated financial statements, are legally owned by Equity Issuer. We

conduct most of our portfolio investing through Equity Issuer.
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CharterMac Corporation

In July 2001, we formed CharterMac Corporation ( CM Corp. ) as a wholly owned, consolidated taxable subsidiary to help us more efficiently
manage our taxable businesses. CM Corp. and its subsidiaries conduct most of our taxable business, including many of the fee-generating
activities in which we may engage. CM Corp. isolates a substantial portion of the taxable income and expenses of our Company. Unlike our
Company, CM Corp. is a corporation which is subject to both Federal and State income tax. Any distributions of net income from CM Corp. to
us are taxable and are passed through to our shareholders in its dividend. We conduct our credit enhancement business through CM Corp.

PW Funding Inc.

In December 2001, we acquired, through CM Corp., 80% of the outstanding capital stock of PW Funding, Inc. and its subsidiaries ( PWF ).
Under the acquisition agreement, the stockholders of PWF were granted the right to put their remaining 20% stock interest to CM Corp. after an
initial period of 24 to 36 months. The agreement also grants CM Corp. the right to call the remaining 20% stock interest of PWF from PWF s
stockholders after the same initial period of 24 to 36 months. Subsequent to the initial purchase of PWF stock, we have purchased additional
shares pursuant to individual employee stock purchase agreements. As of December 31, 2003, we own approximately 87% of the outstanding
shares of PWF. We conduct our mortgage banking activities through PWF.

Related Capital Company

On November 17, 2003, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests in and substantially all of the businesses operated by Related Capital
Company ( Related ) (other than specific excluded interests). The acquisition was structured so that the selling principals of Related contributed
their ownership interests in Related to CharterMac Capital Company, LLC, a newly formed subsidiary of CM Corp. which we refer to as CCC ,
in exchange for 15,854,505 special common units in CCC. The special common units ( SCUs ) are exchangeable for cash or, at our option,
common shares on a one-for-one basis. All of the selling principals were also issued one special preferred voting share of our Company for each
special common unit they received. The special preferred voting shares have no economic interest, but entitle the holder to one vote per special
preferred voting share on all matters subject to a vote of the holders of our common shares. One of the selling principals also received $50
million in cash. The selling principals of Related included its four executive managing partners (Stuart J. Boesky, Alan P. Hirmes, Marc D.
Schnitzer and Denise L. Kiley), all of whom are members of our board of trustees, a former principal of Related, and an affiliate of The Related
Companies, L.P., a New York limited partnership ( TRCLP ) with a majority of its equity controlled by Stephen M. Ross, who is also the
non-executive Chairman of our board of trustees. As a result of the acquisition, the economic interest in our Company of (i) TRCLP equals
approximately 15.4% and (ii) our management and employees equals approximately 7.1%. We conduct our fund management business through
Related.
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Governance

We are governed by a board of trustees comprised of fifteen managing trustees, eight of whom are independent. As a result of our acquisition of
Related, we are now internally managed. Since most of our employees work directly for Related, we and our subsidiaries have entered into
management and/or servicing agreements with Related.

Committees of the Board of Trustees

Our board of trustees has six committees: (1) Audit; (2) Compensation, (3) Nominating/Governance; (4) Investment; (5) Capital Markets; and
(6) Conflicts.

Business Plan

We and our subsidiaries are in the business of (i) portfolio investing, (ii) mortgage banking (iii) credit enhancement and (iv) fund management.

Portfolio Investing

We conduct most of our portfolio investing through Equity Issuer. Portfolio investing includes the acquisition and ownership (directly and
indirectly through our subsidiaries) of federally tax-exempt multi-family housing revenue bonds issued by various state or local governments,
agencies or authorities and other investments designed to produce federally tax-exempt income. The proceeds of the revenue bonds are used to
make mortgage loans for the construction, rehabilitation, acquisition or refinancing of affordable multi-family housing properties throughout the
United States. While Equity Issuer currently holds a small amount of participating revenue bonds, we do not expect to acquire a significant
amount of participating revenue bonds in the future. Equity Issuer holds a portion of our revenue bond and loan investments directly, however,

to facilitate securitization and financing of our investments, a substantial portion of our investments are held indirectly through the subsidiaries

of Equity Issuer. Accordingly, our common shareholders and our Convertible Community Reinvestment Act Preferred ( Convertible CRA
Shares ) shareholders interests in the cash flow from investments held by Equity Issuer and our other subsidiaries are subordinate to the rights of
the debt holders, preferred shareholders and senior interest holders of Equity Issuer and its subsidiaries.

We believe we have a competitive advantage in our portfolio investing due to our Direct Purchase Program . The traditional methods of
financing affordable multi-family housing with tax-exempt bonds are complex and time consuming and involve the participation of many
intermediaries. Through our Direct Purchase Program , we have streamlined the process by removing all intermediaries (except for the
governmental issuer of the revenue bond) and enabling the developer to deal directly with one source. Because we purchase our revenue bonds
directly from the governmental issuer, our program eliminates the need for underwriters and their counsel, rating agencies and costly
documentation. This reduces the financing life cycle, often by several months, and also reduces the bond issuance costs, usually by 30% or
more. In dealing directly with us, developers feel more confident about the terms and timing of their financing.
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The various loan documents that are negotiated, executed and delivered upon the issuance of the revenue bonds define our rights and the specific
terms of those revenue bonds. All of the properties, which secure our revenue bonds ( Underlying Properties ), are qualified residential rental
properties under Section 142(d) of the Code (or a predecessor provision), which requires that a specified percentage of rental units of these
properties be rented to individuals or families whose incomes do not exceed certain area median income levels. Accordingly, our revenue bonds
are qualified bonds within the meaning of Section 141(e) of the Code and, based upon the opinions of bond counsel or special tax counsel
rendered at the time of initial issuance or re-issuance of each issue of revenue bonds, interest paid on our revenue bonds is excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. In addition to investing in tax-exempt revenue bonds secured by affordable multi-family housing
properties, we may acquire other tax-exempt bonds including those issued to finance affordable multi-family properties and facilities for the
elderly owned by Section 501(c)(3) not-for-profit organizations.

As of December 31, 2003, our revenue bond portfolio included direct or indirect interests in revenue bonds with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately $1.9 billion, secured by affordable multi-family properties containing 40,556 units located in 24 states and the District of
Columbia.

Mortgage Banking

We conduct our mortgage-banking activity through PWF. PWF is a full service, direct mortgage banking firm specializing in originating,
underwriting, and servicing mortgage loans for conventional apartment properties, affordable housing, senior s housing, and commercial
properties nationwide. In addition to conventional financing, PWF provides forward commitments on tax credit and market rate multi-family
properties, and arranges tax-exempt bond credit enhancements. During 2003, PWF originated approximately $604.8 million of loans on behalf
of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, and FHA. At December 31, 2003, PWF services a portfolio of approximately $4.1 billion.

PWF is one of 26 approved Fannie Mae Delegated Underwriters and Services ( DUS ). DUS is Fannie Mae s principal multi-family loan
program. Fannie Mae delegates the responsibility for originating, underwriting, closing and delivering multi-family mortgages to the DUS
lenders and the DUS lenders share the risk of loss with Fannie Mae and service the loans for a fee. PWF also (i) closes and delivers multi-family
mortgages to Freddie Mac as a Freddie Mac Program Plus Seller/Servicer (ii) is a leading commercial loan correspondent for Wall Street
conduits and life insurance companies; and (iii) is an approved loan processor/servicer for the Federal Housing Authority.
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Credit Enhancement

We conduct our credit enhancement activities through CM Corp., which includes guaranteeing mortgage loans and tax credit equity
specified returns to investors in tax credit equity funds in exchange for fees.

Fund Management

We conduct our fund management business through Related, which offers the following financial products and services:

sponsoring real estate equity investment programs that acquire interests in and finance affordable multi-family
housing on behalf of third-party investors;

acting as manager or advisor to us and certain of our subsidiaries, and American Mortgage Acceptance
Company ( AMAC ), a publicly-traded real estate investment trust that originates and acquires taxable, construction,

permanent, bridge, mezzanine and participating mortgage debt for multi-family housing;

providing real estate underwriting, asset management, construction and permanent loan servicing, capital
markets and advisory services to us and these investment programs; and

arranging and structuring credit enhancement transactions to guarantee the delivery of tax benefits to
institutional investors.

Related generates cash flow predominately from acquisition and partnership management fees in connection with the capital raising and
sponsorship of investment programs; investment fees associated with acquisition and disposition activity of each investment program; and asset
management and advisory fees associated with on-going administration of each investment program.

Business Segments

We have three reportable business segments which include portfolio investing, mortgage banking, and fund management.

The portfolio investing segment primarily consists of subsidiaries holding investments in revenue bonds producing primarily tax-exempt interest
income and includes our credit enhancement activities.
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The mortgage banking segment consists of subsidiaries which originate mortgages on behalf of third parties and receive mortgage origination
and mortgage servicing fees generated by those activities.

The fund management segment consists of subsidiaries that generate fee income from the asset management, underwriting, originating and other
services provided to the real estate equity investment programs Related sponsors, and the management and related services provided to us and a
publicly-traded real estate investment trust.

Segment results include all direct and contractual revenues and expenses of each segment and allocations of indirect expenses based on specific
methodologies. These reportable segments are strategic business units that primarily generate revenue streams that are distinctly different and
are generally managed separately.

The following table provides summary information regarding our segments:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Portfolio Mortgage Fund Portfolio Mortgage
(Dollars in thousands) Investing Banking Management Total Investing Banking Total
Total revenues $ 120,775  $ 17,690 $ 13,745  $ 152,210 $ 98,208 $ 18,205 $ 116,413
Net income (loss) $ 72,168 $ (329) $ (5,253) $ 66,586 $ 58,352 $ 2481 $ 60,833
Total Assets $ 2,102,755 $ 90,094 $ 390425 $ 2,583,274 $ 1,729,194 $ 123,674 $ 1,858,668

Raising Capital

A major aspect of our business plan includes the acquisition of additional revenue bonds, which requires capital. We have primarily used three
sources of capital, either directly or through our subsidiaries: (i) loan securitizations, (ii) commercial bank borrowings and (iii) equity offerings.

Securitizations

Historically, we have used two primary floating rate securitization programs: our Private Label Tender Option Program ( TOP ) and the
P-FLOATSsSM/RITESSM (' P-FLOAT ) program. During 2003, we added a fixed rate securitization and an auction rate securitization.
Securitizations continue to offer the lowest cost of capital, albeit with certain covenants and leverage limits. Pursuant to our trust agreement, we
are only able to incur leverage or other financing up to 50% of our total market value; this leverage restriction is generally consistent with or
more conservative than leverage covenants on our securitized debt. With respect to these securitization programs, we are obligated to pay
interest at short-term floating rates and retain an inverse floating rate residual interest in revenue bonds carrying a fixed rate of interest.

MBIA Securitization Programs
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MBIA is a financial insurer, which has entered into a surety commitment with our Company and certain of its subsidiaries whereby MBIA has
agreed to credit enhance certain pools of bonds in exchange for certain fees. We currently use two different structures in our dealings with

MBIA,; the Floater Certificate structure and the Auction Certificate structure. Under each structure, we contribute revenue bonds to CharterMac
Origination Trust I ( Origination Trust ), a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of our Company. Origination Trust then contributes certain of these
revenue bonds to CharterMac Owner Trust I ( Owner Trust ) and others to CharterMac Auction Rate Trust I ( ARCS1 ), which are controlled by
us. Owner Trust and ARCSI1 contribute selected bonds to specific Series Trusts. As of December 31, 2003, seven such Series Trusts existed.
Six of these series trusts reside beneath Owner Trust including two California only series and four National (non-state specific) series. This is

our Floater Certificate structure. One series trust resides beneath ARCS1, which is our Auction Certificate structure.

10
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Each Series Trust, issues two equity certificates: (i) a Senior Certificate which has been deposited into a Certificate Trust which issues and sells
Floater Certificates or Auction Certificates representing proportional interests in the Senior Certificate to new investors and (ii) a Residual
Certificate, issued to Origination Trust which represents the remaining beneficial ownership interest in each Series Trust.

As of December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of capital that could be raised under our MBIA securitizations programs was $650 million,
including $425 million in Floater Certificates under Owner Trust and $225 million in Auction Certificates under ARCS1. In addition, the surety
commitment by MBIA was recently extended for eight years, through October 1, 2011. As of December 31, 2003, our total outstanding under
our MBIA programs was $483.5 million, including $383.5 million in Floater Certificates and $100.0 million in Auction Certificates.

The surety commitment by MBIA can be used to enhance certificates sold under low floater and auction rate programs. The low floater program
requires the existence of liquidity due to the put option available to the buyers of the low floater certificates. The liquidity is currently supplied
by a consortium of highly-rated banks. The liquidity commitments are one-year renewable contracts. We expect to renew or replace such
commitments upon expiration of their terms. The auction rate program does not require liquidity as the buyers of those securities do not have
the option to put their certificates back to the seller.

The effect of our MBIA securitizations is that a portion of the interest received on the revenue bonds in Owner Trust and ARCS] is distributed
through the Senior Certificate to the holders of the Floater or Auction Rate Certificates with any remaining interest remitted to Origination Trust
(and thus to our benefit) via the Residual Certificate. The revenue bonds remaining in Origination Trust (aggregate principal amount of
approximately $160 million) are an additional collateral pool for Owner Trust s obligations. In addition, five taxable revenue bonds totaling
$10.8 million in principal outstanding, have been contributed as additional collateral for this program.

Our floating rate cost of funds relating to our MBIA securitizations (calculated as interest expense plus recurring fees as a percentage of the
weighted average amount of the outstanding Senior Certificates) was approximately 2.2%, 2.4% and 3.5% for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

P-FLOATs

Another source of financing for our investments is the securitization of selected revenue bonds through the Merrill Lynch
P-FLOATSSM/RITESSM program. Merrill Lynch typically deposits individual revenue bonds purchased from us into a special purpose trust
together with a credit enhancement guarantee. A credit enhanced custodial receipt is issued and deposited into a second trust which issues two
types of securities: (1) P-FLOATS, a short-term senior security which bears interest at a floating rate that is determined weekly by Merrill Lynch
as the lowest rate possible that will clear the market at par, and (2) Residual Interest Tax-Exempt Securities ( RITESM ), a subordinate security
which receives the remainder of the interest on the revenue bond after payment of interest on the P-FLOATS and ongoing transaction fees. The
P-FLOATS are sold to third-party investors and the RITESSM are generally sold back to us. We have the right, upon at least 14 days notice to the
trustee, to purchase the outstanding P-FLOATsM issued by the special purpose trust and to withdraw the revenue bond from such trust. When
the revenue bonds are deposited into the trust, we receive the proceeds from the sale of the P-FLOATsM less certain transaction costs. In
certain cases, Merrill Lynch may directly buy the revenue bonds from local issuers, deposit them in the trust, sell the P-FLOATSM security to
third-party investors and then sell the RITESSM to us. As of December 31, 2003, revenue bonds, with an aggregate outstanding bond amount of
approximately $316.5 million, have been securitized by Merrill Lynch under the P-FLOATsSM/RITESSM program. In order to facilitate the
securitization under the P-FLOATsSM/RITESSM program, we have, as of December 31, 2003, pledged additional revenue bonds as collateral for
the benefit of the credit enhancer with an aggregate outstanding bond amount of approximately $168.9 million. For financial reporting purposes,
due to our right to repurchase the revenue bonds, we account for the net proceeds received upon transfer of our revenue bonds through the
P-FLOATSSM/RITESSM program as secured borrowings (which is reflected on our consolidated balance sheet as a liability) and, accordingly,

11



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

continue to account for our revenue bonds as assets.

Fixed Rate Securitization

On April 1, 2003, Equity Issuer completed a $100 million revenue bond securitization financing through the sale of Tax-Exempt Multi-family
Housing Trust Certificates Series 2003A. Equity Issuer placed revenue bonds, totaling $196.8 million in aggregate principal amount, into a trust
from which $100 million in Class A Certificates were sold to various institutional investors. The Class A Certificates bear interest at the fixed
rate of 3.25% per annum to, but not including March 15, 2005, on which date the Class A Certificates are subject to mandatory tender for
purchase. Merrill Lynch acted as placement agent. A wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of Equity Issuer was issued the
subordinated Class B Certificates totaling approximately $96.8 million. Equity Issuer has agreed that one of its
affiliates will hold the Class B Certificates throughout the duration of this transaction. For financial reporting
purposes, due to our obligation to repurchase the revenue bonds, we have accounted for the net proceeds received
upon sale of the class A certificate as secured borrowings (which is reflected on our consolidated balance sheet as a
liability) and accordingly, combine to account for our revenue bonds as assets.

Commercial Bank Borrowings

On March 31, 2003, Equity Issuer entered into a $75 million secured revolving credit facility with Fleet Bank and Wachovia Bank. Through this
facility, Equity Issuer can pledge certain of its revenue bonds as security for amounts borrowed under this credit facility from time to time. The
outstanding borrowings can be repaid at any time without penalty. Equity Issuer pays a floating rate of interest on borrowings outstanding on a
quarterly basis equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate ( LIBOR ) plus 1.50% or prime plus 0.25%. At December 31, 2003, revenue bonds
pledged under the facility had an aggregate principal amount of approximately $37.3 million. Equity Issuer had approximately $21.7 million
outstanding under the facility as of December 31, 2003.

12
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On November 17, 2003, CM Corp. entered into $50 million and $10 million acquisition bridge loan facilities with Wachovia Bank in order to
fund the cash portion, fees and expenses of our acquisition of Related. These bridge loan facilities have a nine-month term with two 90-day
extension options. We have pledged our common ownership interest in Equity Issuer as security under these facilities. The facilities are
pre-payable at any time and bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.5% and 2.4%, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, CM Corp. had borrowed the
full $60 million available under these two facilities.

Similarly, in 2001, CM Corp. entered into a loan agreement with Fleet Bank to provide the funds used to purchase the 80% interest in PWF.
This loan has a term of five years with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. The loan was interest only for the first 12 months. In January
2003, we began making quarterly straight-line principal payments based on the initial amount borrowed on a ten-year amortization schedule.

PWF has a $100 million secured, revolving mortgage warehouse facility, subject to annual renewal. The interest rate for each advance under
this facility is the fed funds rate plus 1.25%, which at December 31, 2003 was 2.24% At December 31, 2003 we had approximately $21.9
million outstanding under this facility.

On November 17, 2003, Related entered into a warehouse facility in the amount of $85 million, with Fleet National Bank, Merrill Lynch, CDC
and Citicorp USA. The facility has a maturity date of October 29, 2004 and bears interest, at Related s option, at either LIBOR plus 2.00% or the
prime rate plus 1/8%. At December 31, 2003, there was an outstanding balance of $24.5 million with a weighted average interest rate of 3.73%.

Interest Rate Hedging

We currently manage a portion of our interest rate risk through the use of The Bond Market Association ( TBMA ) indexed interest rate swaps.
Under each interest rate swap agreement, for a specified period of time we are required to pay a fixed rate of interest on a specified notional
amount to the transaction counterparty and we receive a floating rate of interest equivalent to the TBMA index, which is the most widely used
tax-exempt floating rate index. As of December 31, 2003, we have entered into two such swaps with MLCS as counterparty: the first has a
notional amount of $50 million fixed at an annual rate of 3.98%, which expires in January 2006. The second has a notional amount of $100
million fixed at an annual rate of 3.64%, which expired in February 2004. We have also entered into two interest rate swaps with Fleet Bank as
the counterparty. One has a notional amount of $100 million fixed at an annual rate of 2.56% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in
December 2007. The other swap with Fleet has a notional amount of $50 million and fixed rates of 2.00%, 2.78%, and 3.27% for the twelve
months beginning January 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

The receipt of payments pursuant to these or other swaps would constitute taxable, rather than tax-exempt income. Related analyzes the interest
rate environment and the costs and risks of such strategies on an ongoing basis and upon expiration of these swaps, will evaluate whether we
should enter into replacement swaps. A possible risk of such swap agreements is the possible inability to meet the terms of the contracts with us;
however, there is no current indication of such an inability.

Our Outstanding Equity

Common Equity Issuances

13
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As of December 31, 2003, we have raised net proceeds of over $259.7 million through public offerings of our common shares.

Preferred Equity Issuances

As of December 31, 2003, we have completed public and private offerings of our Series A Convertible and our Convertible CRA Shares
(collectively Convertible CRA Shares ) raising net proceeds of approximately $160.7 million.

Special Preferred Voting Shares

In connection with our acquisition of Related, each holder of SCUs also acquired one special preferred voting share (at $.01 per share) for each
special common unit received. The special preferred voting shares have no economic interest, but entitle the holder to vote, on a one-for-one
basis, on all matters subject to a vote of the holders of our common shares. We have the right to require that each special preferred voting share
be redeemed (for $.01 per share) and cancelled simultaneously upon the exchange of a special common unit by the holder thereof into cash or
our common shares. Other than the payment of $.01 per share upon redemption of the special preferred voting shares or the liquidation of our
Company, the special preferred voting shares are not entitled to any distributions or other economic rights. The selling principals of Related
entered into a voting agreement which governs the voting of all of their special preferred voting shares, common shares, issuable upon exchange
of their SCUs and any other common shares currently owned or which may be acquired by them in the future. The voting agreement provides
that the selling principals of Related will (a) vote on any matter requiring a vote of our common shareholders not more than 90% of the voting
power represented by the special preferred voting shares (and any common shares to be issued in exchange for the SCUs) until November 17,
2005; (b) vote their common shares or special preferred voting shares in favor of the election of any independent trustee approved by our board
of trustees or in the same proportion as the unaffiliated holders of our common shares vote in such election, and (c) not exercise any right as
shareholder of our Company to nominate any independent trustee. With the exception of Mr. Ross, the voting agreement will terminate for each
of the remaining selling principals at the time he or she is no longer an employee, officer, or trustee of our Company. The voting agreement
with respect to Mr. Ross will remain in effect as long as he owns any of our special preferred voting shares or common shares.
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Preferred Equity Issuances by Subsidiary

One of our subsidiaries, Equity Issuer, has issued preferred shares to institutional investors with an aggregate liquidation amount of
approximately $273.5 million. Attributes of each series of Cumulative Preferred Shares are as follows:

Liquidation

Preferred Date of Mandatory Mandatory Number of Preference per Total Face Dividend
Series Issuance Tender Repurchase Shares Share Amount Rate

Series A 06/29/99 06/30/09 06/30/49 45 $ 2,000,000 $ 90,000,000 6.625%
Series A-1 07/21/00 06/30/09 06/30/49 48 500,000 24,000,000 7.100%
Series A-2 10/09/01 06/30/09 06/30/49 62 500,000 31,000,000 6.300%
Series A-3 06/04/02 10/31/14 10/31/52 60 500,000 30,000,000 6.800%
Series B 07/21/00 11/30/10 11/30/50 110 500,000 55,000,000 7.600%
Series B-1 10/09/01 11/30/10 11/30/50 37 500,000 18,500,000 6.800%
Series B-2 06/04/02 10/31/14 10/31/52 50 500,000 25,000,000 7.200%

We collectively refer to the Series A Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series A-1 Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series A-2 Cumulative Preferred
Shares and Series A-3 Cumulative Preferred Shares as the Series A Shares. We collectively refer to the Series B Subordinate Cumulative
Preferred Shares, Series B-1 Subordinate Cumulative Preferred Shares and Series B-2 Subordinate Cumulative Preferred Shares as the Series B
Shares. We also collectively refer to the Series A Shares and the Series B Shares as the Preferred Shares.

The Preferred Shares are not convertible into common shares of Equity Issuer or our common shares. The Preferred Shares have an annual
preferred dividend payable quarterly in arrears on January 31, April 30, July 31 and October 31 of each year, but only upon declaration thereof

by Equity Issuer s board of trustees and only to the extent of Equity Issuer s tax-exempt income (net of expenses) for the particular quarter. Since
inception, all quarterly distributions have been declared at the stated annualized dividend rate for each respective series.

The Series A Shares all have identical terms except as to the distribution commencement date, the annual preferred dividend rate, the
remarketing date, the mandatory repurchase date and the liquidation amount per share. Equity Issuer may not redeem the Series A, A-1 and A-2
preferred shares before June 30, 2009 and they are subject to mandatory tender for remarketing and purchase on such date and each remarketing
date thereafter at a price equal to their respective per share liquidation amounts plus an amount equal to all distributions accrued but unpaid on
the Series A, A-1 and A-2 preferred shares. Equity Issuer may not redeem the Series A-3 preferred shares before October 31, 2014 and they are
subject to mandatory tender for remarketing and purchase on such date and each remarketing date thereafter at a price equal to its per share
liquidation amount plus an amount equal to all distributions accrued but unpaid on the Series A-3 preferred shares. Holders of the Series A
Shares may elect to retain their shares upon remarketing, with a distribution rate to be determined immediately prior to the remarketing date by
the remarketing agent. After the initial remarketing dates, all or a portion of the shares may be redeemed, subject to certain conditions. Each
holder of the Series A, Series A-1 and Series A-2 preferred shares, and each holder of the Series A-3 preferred shares, will be required to tender
its shares to Equity Issuer for mandatory repurchase on June 30, 2049 and October 31, 2052, respectively, unless Equity Issuer decides to
remarket the shares on such dates.

The Series A Shares rank, with respect to payment of distributions and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Equity Issuer,
senior to the Series B Shares and all classes or series of common shares of Equity Issuer and, therefore, effectively rank senior to our common
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shares, our Convertible CRA Shares, and our preferred shares, if any.

The Series B Shares all have identical terms, except as to the distribution commencement date, the annual preferred dividend rate, the
remarketing date and the mandatory repurchase date. Equity Issuer may not redeem the Series B and Series B-1 preferred shares before
November 30, 2010 and they are subject to mandatory tender for remarketing and purchase on such date and each remarketing date thereafter at
a price equal to their per share liquidation amount plus an amount equal to all distributions accrued but unpaid on the Series B and Series B-1
preferred shares. Equity Issuer may not redeem the Series B-2 preferred shares before October 31, 2014, and they are subject to mandatory
tender for remarketing and purchase on such date and each remarketing date thereafter at a price equal to its per share liquidation amount plus an
amount equal to all distributions accrued but unpaid on the Series B-2 preferred shares. Holders of the Series B Shares may elect to retain their
shares upon remarketing, with a distribution rate to be determined immediately prior to the remarketing date by the remarketing agent. After the
initial remarketing dates, all or a portion of the shares may be redeemed, subject to certain conditions. Each holder of the Series B and Series
B-1 preferred shares and each holder of the Series B-2 preferred shares will be required to tender its shares to Equity Issuer for mandatory
repurchase on November 30, 2050 and October 31, 2052, respectively, unless Equity Issuer decides to remarket the shares on such dates.

The Series B Shares rank, with respect to payment of distributions and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Equity Issuer,
senior to all classes or series of common shares of Equity Issuer and, therefore, effectively rank senior to our common shares, our Series A
Convertible CRA Shares, our Convertible CRA Shares and our preferred shares, if any, and junior to the Series A Shares.
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Equity Issuer is subject to, among others, the following covenants with respect to the Preferred Shares:

Tax-Exempt Interest and Distribution

Equity Issuer may only acquire new investments that it reasonably believes will generate interest and distributions excludable from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. Equity Issuer will dispose of any investment the interest on which becomes includable in gross income for
federal income tax purposes, for any reason, as soon as commercially practicable.

Leverage

Equity Issuer will not, and will not permit any of its subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, incur any obligation except if (i) Equity Issuer is not in
default under its trust agreement, (ii) Equity Issuer has paid or declared and set aside for payment all accrued and unpaid distributions on the
Cumulative Preferred Shares, and (iii) after giving effect to the incurrence of the obligation, the leverage ratio on the portfolio is less than 0.6 to
1.0.

Failure to pay distributions

If Equity Issuer has not paid in full six consecutive quarterly distributions on the Preferred Shares, Equity Issuer is required to reconstitute its
board of trustees so that a majority of the board of trustees consists of trustees who are independent with respect to Equity Issuer, us or Related.

Allocation of Taxable Interest Income and Market Discount

Equity Issuer will specially allocate taxable interest income and market discount that is taxable as ordinary income to us. Market discount, if
any, may arise where Equity Issuer acquires a bond other than upon its original issuance for less than its stated redemption price at maturity and
the difference is greater than a de minimis amount (generally % of 1% of a bond s stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number
of complete years to maturity).

Special Common Unit Issuance by Subsidiary

In connection with our acquisition of Related, CCC issued membership interests in the form of special common units ( SCUs ). Holders of SCUs,
which amount to 16,071,785 units, are entitled to distributions at the same time as, and only if, distributions are paid on our common shares.
However, unlike distributions payable to holders of our common shares, which consist of substantially tax-exempt income, distributions payable

to holders of the SCUs will consist of taxable income. In order to take into account the difference in tax treatment and enable holders of the
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SCUs to receive an equivalent after-tax return on distributions as holders of our common shares receive on their distributions, the amount of the
special common unitholders initial distribution was set to equal our per share distribution, annualized as of the closing date of our acquisition of
Related, divided by 0.72. Subsequent distributions to the holders of SCUs will be increased (or decreased) proportionately with increases (or
decreases) in distributions paid to holders of our common shares. To the extent that, in any year, CCC does not have sufficient cash flow to pay
the entire distribution due on the SCUs, we have agreed to contribute or to lend to CCC all but $5 million of these distributions. The remaining
shortfall, if any, will earn interest at a market rate and will only be payable at the time CCC has sufficient cash flow. Each holder of SCUs has
the right, upon expiration of any lock-up period, to (a) exchange all or a portion of their SCUs for cash and (b) receive cash in an amount equal
to any accrued but unpaid distributions with respect to the SCUs being exchanged (not including accrued and unpaid distributions for the
quarterly period in which the exchange occurs). In lieu of cash, we may, at our discretion, exchange such SCUs (and any accrued but unpaid
distributions) for common shares on a one-for-one basis, subject to anti-dilution adjustments. The common shares will be issued at a price equal
to the average closing market price of our common shares for the five consecutive trading days prior to the date upon which CCC and CM Corp.
receive notice of conversion.

Competition

We, from time to time, may be in competition with private investors, regional investment banks, mortgage banking companies, lending
institutions, quasi-governmental agencies such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, trust funds, mutual funds, domestic and foreign credit
enhancers, bond insurers, investment partnerships and other entities with objectives similar to ours. Although we operate in a competitive
environment, competitors focused on providing tax-exempt financing on multi-family housing consistent with our custom-designed programs
are relatively few.

Our business is also affected by competition to the extent that the properties which secure our revenue bonds from which we derive interest and,
ultimately, principal payments may be subject to competition relating to rental rates and relative levels of amenities from those offered by
comparable neighboring properties.

In addition, through PWF, we are also in competition with 25 other licensed DUS lenders which originate multi-family mortgages on behalf of
Fannie Mae. However, PWF through its affiliation with us, is better positioned to offer a full range of financing programs on both affordable

and market-rate multi-family housing. PWF s origination groups are able to cross market our Company s tax-exempt revenue bonds and Related s
Low Income Tax Credit equity with our loan products, thereby offering developers a single, streamlined execution.

Our affiliates have formed, and may continue to form, various entities to engage in businesses that may be competitive with us. At this time,
there is no other such business that has a tax-exempt execution.
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Employees

We and our subsidiaries have entered into separate management agreements with Related pursuant to which Related provides each respective
entity with investment advice, portfolio management, and all other services vital to such entity s operations.

Prior to the acquisition of PWF in December 2001, we had no employees. PWF, which is a subsidiary of CM Corp., operates as a stand-alone
entity and is actively self-managed with 75 employees. We also added approximately 175 employees with the acquisition of Related. Thus on a
consolidated basis through our subsidiaries, we had approximately 250 employees as of December 31, 2003. These employees are not a party to
any collective bargaining agreement.

Regulatory Matters

Investment Company Act

Neither we nor our subsidiaries are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the Investment Company Act ). We
would not be able to conduct our activities as we currently do if we were required to register.

We at all times intend to conduct our activities and the activities of our subsidiaries, so as not to become regulated as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act. While we are not an investment company , if one of our subsidiaries were deemed to be an investment
company, we could also be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act. There are a number of exemptions from registration under
the Investment Company Act that we believe apply to us and our subsidiaries, and, therefore, which we believe exempts us from the requirement
to register under the Investment Company Act.

Internal Revenue Service

With regard to our revenue bond investing and Related s sponsorship of investment programs that generate Low Income Housing Tax Credits

( LIHTCs ), we operate in a regulatory environment that is governed primarily by two sections of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ( the Code )
relating to affordable housing. The first is Section 142(d) of the Code, which governs the issuance of federally tax-exempt revenue bonds for
affordable multi-family housing to be owned by private, for-profit developers and the second is Section 42 of the Code, which authorizes federal
LIHTCs for qualifying affordable housing properties.

Tax-exempt financing
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Section 142(d) of the Code provides for the issuance of federally tax-exempt revenue bonds, the proceeds of which will be loaned to private
developers for the new construction or acquisition and rehabilitation of multi-family rental housing. Under the Code, in order to qualify for
federally tax-exempt financing, certain ongoing requirements must be complied with on a continuous basis. The principal requirement is that the
property be operated as a rental property and that during the Qualified Project Period (defined below) at least either (i) 20% of the units must be
rented to individuals or families whose income is less than 50% of the area median gross income, or (ii) 40% of the units must be rented to
individuals or families whose income is less than 60% of the area median gross income, in each case with adjustments for family size. The
Qualified Project Period begins when 10% of the units in the property are first occupied and ends on the latest of the date: (i) which is 15 years
after 50% of the units are occupied, (ii) on which all the bonds have been retired, or (iii) on which any assistance provided under Section 8 of the
U.S. Housing Act of 1937 terminates. If these requirements are not complied with on a continual basis interest on the revenue bonds could be
determined to be includable in gross income, retroactively to the date such bonds were issued. There is no statutory or regulatory limit on the
amount of rent that may be charged. The availability of federally tax-exempt financing for affordable multi-family housing to be owned by
private, for-profit developers in each state is limited by an annual volume cap contained in Section 146 of the Code. At the end of 2000
Congress enacted legislation which, for the first time, increased the volume cap. The volume cap increased by 25% in both 2001 and 2002 and
thereafter has been, and will continue to be, indexed for inflation. Bonds issued for affordable multi-family housing properties must compete
with all other types of private activity bonds (other than private activity bonds issued for qualifying Section 501(c)(3) organizations) for an
allocation of a state s available volume cap. Non-profit organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code whose charitable purpose is to
provide low income housing may also avail themselves of federally tax-exempt financing to construct or acquire and rehabilitate affordable
multi-family housing properties. Revenue bonds for such charities are governed by Section 145 of the Code and may be issued without regard to
the statewide volume cap that applies to for-profit developers. Under Section 145 of the Code at least 95% of the proceeds of the bond issue
must be used in a manner that furthers the charitable purpose of the Section 501(c)(3) organization, or a related purpose. In Revenue Procedure
96-32 the IRS promulgated a non-exclusive safe harbor for Section 501(c)(3) organizations whose charitable purpose is to provide affordable
housing: if either the 20/50 or 40/60 tests described above are met and, in addition, at least 75% of all units are rented to families whose income
does not exceed 80% of area median gross income (adjusted for family size) and the Section 501(c)(3) organization charges tenants affordable
rents , the proceeds of a revenue bond issue will be treated as being used to further the Section 501(c)(3) organization s charitable purpose.

Federal LIHTCs

Section 42 of the Code authorizes federal LIHTCs for affordable multi-family rental housing. Under this program, developers receive an
allocation of federal LIHTCs from an agency designated by each state government. There are two types of credits, 4% credits and 9% credits.
Developers that receive an allocation of volume cap for revenue bonds are also entitled automatically to receive an allocation of federal LIHTCs,
which are the 4% credits. Properties financed using 9% credits must receive an allocation for such credits from the appropriate state agency.
Both the 4% credits and the 9% credits provide the owner of an affordable multi-family housing property that has received a federal LIHTC
allocation with a dollar for dollar credit against federal income taxes. The credit is taken over a period of 10 years, which can span over an 11
year operating period. The credit amount is based on the qualified basis of each building and the number of units set aside for low income
tenants. Purchasers
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of federal LIHTCs are usually Fortune 500 corporations that have projected long-term positive tax positions. These purchasers generally
become limited partners in the developer/owner of the affordable housing property and pay the present value of the projected credits in the form
of an up-front equity contribution to the developer. In the case of properties utilizing 4% credits, this payment will usually provide between
25% and 35% of the costs of the development. For properties utilizing 9% credits, this payment will usually provide between 45% and 55% of
the cost of the development.

In order to qualify for the federal LIHTC the property must comply with either of the 20/50 or 40/60 tests that apply to tax-exempt bonds.
However, in addition, the amount of rent that may be charged to qualifying low income tenants cannot exceed 30% of the imputed income for
each unit, as determined pursuant to Section 42(g) of the Code. Failure to comply continuously with these requirements could result in a
recapture of the federal LIHTCs. In addition, in the event that the rents from the property generate insufficient revenue to pay debt service on
the revenue bonds and a default ensues, the initial borrower could lose ownership of the project as the result of foreclosure of the mortgage
securing the bonds. In such event, the initial equity investors would no longer be entitled to the federal LIHTCs which would inure to benefit of
the foreclosing revenue bond owner. As a result, there is a strong incentive for the federal LIHTC investor to ensure that the development is
current on debt service payments by making capital contributions or otherwise. With respect to most of the properties that secure our revenue
bonds, all the multi-family units are rented to individuals or families at 60% of area median income and, thus, 100% of the qualified basis may
be used to determine the amount of the federal LIHTC. This maximizes the amount of equity raised from the purchasers of the federal LIHTCs
for each development and creates strong occupancy demand.

Government sponsored enterprise lending

PWF s mortgage lending business is subject to various governmental and quasi-governmental regulations. PWF is licensed or approved to
service and/or originate and sell mortgage loans under Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae and FHA programs. FHA and Ginnie Mae are
agencies of the Federal government and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are federally-chartered, public corporations. These agencies require PWF
to meet minimum net worth and capital requirements and to comply with other requirements. Mortgage loans made under these programs are
also required to meet the requirements of these programs. In addition, under Fannie Mae s DUS program, PWF has the authority to originate
loans without a prior review by Fannie Mae and is required to share in the losses on loans originated under this program. If PWF fails to comply
with the requirements of these programs, the agency can terminate its license or approval. In addition, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have the
authority under their guidelines to terminate a lender s authority to originate and service their loans for any reason. If PWF s authority is
terminated under any of these programs, it would prevent PWF from originating or servicing loans under that program. We were required to
guarantee the obligations of PWF under these programs as a condition for receiving Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac s approval of our of PWF by
CM Corp.

Risk Factors

As with any business, our Company faces a number of risks. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, prospects, results of
operations and financial condition would likely suffer. This section includes or refers to certain forward-looking information and as such should
be read with regard to the cautionary statement for purposes of the Safe Harbor provisions of the Private Security Limitation Reform Act of
1995.

Risks related to investing in revenue bonds

21



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

A large portion of our income is subject to the risks of investing in affordable multi-family rental residential properties.

We derive a large portion of our income by investing in revenue bonds secured by affordable multi-family rental residential properties.
Investing in such revenue bonds subjects us to various types and degrees of risk that could adversely affect the value of our assets and our ability
to generate revenue, net income and cash available for distributions to shareholders, including the following:

the property securing a revenue bond does not generate sufficient income to meet its operating expenses and
payments on its related revenue bond;

local, regional or national economic conditions may limit the amount of rent that can be charged for rental
units at the properties, and may result in a reduction in rent payments or the timeliness of rent payments or a reduction
in occupancy levels;

occupancy and rent levels may be affected by construction of additional housing units and national, regional
and local politics, including current or future rent stabilization and rent control laws and agreements;

federal LIHTCs and city, state and federal housing subsidy or similar programs which apply to many of the
properties impose rent limitations that could adversely affect the ability to increase rents to generate the funds
necessary to maintain the properties in proper condition, which is particularly important during periods of rapid
inflation or declining market value of such properties; and

if a revenue bond defaults, the value of the property securing such revenue bond (plus, for properties that have
availed themselves of the federal LIHTC, the value of such credit) may be less than the unamortized principal amount
of such revenue bond.

We may suffer adverse consequences from changes in interest rates

An increase in market interest rates may reduce the carrying value of our investments, including our residual interests in tax-exempt
securitization transactions, decrease the amount we could realize on the sale of those investments and adversely affect the amount of funds
available for distribution to the CRA shareholders. Since a significant portion of our investments represent residual interests in revenue bonds or
other securities whose cash flow is first used to pay senior securities with short-term floating interest rates, any increase in short-term interest
rates will increase the amount of interest we are required to pay on the senior securities and reduce the cash flow from our residual interests.

Any significant increase in short-term interest rates could adversely affect the market value of our shares by reducing the amount of cash
available for distribution to our shareholders. A decrease in market interest rates may lead to the refinancing of some of the revenue bonds we
own, through redemption thereof by the issuing entities or the borrowers. We may not be able to reinvest the proceeds of any such redemption
in a comparable revenue
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bond at an attractive rate of return. In addition, we may not be able to purchase new revenue bonds at the same interest rates as we have in the
past. This may affect our ability to generate sufficient income to make distributions and other payments in respect of our shares.

We have no recourse against state or local governments or property owners upon default of our revenue bonds or upon the bankruptcy of an
owner of properties securing our revenue bonds

Although state or local governments or their agencies or authorities issue the revenue bonds we purchase, the revenue bonds are not general
obligations of any state or local government. No government is liable to repay the revenue bonds, nor is the taxing power of any government
pledged for the payment of principal or interest on the revenue bonds. An assignment by the issuing government agency or authority of the
mortgage loan to the owner of the related properties in favor of a bond trustee on behalf of us or one of our subsidiaries, or in some cases, an
assignment directly to the bondholder, secures the applicable revenue bond we own. The loan is secured by a mortgage on the related property
or properties and an assignment of rents. The underlying mortgage loans are non-recourse to the property owner, other than customary recourse
carve-outs for bad acts such as fraud; that is, the owners of the properties securing the revenue bonds that we own are liable for the payment of
principal and interest under the loans only to the extent of cash flow from, and sale or refinancing proceeds of, such properties. Accordingly, the
revenue derived from the operation of the properties securing the revenue bonds that we own and amounts derived from the sale, refinancing or
other disposition of the properties are the sole sources of funds for payment of principal and interest on the revenue bonds. Our revenue may
also be adversely affected by the bankruptcy of an owner of properties securing the revenue bonds that we directly or indirectly own. An owner
of properties under bankruptcy protection may be able to forcibly restructure its debt service payments and stop making, temporarily or
otherwise, debt service payments to us. Our rights in this event would be defined by applicable law.

Some of the properties underlying our revenue bonds are owned by charities

As of December 31, 2003, nine of our revenue bonds with an aggregate carrying value of approximately $78.4 million were issued on behalf of
non-profit organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and finance low income multi-family properties or facilities for the elderly.
Because an allocation of a state s volume cap is not needed for these revenue bonds, they may be more readily available than revenue bonds
which require an allocation of volume cap. However, because charities are not profit motivated, they may not operate properties as efficiently as
for-profit owners. Many charities are thinly capitalized and are unable to invest significant amounts of equity into affordable multi-family
properties acquired by them. This may increase the likelihood of default because the charity (i) may not have the capital required to operate and
maintain the property if the cash flow expected to be generated by rental income is less than expected or (ii) may be more willing to abandon a
property experiencing financial difficulty because its investment is minimal. In addition, investing in revenue bonds owned by charities is
subject to other risks, including:

changes in governmental sponsorship of subsidized programs;

subsidization of indigent persons who use their facilities, which may reduce the cash flow available to pay
debt service on revenue bonds secured by such facilities;

the possibility that a charity s status as an exempt organization could be revoked or the possibility that the
property is sold to a person which is not an exempt organization that is described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, for
example, as a result of a foreclosure sale, thereby resulting in the interest on the revenue bonds issued for the benefit
of such charity becoming includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation from the date of issue of
the respective revenue bond; and
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the inability of the owner of the revenue bond to recover sufficient value in the event of a default and
subsequent foreclosure, because of the loss of the benefit of the tax-exempt financing and, in some cases, real estate
tax abatements, unless the property is promptly resold to another qualifying non-profit organization.

There may be negative effects of requirements with respect to rent restrictions and permissible income of occupants of properties securing our
revenue bonds

All of the properties securing our revenue bonds are subject to certain federal, state and/or local requirements with respect to the permissible
income of their tenants. The LIHTC program and, often, state or local law establish a rent ceiling for some or all tenants. In addition, pursuant
to the Code, all of the properties securing our revenue bonds are required to have at least 20% (and in the case of low income properties owned
by most charities, up to 75%) of the units reserved for occupancy by low or moderate income persons or families. The Code provides that, as a
general rule, for revenue bonds issued on or after January 1, 1986, the income limitations for low or moderate income tenants will be adjusted
for family size. Since federal subsidies are not generally available in connection with the mortgage loans, rents must be charged on such
portions of the units at a level to permit such units to be continuously occupied by low or moderate income persons or families. As a result, such
rents may not be sufficient to cover all operating costs with respect to such units and debt service on the related revenue bond. In such event, the
rents on the remaining units may have to be higher than they would otherwise be and may, therefore, exceed competitive rents, which may
adversely affect the occupancy rate of a property securing an investment and the developer s ability to service its debt.

We are subject to construction completion and rehabilitation risks

As of December 31, 2003, revenue bonds with an aggregate carrying value of approximately $520.7 million were secured by affordable
multi-family housing properties which are still in various stages of construction and revenue bonds with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately $192.4 million were secured by affordable multi-family housing properties which are undergoing substantial rehabilitation.
Construction and/or rehabilitation of such properties generally takes approximately 12 to 24 months. The principal risk associated with this type
of lending is the risk of non-completion of construction or rehabilitation which may arise as a result of: (i) underestimated initial construction or
rehabilitation costs; (ii) cost overruns; (iii) delays; (iv) failure to obtain governmental approvals; and (v) adverse weather and other unpredictable
contingencies beyond the control of the developer. If a mortgage loan is called due to construction and/or rehabilitation not being completed as
required in the
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mortgage loan documents, we, as the holder of the revenue bonds secured by such mortgage, may incur certain costs and be required to invest
additional capital in order to preserve our investment.

The properties securing certain of our revenue bonds, which are currently in a lease-up stage, may experience financial distress if they do not
meet occupancy and debt service coverage levels sufficient to stabilize such properties

As of December 31, 2003, revenue bonds in our portfolio with a carrying value of approximately $530.4 million are secured by mortgages on
properties which are currently in a lease-up stage. The lease-up of these Underlying Properties may not be completed on schedule or at
anticipated rent levels, resulting in a greater risk that such revenue bonds may go into default than bonds secured by mortgages on properties that
are fully leased-up. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the Underlying Property will achieve expected occupancy or debt service coverage
levels.

Other parties have the first right to income from and principal of, and control of foreclosure on, some of our revenue bond investments

As of December 31, 2003, a substantial portion of our investments consist of revenue bonds that are subordinated or that represent interests in
bonds, notes or other instruments that may be junior in right of payment to other bonds, notes or instruments. There are risks in investing in
subordinated revenue bonds and other junior residual interests that could adversely affect our ability to make expected distributions to our CRA
shareholders or common shareholders, including:

the risk that borrowers may not be able to make payments on both the senior and the subordinated revenue
bonds or interests, resulting in us, as a holder of the subordinated revenue bond, receiving less than the full and timely
payments of interest and principal;

the risk that short-term interest rates rise significantly, which would increase the amounts payable to the
holders of the senior interests created through our securitizations and reduce the amounts payable to us or our
subsidiaries as holders of the junior residual interests; and

the possibility that the holders of the senior revenue bonds or senior interests created through our
securitizations may control the ability to enforce remedies, limiting our ability to take actions that might protect our
interests.

Our revenue bonds and mortgage loans may be considered usurious

State usury laws establish restrictions, in certain circumstances, on the maximum rate of interest that may be charged by a lender and impose
penalties on parties making usurious loans, including monetary penalties, forfeiture of interest and unenforceability of the debt. Although we do
not intend to acquire revenue bonds secured by mortgage loans at usurious rates, there is a risk that our revenue bonds and mortgage loans could
be found to be usurious as a result of uncertainties in determining the maximum legal rate of interest in certain jurisdictions, especially with
respect to revenue bonds that bear participating or otherwise contingent interest. Therefore, the amount of interest to be charged and our return
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on our revenue bonds will be limited by state usury laws. In order to minimize the risk of investing in a revenue bond at a usurious rate, we
obtain an opinion of local counsel to the effect that the interest rate of a proposed revenue bond is not usurious under applicable state law. We
also generally obtain an opinion of local counsel to the effect that the interest on the proposed mortgage loan is not usurious. To obtain such
opinions, we may have to agree to defer or reduce the amount of interest that can be paid in any year. Some states may prohibit the
compounding of interest, in which case we may have to agree to forego the compounding feature of our revenue bonds originated in those states.

Risks related to our taxable business

Revenues from our subsidiaries fee-generating activities are less predictable than our revenues from our revenue bond investments and could
result in additional taxable income to our shareholders

Our formation of CM Corp., acquisition of PWF and more recent acquisition of Related has changed our business from one that invests
substantially in revenue bonds to one that, in addition to bond investments, conducts significant fee-generating service activities. These
fee-generating activities are significantly different from our historical investment business where revenue bonds are held and income is
generated primarily through receipt of interest payments. Although we expect that these fee-generating businesses will generate significant
growth for us, they are inherently less predictable than the ownership of tax-exempt bonds and there can be no assurance that our subsidiaries
fee-generating activities will be profitable. In addition, the earnings and cash generated by the Related business has historically fluctuated
between quarters due to the variability and seasonality inherent in the timing of investing in tax credit partnerships, which is the primary driver
of the earnings and cash generated by Related. These fluctuations could be perceived negatively and, therefore, adversely affect the price at
which our common shares trade. In addition, the portion of our distributions that represent federally tax-exempt income could decrease based on
the proportion of our future taxable business. If the taxable dividend income distributed by CM Corp. to us grows as a percentage of our
consolidated net income, if we invest in a larger percentage of taxable investments or if we engage in other taxable fee-generating business, the
percentage of our net income distributed to our shareholders that is federally tax-exempt to them is likely to decrease.

There are risks associated with Delegated Underwriter and Servicer ( DUS ) lending

Through PWF s DUS program, we originate loans which are thereafter purchased by Fannie Mae. PWF retains a first loss position with respect
to loans that it originates and sells to Fannie Mae. PWF assumes responsibility for a portion of any loss that may result from borrower defaults,
based on the Fannie Mae loss sharing formulas, Levels I, II, or III. As December 31, 2003, all of PWF s loans consisted of Level I loans. For
such loans, PWF is responsible for the first 5% of the unpaid principal balance and a portion of any additional losses to a maximum of 20% of
the original principal balance. Level II and Level III loans carry a higher loss sharing percentage. Any remaining loss is sustained by Fannie
Mae.
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Under the terms of the Master Loss Sharing Agreement between Fannie Mae and PWF, PWF is responsible for funding 100% of mortgagor
delinquency (principal and interest) and servicing (taxes, insurance and foreclosure costs) advances until the amounts advanced exceed 5% of
the unpaid principal balance at the date of default. Thereafter, for Level I loans, PWF may request interim loss sharing adjustments which allow
PWEF to fund 25% of such advances until final settlement under the Master Loss Sharing Agreement. No interim sharing adjustments are
available for Level II and Level III loans.

There are risks associated with credit enhancement and internal rate of return guarantees

Through CM Corp., we provide credit enhancement to third parties for a fee. If such third parties default on their obligations on which CM
Corp. provided credit enhancement, CM Corp. would be called upon to make the related payment, which could be in an amount that is far in
excess of the fee obtained for its credit enhancement. In addition, we usually guarantee CM Corp. s obligations under its credit enhancement
transactions. As of December 31, 2003, our maximum risk associated with these credit enhancement transactions was approximately $19
million. Through CM Corp., we provide internal rate of return guarantees to investors in partnerships designed to pass through certain tax
benefits, including federal LIHTCs, to investors. In connection with such guarantees we might be required to advance funds to ensure that the
investors do not lose their expected tax benefits and, if the internal rate of return to investors falls below the guaranteed level, we would be
required to make a payment so that the guaranteed rate of return will be achieved. As of December 31, 2003, our maximum potential liability,
pursuant to those guarantees, was approximately $228 million.

First loss and non-investment grade subordinated interests are subject to increased risk of loss

We have invested indirectly in subordinated Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities ( CMBS ) through our ownership of a preferred
membership interest in ARCap Investors L.L.C. ( ARCap ). Subordinated CMBS of the type in which ARCap invests typically include first loss
and non-investment grade subordinated interests. A first loss security is the most subordinate class in a structure and accordingly is the first to

bear the loss upon a default or restructuring or liquidation of the underlying collateral and the last to receive payment of interest and principal,

and is often not assigned an investment rating. Accordingly, such classes are subject to a greater risk of loss of principal and non-payment of
interest than more senior, rated classes. The market values of subordinated interests in CMBS and other subordinated securities tend to be more
sensitive to changes in economic conditions than more senior, rated classes. As a result of these and other factors, subordinated interests

generally are not actively traded and are relatively illiquid investments. With respect to our investment in ARCap, our ability to transfer our
membership interest in ARCap is further limited by the terms of ARCap s operating agreement.

Elimination of, or changes to, governmental programs

A significant portion of Related s revenues are derived from the syndication of partnership interests in properties eligible for LIHTCs. Although
LIHTCs are a part of the Code, Congress could repeal or modify this legislation at any time. If such legislation is repealed or adversely
modified, Related would no longer be able to pursue its business strategy as currently contemplated.

The inability to maintain Related s current recurring fee arrangements and to generate new transaction fees could have a negative impact on
the price of our common shares
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Two of our taxable revenue sources are expected to be the transaction fees generated by Related s sponsorship of any new investment programs
and recurring fees payable by existing and future programs. Transaction fees are generally up-front fees that are generated from the sponsorship
of new investment programs, while recurring fees depend on the ongoing operation of investment programs sponsored by Related. The
termination of one or more of these recurring fee arrangements, or the inability to sponsor new programs which will generate new recurring and
transaction fees, could adversely affect our results of operations and reduce the market price of our common shares. There can be no assurance
that existing recurring fee arrangements will not be reduced or terminated or that we will be able to realize revenues from new investment
programs.

Certain agreements pursuant to which Related earns fees have finite terms and may not be renewed

Related receives fees pursuant to an advisory agreement with American Mortgage Acceptance Company ( AMAC ). The AMAC advisory
agreement is subject to annual renewal by AMAC, which requires the approval of a majority of its board of trustees. In addition, a majority of
the independent members of AMAC s board may terminate this agreement with Related with or without cause. As a result, this agreement may
not be renewed or may be terminated with or without cause. Related also receives fees from investment programs Related has sponsored and
may sponsor in the future that do not provide for annual elections by investors of their management. With respect to these investment programs,
we will generally be acquiring controlling interests in the entities which control these investment programs which currently generate recurring
fees. However, these interests are subject to the fiduciary duty of the controlling entity to the investors in those investment programs which may
affect our ability to continue to collect fees from those investment programs. Furthermore, the organizational documents of substantially all of
these investment programs allow for the investors, at their option, to remove the entity controlled by Related as general partner or managing
member without cause. Although the investment programs will generally be required to pay fair market value if they exercise this right,

Related s right to receive future fees would terminate and there can be no assurance that the payment will fully compensate us for this loss.
Finally, many of these investment programs typically have finite periods in which they are scheduled to exist, after which they are liquidated.
The termination of a program will result in a termination of the fees we receive from those programs.
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Related s business is subject to competition and our inability to compete effectively in the future for financial services business could reduce the
revenues we expect to receive as a result of our acquisition of Related and negatively affect the price of our shares

Financial services in the multi-family affordable housing industry is highly competitive. Related competes with entities that possess greater
financial resources for (a) providing financing to multi-family developers and (b) selling LIHTC funds to investors. Related also competes
against numerous private financial service providers as well as state and federal agencies. Pursuant to Section 42 of the Code, a fixed number of
LIHTCs are allocated annually to each state based on population. In 2002, developers applied for approximately $5.0 billion of LIHTCs, while
only $2.5 billion were available nationally. Related is dependent upon the developers of LIHTC properties to apply for and obtain LIHTCs.
Related, in turn, contracts with the local developer for the right to offer the tax credits to equity investors through investment programs it
sponsors. These local developers include independent third parties as well as affiliates of TRCLP. Our inability to continue to arrange for the
acquisition of LIHTC opportunities from developers or the inability of developers with whom Related has done business in the past to continue
to obtain LIHTC allocations, may adversely affect our ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of our acquisition of Related.

Related relies on relationships with key investors and customers which may not continue, which would adversely affect our ability to generate
revenue

Related relies on relationships with key investors and developers. If these relationships do not continue, or if we are unable to form new
relationships, our ability to generate revenue will be adversely affected. In 2002, five key investors provided approximately 72% of the equity
capital raised by tax credit syndication programs sponsored by Related, with two of those key investors providing approximately 47% of the
capital. In addition, ten key developers provided approximately 55% of the LIHTC properties for which Related arranged equity financing in
2002. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to do business with these key investors and developers or that new
relationships will be formed.

General risks related to our Company

We and our subsidiaries depend on the services of Related s senior management team

We and our subsidiaries depend upon the services of four key employees of Related (Messrs. Boesky, Hirmes and Schnitzer and Ms. Kiley) and
other individuals who comprise Related s senior management team. All decisions with respect to the management and control of our Company
and our subsidiaries, subject to the supervision of our board of trustees (or the applicable subsidiaries board of directors), are currently made
exclusively by these four key employees and Related s senior management team. This includes, without limitation, the determination of how we
and our subsidiaries choose our investments. The departure or the loss of the services of any of these key employees or a large number of senior
management personnel and other employees could have a material adverse effect on our ability to effectively operate our business and our future
results of operations.

Because we hold most of our investments through our subsidiaries, our shareholders are effectively subordinated to the liabilities and preferred
equity of our subsidiaries
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We hold most of our investments through our subsidiaries. Since we own only common equity of our subsidiaries, we, and therefore holders of
our shares, are effectively subordinated to the liabilities and preferred equity of our subsidiaries, which at December 31, 2003, aggregated
approximately $1.9 billion. In particular, the holders of the preferred shares of one of our subsidiaries, Equity Issuer, are entitled to receive
preferential distributions with respect to revenues generated by revenue bonds held directly or indirectly through it, which constitute a
substantial portion of our assets. Similarly, holders of senior interests created through our securitization programs have a superior claim to the
cash flow from the revenue bonds deposited in such programs. Accordingly, a portion of the earnings on our investments will not be available
for distribution on our CRA Shares.

We are subject to ongoing liabilities and business risks that are inherent to Related s business

Assumed Liabilities

In connection with our acquisition of Related, we assumed and incurred liabilities and associated costs, including the assumption of liabilities
under certain guarantees. We also provided replacement notes to capitalize general partner entities of investment programs previously
sponsored by Related and controlled directly by us and guaranteed the performance by our subsidiaries of any obligations they have pursuant to
the agreements entered into in connection with our acquisition of Related. As a guarantor, we could incur liability if events of default occur.

New Liabilities and Business Risks

In connection with the sponsorship of investment programs and joint venture activities related to the co-development of LIHTC properties,
Related acts as a fiduciary to the investors in its syndication programs and is often also required to provide guarantees of performance. Related
advances funds to acquire interests in property-owning partnerships for inclusion in investment programs it sponsors and at any point in time, the
amount of funds advanced can be material. The warehouse line of credit utilized by Related to fund these acquisitions has a maximum amount
of $85.0 million. Recoupment of amounts used to acquire such interests is subject to Related s ability to attract investors to new investment
programs or, if investors are not found, the sale of the partnership interests in the Underlying Properties. Finally, our subsidiaries could be
subject to liabilities to investors in investment programs and third parties as a result of serving as general partner or special limited partner in
various investment programs. In addition, even when we are not required to do so, we may advance funds to allow investment programs to meet
their expenses and/or generate the expected tax benefits to investors.
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Certain types of losses are uninsured

There are certain types of losses (generally of a catastrophic nature, such as toxic mold, earthquakes, floods, terrorism and wars) which are either
uninsurable or not economically insurable. Should a disaster of this type occur to, or cause the destruction of, one of the properties securing a
revenue bond that we directly or indirectly own, it is possible that we could lose our invested capital, anticipated future revenue and anticipated
profit.

Our investments in revenue bonds are illiquid

Our investments in revenue bonds lack a regular trading market. There is no limitation in our trust agreement or otherwise as to the percentage
of our investments that may be illiquid and we expect to continue to invest in assets, a substantial portion of which will be illiquid securities. If
a situation arises where we would require additional cash, we could be forced to liquidate some or all of our investments on unfavorable terms
(if any sale is possible) that could substantially reduce the amount of distributions available and payments made in respect of our shares.

Certain of the revenue bonds held by us and our subsidiaries have been pledged

A significant portion of our revenue bond portfolio has been pledged in connection with our securitizations, credit enhancement activities and
warehouse borrowing. The carrying value of the pledged bonds varies from time to time. As of December 31, 2003, the carrying value of all
pledged bonds is approximately $1.8 billion. Upon the occurrence of a default under one or more of the programs in connection with which our
revenue bonds are pledged, certain of those bonds could be liquidated and the proceeds of such liquidation paid to the secured party. Such
liquidation and application would reduce the amount of interest available for distributions to our shareholders and would also potentially trigger
other defaults, which could lead to additional liquidations of the pledged revenue bonds.

Our board of trustees can change our business policies unilaterally

Our shareholders have no control over changes in our policies, including our business policies with respect to acquisitions, financing, growth,
debt, capitalization and distributions, which are determined by our board of trustees. Our board of trustees may amend or revise our business
plan and certain other policies without shareholder vote. There is a risk that changes in our business policies may not fully serve the interests of
all of our shareholders.

We invest in real estate related investments and revenue bonds secured by real estate, which involves risk of liability under the environmental
laws

Under various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner or operator of real estate is liable for the costs of removal or
remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances released on, above, under or in such real estate. These laws often impose liability without
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regard to whether the owner knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such hazardous or toxic substances. As a result, the entities we
sponsor which own real estate, and the owners of the real estate securing our investments could be required to pay removal or remediation costs.
These costs of removal or remediation could be substantial and could negatively impact the availability of property cash flow for payments on
our investments. Phase I reports have been obtained for all of the properties securing our investments, and in certain instances, because of
findings in the Phase I reports, Phase II reports have also been obtained. The results of such reports were that no material violations of
applicable regulations were found and such reports concluded that there has been no verifiable or apparent adverse environmental impact from
past or present land use which has not been or will not be remediated. Other than such Phase I and Phase II reports, no further environmental
analyses have been performed with respect to the properties securing our investments. Other than the results of the reports described above, our
awareness of environmental problems associated with the properties securing our investments is derived, for the most part, from information
obtained from owners of the properties which secure our investments, due diligence inquiries when our investments were financed or visual
inspections of properties by independent appraisers. There may, however, be environmental problems associated with a property securing an
investment not known to us and our subsidiaries.

We are not registered under the Investment Company Act and would not be able to conduct our activities as we currently conduct them if we
were to become required to be registered

Neither we nor our subsidiaries are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and we may not be able to conduct our activities as

we currently conduct them if we were required to register thereunder. We at all times intend to conduct our activities, and those of our
subsidiaries, so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. Even if we are not an investment
company under the Investment Company Act, we could be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act if a subsidiary of ours were
to be deemed to be an investment company. There are a number of possible exemptions from registration under the Investment Company Act
that we believe apply to us and our subsidiaries and which we believe make it possible for us not to be subject to registration under the
Investment Company Act. For example, the Investment Company Act exempts entities that are primarily engaged in the business of purchasing
or otherwise acquiring mortgages and other liens on and interests in real estate, which we refer to as qualifying interests. Under current
interpretations of the staff of the SEC, one of the ways in which our subsidiaries can qualify for this exemption is to maintain at least 55% of its
assets directly in qualifying interests and the balance in real estate-type interests. Under this test, unless certain mortgage securities represent all
of the certificates issued with respect to an underlying pool of mortgages, such mortgage securities may be treated as securities separate from the
underlying mortgage loans and, thus, may not be considered qualifying interests for purposes of the 55% requirement. We believe our
subsidiaries can rely on this exemption or another exemption from registration. The requirement that our subsidiaries maintain 55% of assets in
qualifying interests (or satisfy another exemption from registration) may inhibit our ability to acquire certain kinds of assets or to securitize
additional interests in the future. If any of our subsidiaries fail to qualify for exemption from registration as an investment company, we, in turn,
may be required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. In such event, our ability to maintain our financing
strategies would be substantially
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reduced, and we would be unable to conduct our business as described herein. Such a failure to qualify could have a material adverse effect
upon our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

There are possible adverse effects arising from shares available for future sale

Our board of trustees is permitted to offer additional CRA Shares or other equity or debt securities of our Company in exchange for money,
property or otherwise. Our ability to sell or exchange such securities will depend on conditions then prevailing in the relevant capital markets
and our results of operations, financial condition, investment portfolio and business prospects. Subject to American Stock Exchange rules which
require shareholder approval for certain issuances of securities and as long as the issuance is made in accordance with our trust agreement, the
issuance of such additional securities will not be subject to the approval of our CRA shareholders and may negatively affect any resale price of
our CRA Shares. CRA shareholders will not have any preemptive rights in connection with the issuance of any additional securities we or our
subsidiaries may offer, and any of our equity offerings will cause dilution of a shareholder s investment in us.

Our inability to raise capital could adversely affect our growth

A major aspect of our business plan includes the acquisition of additional revenue bonds, which requires capital. In addition to funds generated
through operations (including securitizations), we raise capital by periodically offering securities issued by us or one or more of our
subsidiaries. Our ability to raise capital through securities offerings is subject to risks, including:

conditions then prevailing in the relevant capital markets;
our results of operations, financial condition, investment portfolio and business prospects;

the timing and amount of distributions to the holders of our shares which could negatively affect the price of a
common share; and

the amount of securities that are structurally senior to the securities being sold.

Our classification as a publicly traded partnership not taxable as a corporation is not free from doubt and could be challenged

We, and the majority of our subsidiaries, operate as partnerships or are disregarded for federal income tax purposes. This allows us to pass

through our income, including our federally tax-exempt income, and deductions to our shareholders. The listing of our common shares on the
American Stock Exchange causes us to be treated as a publicly traded partnership for federal income tax purposes. We, and Paul, Hastings,
Janofsky & Walker LLP, our counsel (who we also refer to as Paul Hastings ), believe that we have been and are properly treated as a partnership
for federal income tax purposes. However, the Internal Revenue Service ( IRS ) could challenge our partnership status and we could fail to
qualify as a partnership in future years. Qualification as a partnership involves the application of highly technical and complex Code

provisions. For example, a publicly traded partnership is generally taxable as a corporation unless 90% or more of its gross income is qualifying
income (which includes interest, dividends, real property rents, gains from the sale or other disposition of real property, gain from the sale or

other disposition of capital assets held for the production of interest or dividends, and certain other items). We have represented that in all prior
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years of our existence at least 90% of our gross income was qualifying income and we intend to conduct our operations in a manner such that at
least 90% of our gross income will constitute qualifying income this year and in the future. In the opinion of Paul Hastings, although the issue is
not free from doubt, we have been and are properly treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. In determining whether interest is
treated as qualifying income under these rules, interest income derived from a financial business and income and gains derived by a dealer in
securities are not treated as qualifying income. We have represented that we are acting as an investor with respect to our investments and that

we have not engaged in, and will not engage in, a financial business. There is no clear guidance on what constitutes a financial business. We
have taken the position that for purposes of determining whether we are in a financial business, our bond acquisition and financing activities as
well as our proposed activities would not cause us to be engaged in a financial business or to be considered a dealer in securities. The IRS could
assert that our activities constitute a financial business. Even if we were considered to be engaged in a financial business, we believe that we
would satisfy the requirement that 90% or more of our income constitutes qualifying income. If our activities constitute (or as a result of
increased volume constitute) a financial business or cause us to be treated as a dealer, there is a substantial risk that more than 10% of our gross
income would not constitute qualifying income. We could also be treated as if we were engaged in a financial business if the activities of

Related were attributed to us. Although we are affiliated with Related, we seek to enter into arms length arrangements with Related. CM Corp.
will be subject to income tax with respect to amounts earned by Related. Accordingly, we believe the activities and income of Related will not

be attributed to us. In addition, in determining whether interest is treated as qualifying income, interest income that is determined based upon

the income or profits of any person is not treated as qualifying income. A portion of the interest payable on participating interest bonds owned

by us and our subsidiaries is determined based upon the income or profits of the properties securing our investments. Accordingly, if we were to
receive more than 10% of our interest income in any given year from such contingent interest, the IRS could take the position that we should be
treated as publicly traded partnerships, taxable as associations. We carefully monitor the type of interest income we receive to void such a
circumstance. However, there can be no assurance that such monitoring would be effective in all events to avoid the receipt of more than 10%
contingent interest in any given year, because circumstances outside of the control of us and our subsidiaries could cause such a result. If for

any reason less than 90% of our gross income constitutes qualifying income, items of income and deduction would not pass through to our
shareholders and our shareholders would be treated for federal income tax purposes as stockholders in a corporation. We would be required to
pay income tax at regular corporate rates on any portion of our net income that did not constitute tax-exempt income. In addition, a portion of

our federally tax-exempt income may be included in determining our alternative minimum tax liability. Distributions by us to our shareholders
would constitute ordinary dividend income taxable to such holders to the extent of our earnings and profits, which would include tax-exempt
income, as well as any taxable income we might have, and the payment of these distributions would not be deductible by us. These

consequences would have a material adverse effect on us and our shareholders.
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Our treatment of income from our residual interests as federally tax-exempt could be challenged

We hold, indirectly, residual interests in certain federally tax-exempt revenue bonds through securitization programs, such as the Private Label
Tender Option Program and P-FLOATs”"/RITESSM program, which entitle us to a share of the federally tax-exempt interest
of such revenue bonds. Special tax counsel have each rendered an opinion to the effect that the issuer of the RITESSM
and the issuer of the Private Label Tender Option Program residual certificates, respectively, will each be classified as
a partnership for federal income tax purposes and the holders of the RITESSM and the Private Label Tender Option
Program residual certificates will be treated as partners of each partnership. Consequently, as the holder of the
RITESSM and the Private Label Tender Option Program residual certificates, we believe we are entitled to treat our
share of the federally tax-exempt income allocated and distributed to us as tax-exempt income. However, it is
possible that the IRS could disagree with those conclusions and an alternative characterization could adversely affect
the treatment of any income we receive from the RITESSM and the Private Label Tender Option Program residual
certificates, as well as the pass-through of that income to our shareholders, as ordinary taxable income.

The value of our shares and our ability to make distributions of federally tax-exempt income depends upon the application of tax laws

The following discussion relates only to those investments which generate federally tax-exempt income.

Tax treatment of our revenue bonds

A large portion of our business involves acquiring and holding investments that we believe, based upon the opinion of nationally recognized
counsel delivered on the date the investment was originally issued (or on the date on which the investment was considered reissued), will
generate interest or distributions excludable from the gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes. Certain of the
revenue bonds acquired directly or indirectly by us bear interest at rates which include participating or otherwise contingent interest. These
revenue bonds are called participating interest bonds. In the case of all participating interest bonds, the opinions of counsel include an opinion to
the effect that such participating interest bond would be treated as debt for federal income tax purposes.

Tax-exemption of our revenue bonds

On the date of original issuance or re-issuance of each revenue bond, nationally recognized bond counsel or special tax counsel rendered its

opinion to the effect that, based on the law in effect on the date of original issuance or re-issuance, interest on such revenue bonds is excludable

from gross income for federal income tax purposes, except with respect to any revenue bond (other than a revenue bond, the proceeds of which

are loaned to a charitable organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code) during any period in which it is held by a substantial user of
the property financed with the proceeds of such revenue bonds or a related person of such a substantial user. In the case of participating interest
bonds, such opinion assumes, in certain cases in reliance on another unqualified opinion, that such participating interest bond constitutes debt for
federal income tax purposes. Each opinion speaks only as of the date it was delivered. In addition, in the case of revenue bonds which,

subsequent to their original issuance, have been reissued for federal tax purposes, nationally recognized bond counsel or special tax counsel has
delivered opinions to the effect that interest on the reissued revenue bond is excludable from gross income of the holder thereof for federal
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income tax purposes from the date of re-issuance or, in some cases, to the effect that the re-issuance did not adversely affect the excludability of
interest on the revenue bonds from the gross income of the holders thereof. However, an opinion of counsel has no binding effect and there is no
assurance that the conclusions reached will not be contested by the IRS or, if contested, will be sustained by a court. The re-issuance of a
revenue bond generally does not, in and of itself, cause the interest on such revenue bond to be includable in the gross income of the holder
thereof for federal income tax purposes. However, if a revenue bond is treated as reissued and the appropriate federal tax information return, a
Form 8038, has not been timely filed or a late filing has not been accepted by the IRS, interest on such revenue bond could be includable in the
gross income of the holder thereof for federal income tax purposes from and after the re-issuance date. In addition, if a participating interest
revenue bond is treated as reissued, there can be no assurance that such revenue bond would continue to be characterized as debt, as described
below, insofar as the facts and circumstances underlying such characterization may have changed. Furthermore, pursuant to regulations
generally effective as of June 30, 1993, if an issue of revenue bonds is treated as reissued within six months of the transfer of the property
financed by such issue of revenue bonds by the owner of such property to an unrelated party the interest on such revenue bonds could become
includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. In addition, if a participating interest revenue bond is reissued after August
13, 1996, the reissued revenue bond is or would become subject to certain regulations concerning contingent payments, which could cause some
or all of the interest payable on such participating interest revenue bond to become includable in gross income of the holder thereof for federal
income tax purposes, unless such participating interest revenue bond is modified at the time of re-issuance to comply with the contingent
payment regulations. The Code establishes certain requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of tax-exempt
revenue bonds for interest on such revenue bonds to remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Among these
continuing requirements are restrictions on the investment and use of the revenue bond proceeds and, for revenue bonds the proceeds of which
are loaned to a charitable organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, the continued exempt status of such borrower. In addition,
the continuing requirements include tenant income restrictions, regulatory agreement compliance and compliance with rules pertaining to
arbitrage. Each issuer of the revenue bonds, as well as each of the underlying borrowers, has covenanted to comply with certain procedures and
guidelines designed to ensure satisfaction of the continuing requirements of the Code. Failure to comply with these continuing requirements of
the Code may cause the interest on such bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of
issuance, regardless of when such noncompliance occurs. Greenberg Traurig, LLP (also referred to as Greenberg Traurig ) as our bond counsel,
and Paul Hastings, as our securities counsel (Greenberg Traurig and Paul Hastings are collectively referred to herein as our Counsel ), have not,
in connection with the offering of the Series A Convertible CRA Shares pursuant to this prospectus supplement, passed upon and do not assume
any responsibility for, but rather have assumed the continuing correctness of, the opinions of bond counsel or special tax counsel (including
opinions rendered by Greenberg Traurig) relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the revenue
bonds and have not independently verified whether any events or circumstances have occurred since the date such opinions were rendered that
would adversely affect the conclusions set forth herein. However, as of the date of this prospectus supplement, neither we, nor our subsidiaries,
our affiliates or our Counsel have knowledge of
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any events that might adversely affect the federally tax-exempt status of our revenue bonds, including any notice that the IRS considers interest
on any of our revenue bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Treatment of revenue bonds as equity

Payment of a portion of the interest accruing on each participating interest bond depends in part upon the cash flow from, and proceeds upon
sale of, the property securing our investment financed by such revenue bond. An issue may arise as to whether the relationship between us and
the respective obligors is that of debtor and creditor or whether we are engaged in a partnership or joint venture with the respective obligors. If
the IRS were to determine that one or more of the participating interest bonds represented or contained an equity investment in the respective
property securing our investment because of this feature, all or part of the interest on such participating interest bond could be viewed as a
taxable return on such investment and would not qualify as tax-exempt interest for federal income tax purposes. To our knowledge, neither the
characterization of the participating interest bonds as debt, nor the characterization of the interest thereon as interest excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes of the holders thereof, has been challenged by the IRS in any judicial or regulatory proceeding. In
certain instances, opinions rendered by bond counsel provided that the characterization of the bonds as debt was not free from doubt and that all
or a portion of the interest on such bonds, including contingent interest and deferred interest, may not be treated as interest for state and federal
law but that it is more likely than not that such interest is interest for state and federal law purpose or otherwise similarly limited. We or our
predecessors received opinions of counsel from Willkie, Farr & Gallagher LLP and other counsel retained by us or our predecessor respecting
each of our participating interest bonds to the effect that, based upon assumptions described in such opinions, which assumptions included the
fair market value of the respective properties upon completion and economic projections and guarantees, the participating interest bonds would
be treated for federal tax purposes as representing debt. The implicit corollary of these opinions is that the participating interest bonds do not
constitute the following: (i) an equity interest in the underlying borrower; (ii) an equity interest in a venture between the underlying borrower
and us; or (iii) an ownership interest in the properties securing our investments. Although we assume the continuing correctness of these
opinions, and will treat all interest received with respect to these bonds as tax-exempt income, there can be no assurance that such assumptions
are correct, such treatment would not be challenged by the IRS, or that intervening facts and circumstances have changed the assumptions and
basis for providing such opinions. Most of the opinions described in the preceding paragraph were not rendered by Greenberg Traurig, which
has not passed on or assumed any responsibility for the opinions of other counsel on this issue, nor made any independent determination as to
whether any events or circumstances have occurred or intervened since the original issuance of the debt opinions that would adversely affect
such opinions. In addition, the opinions discussed above speak only as of their respective delivery dates, and our Counsel has not passed upon
or assumed any responsibility for reviewing any events that may have occurred subsequent to the delivery of such opinions which could
adversely affect the conclusions contained therein.

Substantial User Limitation

Interest on a revenue bond owned by us or our subsidiaries, other than a bond the proceeds of which are loaned to a charitable organization

described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, will not be excluded from gross income during any period in which we or our subsidiaries are a
substantial user of the properties financed with the proceeds of such revenue bond or a related person toa substantial user. We have received

advice from our counsel with respect to our revenue bonds to the effect that we are not a substantial user of any properties financed with the

proceeds of such bonds or a related person thereto. A substantial user generally includes any underlying borrower and any person or entity who

uses the financed properties on other than a de minimis basis. We would be a related person toa substantial user for this purpose if, among other

things, (i) the same person or entity owned more than a 50% interest in both us and in the properties financed with the proceeds of a bond owned

by us or one of our subsidiaries, or (ii) if we owned a partnership or similar equity interest in the owner of a property financed with the proceeds

of a bond. Additionally, a determination that we are a partner or a joint venturer with a mortgagor involving an equity interest, as described

above under Treatment of revenue bonds as equity, could cause us to be treated as a substantial user of the properties securing our investments.

In the event that the entity which owns a property securing our investment financed with the proceeds of a revenue bond owned by us were to

acquire any of our shares, the IRS, if it became aware of such ownership, could take the position that the substantial user and related person rules

require that the interest income on such revenue bond allocable to all of our investors, including the holders of the shares, including the CRA

Shares, be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Greenberg Traurig has advised us that in its opinion such a result is not

supported by the Code and treasury regulations; however, there can be no assurance that the IRS would not take such a position. Related and its
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affiliates owned a portion of our outstanding common shares. Such ownership of the obligors of certain of our revenue bonds and our common
shares were considered when we received advice that we are not a substantial user of the properties financed by such revenue bonds or a related
party toa substantial user. The selling principals of Related and its affiliates also own SCUs in CCC. Greenberg Traurig has reviewed the
revenue bonds owned by us and our subsidiaries, the ownership of the obligors of our revenue bonds and the ownership of our shares and our
subsidiaries shares, and concurs in the conclusion that we and our subsidiaries are not substantial users of the properties financed with the
proceeds of the revenue bonds or related parties thereto. There can be no assurance, however, that the IRS would not challenge such
conclusion. If such challenge were successful, the interest received on any bond respecting which we or our subsidiaries were treated as a
substantial user or a related party thereto would be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. In addition, prior to our
acquisition of Related, it owned, directly and indirectly, partnership interests in many partnerships owning multi-family properties financed with
the proceeds of revenue bonds in our revenue bond portfolio, which could have caused us to be treated as a substantial user of these entities or a
related party toa substantial user upon our acquisition of Related. Accordingly, prior to our acquisition of Related, we modified the structure of
the ownership interests in such entities and our operation of CCC s investment programs so that we will not be treated as a substantial user of any
properties financed with the proceeds of revenue bonds in our revenue bond portfolio or a related party thereto. Under our new structure,
designated senior executives will acquire and hold 51% of the equity interests in certain entities and we or our affiliates own a 49% interest and
serve as the non-equity manager or general partner. It is not expected that such entities will have significant economic value. Paul Hastings and
Greenberg Traurig have reviewed the structure of our acquisition of Related, the modifications to the ownership interests in such entities and the
structure we use to operate the real estate investment programs of CCC and they have advised us that, with such modifications, we and our
subsidiaries should not be substantial users of the properties financed with the proceeds of the revenue bonds or related parties thereto. There
can be no assurance, however, that the IRS would not challenge such a conclusion. If such challenge were successful, the interest received on
any revenue
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bond during the time period when we or our subsidiaries were treated as a substantial user or a related party thereto would be includable in gross
income for federal income tax purposes.

Revenue bonds May Go Into Default From Time To Time

Properties underlying our revenue bonds may experience financial difficulties from time to time, which could cause certain of our revenue bonds
to go into default. Were that to occur, we might take remedial action such as, among other things, entering into a work-out or forbearance
agreement with the owner of the property or exercising our rights with respect to the collateral securing such revenue bond, including the
commencement of mortgage foreclosure proceedings. The execution and delivery of a forbearance agreement could, under certain
circumstances, result in a significant modification (i.e., re-issuance ) of the revenue bond for federal income tax purposes. In such event, the
issuer of the revenue bond would be required to file a form 8038 in order to preserve the exclusion from gross income of interest on such
modified revenue bond. In addition, in the event that we were successfully to foreclose the mortgage on the property underlying a defaulted
revenue bond, it is likely that, during the period that we or an affiliate owned both the property and the defaulted revenue bond, we, as holder of
the defaulted revenue bond, would be deemed to be a related party to a substantial user of the property underlying such bond. As a result, during
such period, the interest we receive on such revenue bond would be includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation.

Section 761 Election and Revenue Procedure 2003-84

Many of the senior interests in our securitization programs are held by tax-exempt money-market funds. Because our securitization programs
must be structured as partnerships for federal income tax purposes, which allocate income, gain or loss at the end of each partnership year, the
senior interests will only be held by the tax-exempt money-market funds if the securitization partnerships have made an election under Section
761 of the Code to opt out of the provisions of subchapter K of the Code. Each of the partnerships, through which we securitize our revenue
bonds and sell senior floating rate interests to tax-exempt money-market funds, has made such an election. On November 5, 2003, the IRS
released Revenue Procedure 2003-84, which states, among other things, that partnerships, such as the ones used by us to securitize our bonds, do
not meet the requirements of Section 761 of the Code. However, the Revenue Procedure also states that, for partnerships with start-up dates
prior to January 1, 2004 that have made a Section 761 election, the IRS will not challenge a partnership s or a partner s tax treatment that has been
consistent with such an election, provided that the partnerships meet certain requirements. We have been advised by our counsel, Greenberg
Traurig, that the partnerships we use in our securitizations currently meet such requirements. It is our intention to continue to meet those
requirements, which include an income test and an expense test, on an ongoing basis. There can be no assurance, however, that unforeseen
circumstances might cause one or more of our securitization partnerships to fail either the income test or the expense test, which would cause our
securitization partnerships to have to comply with all of the requirements of subchapter K of the Code, including any reporting requirements. In
addition, there is no assurance that the IRS would not challenge our position that the securitization partnerships we use meet the requirements
necessary to be able to continue to rely upon Section 761 elections. In the event one or more of our securitization partnerships was forced to
comply with the provisions of subchapter K of the Code, it is likely that all of the tax-exempt money market funds which hold the senior
interests in those securitizations would tender their positions and the remarketing agent would have to try to locate new purchasers, which were
not tax-exempt money market funds, for those tendered senior interests. This would probably result in an increase in the distributions to the
holders of the senior interests, which would reduce, dollar for dollar, the distributions on the residual interests in the securitizations, which are
owned by us through our subsidiaries.

Structure of our acquisition of Related

Our acquisition of Related was structured to prevent us from realizing active income from the Related business and effectively receive a tax
deduction for payments made to the selling principals of Related. It is possible that the IRS could challenge this structure, with material adverse
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consequences to our Company. First, the IRS could assert that we are the owner of the Related business, in which case we would realize an
amount of active income from the Related business that would require us to be treated as a corporation instead of a publicly traded partnership
for income tax purposes. If the IRS prevailed, we would be required to pay taxes on our income, thereby reducing the amount available to us to
make distributions. As a result, it is possible that the value of our shares would decline. Second, the IRS might assert that the SCUs in CCC
held by the selling principals of Related are actually shares of our Company. If this position prevailed, the distributions payable on the SCUs
would not result in tax deductions for CM Corp. In such event, CM Corp. would be subject to increased tax, which could reduce our net after-tax
income and our distributions, which could also result in a decrease in the portion of our distributions that is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes.

Taxable income

We primarily invest in investments that produce only tax-exempt income. However, the IRS may seek to re-characterize a portion of our
tax-exempt income as taxable income as described above. If the IRS were successful, a shareholder s distributive share of such income will be
taxable to the shareholder, regardless of whether an amount of cash equal to such distributive share is actually distributed. Any taxable income
will be allocated pro rata between our CRA Shares and our common shares. We may also have taxable income in the form of market discount or
gain on the sale or other disposition of our investments, and we expect to own investments and engage in certain fee generating activities that
will generate taxable income.

Impact of recent and future tax legislation

Recent and future tax legislation could also adversely impact the value of our investments and the market price of our shares. On May 28, 2003,
President Bush signed into law the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Act. This law amends the Code to reduce federal income tax rates for
individuals on long-term capital gains and dividend income and accelerates certain previously enacted income tax rate reductions for individuals
for tax years ending on or after May 6, 2003. This tax legislation reduces the importance of a primary advantage of investing in municipal
bonds that the
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interest received on these bonds is federally tax-exempt, while other income is subject to federal income tax at higher rates. It is likely that these
tax law changes, and any similar future tax law changes, could increase the cost of tax-exempt financings, as interest rates offered by municipal
issuers would rise to compensate investors for the loss of the tax advantage. This could lead to a decrease in tax-exempt multi-family rental
housing bond issuances, which would reduce our opportunities to purchase revenue bonds. If the interest received on the revenue bonds remains
federally tax-exempt under the Code, the allocations of such federally tax exempt interest by us to our investors will also remain excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. However, the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Act could cause the after-tax returns available
from other investments to increase, and cause shares in other companies to become more attractive relative to our shares. These changes could
also reduce the value of our existing investments, because federally tax-exempt municipal bond income would not enjoy the same relative tax
advantage as provided under prior law.

No assurance can be given that our shareholders will be entitled to the same limitation on personal liability as stockholders of private
corporations for profit

We are governed by the laws of the State of Delaware. Under our trust agreement and the Delaware Statutory Trust Act, as amended ( Delaware
Act ), our shareholders will be entitled to the same limitation of personal liability extended to stockholders of private corporations for profit
organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. In general, stockholders of Delaware corporations are not personally
liable for the payment of corporation debts and obligations, and are liable only to the extent of their investment in the Delaware corporation.
However, a shareholder may be obligated to make certain payments provided for in our trust agreement and bylaws. The properties securing our
investments are dispersed in numerous states and the District of Columbia. In jurisdictions which have not adopted legislative provisions
regarding statutory trusts similar to those of the Delaware Act, questions exist as to whether such jurisdictions would recognize a statutory trust,
absent a state statute, and whether a court in such jurisdiction would recognize the Delaware Act as controlling. If not, a court in such
jurisdiction could hold that our shareholders are not entitled to the limitation of liability set forth in our trust agreement and the Delaware Act
and, as a result, are personally liable for our debts and obligations.

Our anti-takeover provisions may discourage third-party proposals

Certain provisions of our trust agreement may have the effect of discouraging a third party from making an acquisition proposal for our
Company. This could inhibit a change in control of our Company under circumstances that could give our shareholders the opportunity to
realize a premium over then-prevailing market prices. Such provisions include the following:

Additional Classes and Series of Shares

Our trust agreement permits our board of trustees to issue additional classes or series of beneficial interests and to establish the preferences and
rights of any such securities. Thus, our board of trustees could authorize the issuance of beneficial interests with terms and conditions which
could have the effect of discouraging a takeover or other transaction in which holders of some, or a majority, of our shares might receive a
premium for their shares over then-prevailing market price of such shares.

Staggered Board
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Our board of trustees has three classes of managing trustees. The terms of the first, second and third classes will expire in 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively. Managing trustees for each class will be chosen for a three-year term upon the expiration of the current class term. The use of a
staggered board makes it more difficult for a third-party to acquire control over us.

The interests of the selling principals of Related may be in conflict with the interests of our shareholders

Because the selling principals of Related serve, along with others, as our managing trustees, there are ongoing conflicts of interests when we are
required to determine whether or not to take actions to enforce our rights under the various agreements entered into in connection with our
acquisition of Related. While any material decisions involving the selling principals of Related are subject to the vote of a majority of our
independent trustees, such decisions may create conflicts between us and these selling principals who are our managing trustees. In addition, we
have some obligations to the selling principals of Related which will require us to make choices with respect to how we operate our business
which may affect those obligations. For example, we have agreed to guarantee the payment to the selling principals of Related of all but $5
million of the distributions they would otherwise be entitled to receive under the operating agreement of CCC. In addition, we have agreed to
share cash flow from investment programs so that we and the selling principals of Related can receive payment of deferred fees. In addition,
TRCLP and its affiliates currently engage in businesses which compete with Related. The non-competition covenants contained in a future
relations agreement entered into by TRCLP and its affiliates in connection with our acquisition of Related prohibit TRCLP and its affiliates from
competing with any business currently engaged in by Related and our Company other than in specified areas, including providing (a) credit
enhancement on debt products secured by so-called 80/20 multi-family housing properties and (b) mezzanine financing to multi-family housing
properties other than so-called tax credit properties. There can be no assurance that we and TRCLP and its affiliates would not directly compete
for similar products and opportunities in these areas in the future.

The selling principals of Related have significant voting power on matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders

In connection with our acquisition of Related, each of the selling principals of Related were issued one special preferred voting share for each
special common unit they received. The special preferred voting shares entitle each holder thereof to vote on all matters subject to a vote of the
holders of our common shares. The selling principals of Related, all of whom, except TRCLP, are now employees of Related, received special
preferred voting shares that in the aggregate represent approximately 8.1% of our voting power. TRCLP and Mr. Ross control approximately
17.5% of our voting power. As such, Mr. Ross and, if they vote as a block, the other selling principals of Related will have significant voting
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power on all matters submitted to a vote of our common shareholders. These individuals could have significant influence over any shareholder
vote as a result of the issuance of the special preferred voting shares.

The integration of the management services of Related could adversely affect our results of operations

In connection with our acquisition of Related, we terminated our external management agreements with Related. Related employs certain
selling principals of Related and substantially all of the personnel that provided services to us prior to our acquisition of Related to perform
internally those functions formerly provided by it externally. There can be no assurance that costs or other factors associated with the
integration of Related and our Company will not adversely affect our future combined results of operations or that the expected benefits will
occur.

Sales in the public market of our common shares issuable in exchange for the SCUs issued in connection with our acquisition of Related could
adversely affect prevailing market prices of our shares

Future sales of substantial amounts of our common shares in the public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our shares.
Approximately 16,071,785 common shares are issuable in exchange for the SCUs issued to the selling principals and certain employees of
Related in connection with our acquisition of Related. In addition, we also granted approximately 778,420 restricted common shares to the
employees of Related at the closing of our acquisition of Related. Following the effectiveness of a registration statement relating to the common
shares issuable upon exchange of SCUs and the expiration of any lock-up agreements to which the common shares and restricted common
shares are subject, the sale in the public market of these common shares and restricted common shares could, and depending upon the number of
common shares and restricted common shares involved, likely would, adversely affect prevailing market prices of our shares. TRCLP and Mr.
Ross own 10,194,400 SCUs and 246,493 common shares which, subject to some exceptions, are not subject to a lock-up agreement. Sales in the
public market could reduce the market price of our common shares and our ability to raise additional capital through equity markets.

Additional Information

Additional information about us is also available at www.chartermac.com. We have made available, free of charge on or through our website,
our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports in Form 10-Q, current reports of Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after such material was electronically filed
with, or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ). Materials we filed with the SEC may be read and copies at the SEC s
Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NY, Washington D.C. 20549. This information may also be obtained by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0300. The SEC also maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information
regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov. We will provide a copy of any of the foregoing documents upon
request. None of the information on our website that is not otherwise expressly set forth or incorporated by reference in the Form 10-K is a part
of this Form 10-K.
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Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters is located at 625 Madison Avenue, New York, New York.

We also lease office space in other location as follows (See Note 16 Commitments and Contingencies of Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data):

Mineola, New York. In 1997, PWF entered into a 10 year, 2 month lease for an office facility. The lease expires in 2007.

Bernardsville, New Jersey. In 1999, PWF entered into a 5 year lease for an office facility. The lease expires in 2004.

Dallas, Texas. In 2000, PWF entered into a 5 year lease for an office facility. The lease expires in 2005.

We and Related believe that these facilities are suitable for current requirements and contemplated future operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to routine litigation and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not believe that
such matters will have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On October 24, 2003, the New York Supreme Court for Nassau County issued a final judgment approving the stipulation of compromise and
settlement of the class and derivative action entitled Dulitz v. Hirmes, which had challenged certain aspects of our acquisition of Related.
Pursuant to that settlement, certain terms of the acquisition will be modified, as fully detailed in our proxy statement that was previously mailed
to shareholders and filed with the SEC on September 5, 2003, together with the Notice of Pendency of Class and Derivative Action.

Although the defendants in the action denied all wrongdoing and believe they had meritorious defenses, the settlement eliminates the cloud of
litigation over the acquisition in connection with Dulitz and provides us and our shareholders with certain benefits described in the proxy
statement and Notice. The Court also approved an award pursuant to the settlement of $400,000 for attorney s fees and expenses payable by us
to the plaintiff s attorneys.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Shareholders
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By Notice of Annual Meeting Dated September 5, 2003, the Annual Meeting of Shareholders was scheduled for October 29, 2003 to consider
the following proposals: (i) the issuance of securities in connection with our acquisition of Related Capital, (ii) the amendment of our Trust
Agreement in connection with our acquisition of Related Capital, (iii) the expansion of our Incentive Share Plan, (iv) the re-election of Stuart J.
Boesky and Stephen M. Ross to our board of trustees, (v) the amendment of our Trust Agreement to clarify the definition of financing or
leverage and (vi) the adjournment of the Annual Meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies if there were not sufficient votes at the time of
the Annual Meeting to approve the proposals.

On October 29, 2003, the Annual Meeting was convened and the polls were opened. The polls were then closed only on the proposal to adjourn
the Annual Meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies if there were not sufficient votes at the time of the Annual Meeting to approve the
proposals, with shareholders voting to adjourn the meeting with respect to all other proposals. The meeting was rescheduled for November 17,
2003 at 10:00 am.

On November 17, 2003, the Annual Meeting reconvened and the polls were opened. Shareholders of record voted to approve (i) the issuance of
securities in connection with the acquisition of Related Capital, (ii) the amendment of our Trust Agreement in connection with the acquisition of
Related Capital, (iii) the re-election of Stuart J. Boesky and Stephen M. Ross to our board of trustees, and (iv) the amendment of our Trust
Agreement to clarify the definition of financing or leverage. The remaining proposal to approve the expansion of our incentive share option plan
did not yet receive a majority vote at the meeting. Therefore, the polls were closed on all of the other proposals and, pursuant to a shareholder
proposal adopted on the original meeting date, adjourned the meeting, keeping the polls open on the incentive share option plan proposal to
enable us to solicit votes from all remaining shareholders who have not voted. The adjourned meeting with respect to the proposal to expand our
incentive share option plan was rescheduled for November 26, 2003, at 10:00 a.m.

On November 26, 2003, the adjourned meeting convened and the poll with respect to the vote on the expansion of our incentive share option
plan was opened. At the meeting, the proposal to expand our Company s incentive share option plan was approved by a majority of the votes
entitled to be cast.

The following are the tallies from the three meetings:

On Oct. 29, the vote for proposal #VI to adjourn the meeting was as follows:

For: 33,177,561 (80)%

Against: 4,635,880 (1%

Abstain: 812,667 2)%
23
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There were 41,295,272 shares issued, outstanding and eligible to vote as of the record date of August 1, 2003 . The transfer agent tabulated
proxies representing 38,615,588 shares or 94 percent of the eligible voting shares.

On November 17, 2003, the vote for the proposals were as follows:

Acquisition of RCC- Securities

For: 22,843,337 (55)%
Against: 1,822,199 (4)%
Abstain: 1,121,552 3)%
No Vote: 14,327,315 (35)%

Proposal 11

Proposal
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Proposal V.

The transfer agent certifies that the number of shares issued, outstanding and eligible to vote as of the record date of August 1, 2003 were
41,295,272, and they tabulated proxies representing 40,114,403.7282 shares or 97 percent of the eligible voting shares.
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Amend & Restating the Trust Agreement

For:

Against:
Abstain:
No Vote:

For:
Against:

Instructed:

For:

Against:
Abstain:
No Vote:

22,722,925
1,941,848
1,122,315

14,327,314

Director Proposal

36,165,046
3,750,076
199,281

20,885,183
3,548,333
1,353,569

14,327,317

(55)%
(5)%
2)%

(35)%

(90)%
(9%
(1%

Amendment to the Trust Agreement

(51)%
(9)%
(3)%

(34)%

On November 26, 2003, the vote for Proposal #3 to amend the stock option plan was as follows:

Proposal

For:

Against:
Abstain:
No Vote:

20,804,046
5,260,706
1,455,954

12,131,940

(50.4)%
12.7)%

(3.5)%
29.4)%
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The transfer agent certified that the number of shares issued, outstanding and eligible to vote as of the record date of August 1, 2003 were
41,295,272, and they tabulated proxies representing 39,652,647.5471 shares or 96 percent of the eligible voting shares.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

As of March 12, 2004, there were 3,299 registered shareholders owning 44,468,778 common shares. Our Company s common shares have been
listed on the American Stock Exchange since October 1, 1997 under the symbol CHC . Prior to October 1, 1997, there was no established public
trading market for our common shares.

The high and low prices for each quarterly period of the last two years during which our common shares were traded are as follows:

2003 2002
Quarter Ended Low High Low High
March 31 $ 16.51 $ 1834 § 15.45 $ 16.79
June 30 $ 17.50 $ 1979 §$ 15.53 $ 18.20
September 30 $ 16.68 $ 19.62 $ 14.75 $ 18.19
December 31 $ 18.35 $ 21.86 $ 15.01 $ 18.44

The last reported sale price of common shares on the American Stock Exchange on March 10, 2004 was $21.55.

The following table provides information related to our incentive Share Option Plan as of December 31, 2003:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(a) (b) ©
Number of securities
remaining available for

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders

Proposal

Number of securities
issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

270,779

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

$ 18.19

future issuance under

equity compensation
plans (excluding securities

reflected in column a)

4,670,929 Q)]
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Totals 270,779 $ 18.19 4,670,929 (1)

Notes:

(1)  The Incentive Share Option Plan authorizes the issuance of options equal to 10% of the common shares
outstanding as of the December 31 preceding the issuance of new grants or options.

Common share Repurchase Plan

On October 9, 1998, the board of trustees authorized the implementation of a common share repurchase plan, enabling us to repurchase, from
time to time, up to 1,500,000 of our common shares. The repurchases, if any, are to be made in the open market and the timing is dependent on
the availability of common shares and other market conditions. As of December 31, 2003, we have acquired 22,632 of our common shares for
an aggregate purchase price of $378,464 (including commissions and service charges). Repurchased common shares are accounted for as
treasury common shares of beneficial interest.

Through November 17, 2003, two of our independent trustees are entitled to receive annual compensation for serving as trustees in the aggregate
amount of $17,500 payable in cash (maximum of $7,500 per year) and/or common shares valued at their fair market value on the date of
issuance. The third independent trustee is entitled to receive annual compensation in the aggregate amount of $30,000 payable in cash
(maximum of $20,000 per year) and/or common shares. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 1,728 and 1,830 common shares, respectively,
having an aggregate value on the date of issuance of $30,000 each year, were issued to the independent trustees as compensation for services
rendered during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. The independent trustees also received an aggregate of 5,535 shares, worth
$97,500 at the time of issuance, as payment for their work on the special committee analyzing the proposed acquisition of Related. After the
acquisition of Related, the

25

Proposal 50



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

five new independent trustees received $18,750 as compensation for their services rendered during the year ended December 31, 2003. In 2004,
all eight of the independent trustees will receive annual compensation of $30,000 payable in cash (maximum of $15,000 per year) and/or
common shares valued at their fair market value on the date of issuance.

Distribution Information

Distributions Per Share

Our earnings are allocated pro rata among the common shares and the Convertible CRA Shares (collectively, Shares ), and the Convertible CRA
Shares rank on parity with the common shares with respect to rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our Company. Quarterly
cash distributions per share for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Shareholders of the Company

Cash Distribution for Date Per Total Amount
Quarter Ended Paid Share Distributed
March 31, 2003 5/15/03 $ 0.32 $ 14,642,921
June 30, 2003 8/14/03 0.32 14,667,339
September 30, 2003 11/14/03 0.35 16,200,691
December 31, 2003 2/14/04 0.37 18,551,350
Total for 2003 $ 1.36 $ 64,062,301
March 31, 2002 5/15/02 $ 0.31 $ 13,340,885
June 30, 2002 8/14/02 0.31 13,342,358
September 30, 2002 11/14/02 0.32 14,139,587
December 31, 2002 2/14/03 0.32 14,296,126
Total for 2002 $ 1.26 $ 55,118,956

In addition to the distributions set forth in the table above, we paid Related Charter, as our manager prior to our acquisition of Related, a special
distribution (equal to .375% per annum of the total invested assets of the Company), which amounted to approximately $5.3 million for the
period January 1, 2003 to November 17, 2003, and $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

There are no material legal restrictions upon our present or future ability to make distributions in accordance with the provisions of our
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement. We do not believe that the financial covenants contained in our and our subsidiaries secured
indebtedness or in the terms of the preferred shares issued by Equity Issuer will have any adverse impact on our ability to make distributions in
the normal course of business to our common and Convertible CRA Shareholders. Future distributions paid by us will be at the discretion of the
trustees based upon evaluation of our actual cash flow, our financial condition, capital requirements and such other factors as the trustees deem
relevant.
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The information set forth below presents our selected financial data. Additional financial information is set forth in the audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto contained in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data .

OPERATIONS
Total revenues

Operating expenses

Interest expense and financing
costs

Other-than-temporary
impairments related to
investments in revenue bonds

Equity in earnings of ARCap

Gain/(Loss) on repayment of
revenue bonds and sales of
loans

Income before allocation to
preferred shareholders and
minority interest

Income allocated to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary

Income allocated to SCUs
Income allocated to minority
interest

Income before provision for
income taxes

Benefit (provision) for income
taxes

Net income

Net income applicable to
Shareholders (2)

Net income per Share (2)
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average Shares
outstanding

Proposal

2003

$ 152,210

(52,871)

(33,335)

(1,759)
2,219

7,483

73,947

(9,449)
(4,038)

54

60,514

6,072

$ 66,586

$ 61,248

$ 1.31
$ 1.31

For the Year Ended December 31, ($000s except for share data)

2002

$ 116,413

(33,397)

(19,004)

(920)
2,219

14,568

79,879

(17,266)

(496)

62,117

(1,284)

$ 60,833

$ 55,905

$ 1.31
$ 1.31

$

2001

74,625

(6,074)

(16,132)

(400)
456

(912)

51,563

(12,578)

38,985

38,985

35,010

1.14
1.14

2000
$ 59,091
(4,563)
(16,488)
645
38,685
(8,594)
30,091
$ 30,091
$ 27,074
$ 1.22
$ 1.22

1999

40,437

(3,151)

(8,768)

(1,859)

(463)

26,196

(3,014)

23,182

23,182

20,951

1.02
1.02
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Basic 46,653,270 42,697,195 30,782,161 22,140,576 20,580,756

Diluted 46,735,232 42,768,139 30,837,340 22,152,239 20,580,756

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets $ 2,583,273 $ 1,852,868 $ 1,421,059 $ 925,236 $ 673,791

Financing arrangements $ 900,008 $ 671,659 $ 541,796 $ 385,026 $ 257,770

Notes payable $ 153350  $ 68,556 % 56,586  $ $

Total liabilities $ 1,473416  $ 821,031 $ 663,659 $ 399,222 $ 268,239

Preferred shares of subsidiary

(subject to mandatory

repurchase) $ 273,500 $ 273,500 $ 218,500 $ 169,000 $ 90,000

Total shareholders

equity/partners capital $ 817,657 $ 753,515 $ 535,248 $ 357,014 $ 315,552

DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to Series A

preferred shareholders $ 5,962,500 $ 5,962,500 $ 5,962,500 $ 5,962,500 $ 3,014,375

Distributions to Series A-1

preferred shareholders $ 1,704,000 $ 1,704,000 $ 1,704,000 $ 762,067 N/A

Distributions to Series B

preferred shareholders $ 4,180,000 $ 4,180,000 $ 4,180,000 $ 1,869,389 N/A

Distributions to Series A-2

preferred shareholders $ 1,953,000 $ 1,953,000 $ 444,850 N/A N/A

Distributions to Series B-1

preferred shareholders $ 1,258,000 $ 1,258,000 $ 286,544 N/A N/A

Distributions to Series A-3

preferred shareholders $ 2,040,000 $ 1,173,000 N/A N/A N/A

Distributions to Series B-2

preferred shareholders $ 1,800,000 $ 1,035,000 N/A N/A N/A

Distributions to Shareholders

2) $ 64,062,301 $ 55,118,956 $ 36,607,592 $ 23,973,872 $ 20,478,112

Distributions per share (1) $ 137 $ 126 $ .14  $ 1.07 $ 1.00
27
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Other Data

(1) Distributions per share are the same for both common shares and Convertible CRA Shares.

(2) Includes common shareholders and Convertible CRA Shareholders.

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forward-looking statements include statements
regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of us and our management and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among other things, the following: general
economic and business conditions, which will, among other things, affect the availability and creditworthiness of prospective tenants, lease rents
and the terms and availability of financing for properties financed by revenue bonds owned by us; adverse changes in the real estate markets
including, among other things, competition with other companies; risks of real estate development and acquisition; government actions and
initiatives; and environment/safety requirements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date hereof.

Overview

We are one of the nation s leading full-service multi-family finance companies. We focus on providing both capital solutions to developers and
owners of multi-family rental housing throughout the country, as well as quality investment products to institutional and retail investors.
Collectively, we and our subsidiaries offer financing for every part of a multi-family property s capital structure.

We are a Delaware statutory trust. Our subsidiaries which hold the tax-exempt revenue bonds are either treated as partnerships or disregarded
for federal income tax purposes, and therefore we pay no federal income taxes on this portion of our income. This tax-exempt income is passed
along, in the form of distributions, to our shareholders.

Conversely, our mortgage banking, fund management and credit enhancement activities are conducted in subsidiaries organized as corporations,
and generate taxable income, which is also passed along, in the form of distributions, to our shareholders.
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Portfolio Investing and Low Income Housing Tax Credits

A large portion of our business, as it currently structured, focuses on providing debt financing to developers of affordable, multi-family housing,
which we accomplish by investing in tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by state and local governments or their agencies to finance affordable

multi-family housing. These tax-exempt revenue bonds have tax credits attached to them, which are passed along to investors. Typically, the
investors acquire a direct limited partnership interest in an upper-tier, or investment partnership. The investment
partnership, in turn, invests as a limited partner in one or more lower-tier, or operating partnerships, that own and
operate the housing projects.

The tax credits are allocated on a state-by-state basis for investments in qualifying affordable housing properties. The tax credit rate is set by the
Internal Revenue Service and is earned over a ten year period starting at the point the construction or rehabilitation is completed. The property
must continue to qualify as an affordable housing property for an additional 5 years, or a portion of the tax credits can be recaptured.

Limited partners in the investment partnerships are most often corporations who are able to utilize the tax benefits and, in most cases, derive no
economic benefit from the investment other than the expected tax credits and tax losses from the operations. In some cases, in conjunction with
the final disposition of the property, there may be some additional return to the limited partners. Investors, however, anticipate that the
partnership will generate housing credits and tax losses, including depreciation and interest expense, over the life of the property, which will be
almost entirely allocated to the limited partners.

We also guarantee third party mortgage loans and tax credit specified returns to investors in tax credit equity funds, for which we receive a fee.
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The table below shows selected information regarding our portfolio investing activities:

For the Year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Acquisitions $ 432,195 $ 457,060 $ 295,962
Weighted average interest net of revenue bonds

acquired 6.33% 6.98% 7.53%
Revenue bonds repaid $ 84,631 $ 118,000 $ 24,030
Revenue bond interest income $ 113,665 $ 92,681 $ 71,500
Interest expense and securitizations fees $ 33,335 $ 19,004 $ 16,132
Loss on impairment of revenue bonds $ 1,759 $ 920 $ 400
Gain (loss) on repayments of revenue bonds $ 1,951 $ 3,885 $ (912)

The fair value and gross unrealized losses of our revenue bonds aggregated by length of time that individual bonds have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2003, is summarized in the table below:

Less than 12 Months
(In thousands) 12 Months or More Total
Fair value $ 216,743 $ 36,660 $ 253,403
Gross unrealized loss $ (5,789) $ 2,777) $ (8,565)

Our ability to find attractive investments have been strong and we expect it to continue to be so. Our intent is to diversify our revenue bond
holdings, both in terms of geographic regions and relationships with developers. We intend to maintain our current market share in states where
we already have a strong presence and identify regions where we can increase our presence.

The low interest rate environment was extremely favorable for us in 2003. BMA, the short-term tax-exempt index, continues to be at historic
lows, having averaged only 1.03% for the year ended December 31, 2003 and remaining under 1% since the beginning of 2004. Our weighted
average cost of debt at December 31, 2003 was approximately 2.5%, taking into effect our current hedging. We continue to recognize healthy
spreads between our cost of borrowing and the interest rates on our revenue bonds. The interest rates on our tax exempt first mortgage bonds for
2003 had a weighted average permanent interest rate of 6.5% and our entire tax-exempt first mortgage bond portfolio had a weighted average
interest rate of 6.8% at year end.

Based upon recent comments by the Federal Reserve Board, we believe short term rates will remain relatively low throughout most of 2004.
Therefore, we have decided to focus our hedging activity on 2005 and beyond. We have entered into six different TBMA swap transactions with
an aggregate notional amount of $450 million, all which provide protection beginning in 2005. These swaps have a weighted average term of 4
years.
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We face increasing levels of competition both in terms of new competitors and new competing products. Some of our competitions have
substantially greater financial and operational resources than we do. However, we believe we are able to effectively compete based on our long
standing relationships with developers, our Direct Purchase Program and our broad array of product offerings. We continually seek to develop
new products that will compete not only with other tax-exempt lending products, but with the expansive number of taxable products that exist in
the market place.

Mortgage Banking

Through PWF, we are also a mortgage banker, originating and servicing multi-family mortgage loans on behalf of government sponsored
entities (GSEs), including, among others, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and FHA. PWF originates third party mortgage loans, for which it receives
origination fees. PWF initially funds the loans, which are subsequently purchased by the GSEs. PWF retains the mortgage servicing rights
(MSRs) on mortgages that it originates and receives fees for providing that service. We have exposure to loss related to the MSRs PWF retains
in connection with the loans originated for Fannie Mae, pursuant to the terms of a master loss sharing agreement with Fannie Mae.

The table below shows selected information regarding PWF s mortgage banking activities:

For the Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2003 2002

Originations $ 604,579 $ 698,893
Total loans serviced $ 4,114,293 $ 3,237,197
Mortgage servicing rights $ 33,350 $ 35,595
Mortgage servicing fees $ 4,683 $ 7,971
Mortgage origination fees $ 9,029 $ 5,710

While PWF s loan originations declined in 2003 compared to 2002, of the loans closed in 2003, nearly three-quarters were new loans rather than
portfolio refinancings, which add valuable new servicing to the portfolio.

We are committed to aggressively growing PWF s market share as an agency lender and have begun to make strides to do so. Last year, PWF
was selected as one of 4 Freddie Mac Program Plus Seller/Servicers approved to originate targeted affordable loans for Freddie Mac on a
national basis, as part of Freddie Mac s push to increase their presence in the affordable housing market. We believe that this designation should
increase the amount of our Freddie Mac deal flow.
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In November, PWF opened an office in Kansas City, which should increase our presence in the Midwest. This individual will be focusing on
managing our Company s market-rate multifamily product lines.

We continue to offer a wide array of competitive products to multi-family developers, but are continually working with Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac, FHA and Ginnie Mae to develop new, attractive products and to participate in new lending programs they may initiate.

Fund Management

Through our acquisition on November 17, 2003, of Related, we now provide management services to real estate equity investment funds we
sponsor and a publicly traded real estate investment trust that originates and acquires a variety of taxable construction, permanent, bridge,
mezzanine and participating mortgage debt for multi-family housing. The funds we sponsor are the upper tier investment funds, discussed
above, that provide low-income housing tax credits for investors.

This is a new line of business for us, which we expect will generate significant revenues. Related s fund management activities generate
origination and acquisition fees associated with originating real estate equities investment funds and acquiring the assets that will be included in
these funds. Related also receives asset management fees and partnership management fees for the services we perform for the funds we
sponsor once they are operating.

Related had a record year in 2003. While Related s efforts from January 1 to November 17 did not impact us directly, Related raised over $890.4
million in tax credit equity from institutional investors for its investment funds, which is a 14% increase over 2002. This represents an
approximate 15% market share for all tax credit equity raised in 2003, which clearly makes Related one of the leading tax credit fund managers.

Our acquisition of Related has enabled us to accomplish many of our goals. First, we are now internally managed, which has eliminated any
perceived conflicts of interest in the market place and should broaden our access to capital. Internalizing management has also created a more
effective cost structure for a Company of our size. Second, the acquisition diversifies our revenue streams. Similar to our mortgage banking
subsidiary, PWF, Related derives its revenue from fee income, which is much less interest rate sensitive and much less capital intensive than our
core portfolio investing business.

We face many competitors, some of whom have substantially greater financial and operational resources than we do. However, we feel we can
effectively compete due to our on-going relationships with certain developers.

To the extent the economy softens in certain markets, we may not be able to find sufficient investments that meet our investment criteria.
Additionally continued consolidation especially within the banking industry may decrease our investor pool.

Results of Operations
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The following is a summary of our operations for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Net income for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was approximately $66.6 million, $60.8 million and $39.0 million, respectively.

Revenues

For the Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2003 2002 % Change 2001 % Change
Revenue bond interest income $ 113,655 $ 92,681 22.6% $ 71,500 29.6%
Fee income
Mortgage banking fees 13,712 13,681 2% N/A N/A
Fund management fees 12,643 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other income 12,200 10,051 21.4% 3,125 221.6%
Total revenues $ 152,210 $ 116,413 30.8% $ 74,625 56.0%

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by approximately 30.8% or $35.8 million over 2002, primarily due to increases
in revenue bond interest income of approximately 22.6% or $21.0 million and $12.6 million in fund management fees.

The increase in revenue bond interest income is primarily due to new bonds acquired during the fourth quarter of 2002 and during 2003. The
increase in fund management fees represents the fee income earned by Related for the period from November 18, 2003 to December 31, 2003.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002, increased by approximately 56.0%, or $41.8 million over 2001, primarily due to increases
in revenue bond interest income of approximately 29.6% or $21.2 million and $13.7 million in mortgage banking fees.

The increase in revenue bond interest income is primarily due to new bonds acquired during the fourth quarter of 2001 and during 2002. The
increase in mortgage banking fees represents PWF s fees subsequent to our acquisition of PWF in December 2001.

30

Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2003 2002 % Change 2001 % Change
Interest expense $ 19,859 $ 15,823 255%  $ 13,641 16.0%
Interest expense  distribution to
preferred shareholders of subsidiary 9,448 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Recurring fees  securitizations 4,028 3,181 26.6% 2,491 27.7%
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General and administrative 40,945 24,506 67.1% 5,209 370.5%
Depreciation and amortization 11,926 8,891 34.1% 865 927.9%
Loss on impairment of assets 1,759 920 91.2% 400 130.0%
Total expenses $ 87,965 $ 53,321 65.0% $ 22,606 135.9%

Total expenses increased approximately 65.0% or $34.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 versus 2002, primarily due to increases
of 67.1%, or $16.4 million in General and Administrative expenses and $9.4 million in interest expense represented by distributions to our
preferred shareholders.

The increase in General and Administrative expenses is predominantly due to our acquisition of Related and the associated recognition of
approximately $12.6 million in expenses for the period from November 18, 2003 through December 31, 2003. The largest components of
Related s General and Administrative expenses are approximately $6.4 million in salaries and benefits and approximately $4.3 million in
origination and offering ( O&O ) costs. We initially record all O&O costs associated with the set up of new investment partnerships as
receivables and immediately charge the total to expense, due to the fact we are not able to reliably quantify the amount of O&O expenses the
investments will reimburse to us. To the extent these costs are reimbursed by the investment funds, we reverse the expense.

The increase in interest expense  distribution to preferred shareholders of subsidiary when compared to the 2002 reclassified amount of income
allocated to preferred shareholders is approximately $1.6 million, attributable to the preferred offering consummated on June 4, 2002.

Total expenses increased approximately 135.9%, or $30.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 versus 2001, primarily due to increases
of approximately $19.3 million in General and Administrative expenses and $8.0 million in depreciation and amortization.

The increase in General and Administrative expenses was primarily due to our acquisition of PWF and the growth of our Company.
Depreciation and amortization increased in 2002 from 2001 primarily due to the amortization of PWF s mortgage servicing rights.

Other Items

For the Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2003 2002 % Change 2001 % Change
Equity in earnings of ARCap $ 2,219 $ 2,219 $ 456 386.6%
Gain on sale of loans 5,532 10,683 (48.2)% N/A
Gain(loss) on repayment of revenue
bonds 1,951 3,885 (49.8)% 912) N/A
Income allocated to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary (9,449) (17,266) (45.3)% (12,578) 37.2%
Income allocated to special common
units (4,038)
Loss(income) allocated to minority
interest 54 (496) N/A
Benefit(provision) for income taxes 6,072 (1,284) N/A
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Gains on sales of loans decreased approximately 48.2% or $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 versus 2002, due to the decrease
in PWF s loan origination activity in 2003 versus 2002.

The total income allocated to preferred shareholders of subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2003, including the portion reclassified to
interest expense, increased approximately $1.6 million as compared to 2002, attributable to the preferred offering consummated on June 4, 2002.

The income allocated to special common units represents the distributions payable to the holders of the SCUs for the period from November 18,
2003 to December 31, 2003.
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The change in the benefit (provision) for income taxes results from the receipt of guarantee fee, construction service fees, asset management and
partnership management fees which are recognized currently for income tax purpose but earned over the time such services are preformed.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded a gain on repayment of revenue bonds of approximately $3.9 million versus a loss of
approximately $912,000 in 2001, due to differences in the number and size of revenue bonds repaid.

Income allocated to preferred shareholders of subsidiary increased 49.8% or $4.7 million due to preferred offerings consummated on October 9,
2001 and June 4, 2002.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Short-term liquidity provided by operations comes primarily from interest income from revenue bonds and promissory notes in excess of the
related financing costs, mortgage origination and servicing fees, and fund management fees. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we had net
cash from operations of approximately $112.1 million. Additionally, we have entered into three revolving warehouse facilities, one, in the
amount of $100 million, used by PWF, another, in the amount of $75 million, used by us to fund mortgage loans and investments in revenue
bonds on a short term basis and the third in the amount of $85 million used by Related to acquire equity interests in property ownership entities
prior to the inclusion of these equity interests into investment funds. The PWF facility is renewable annually, the CharterMac facility matures
March 31, 2005, with a one year extension at our option, and the Related facility matures on October 29, 2004.

On November 17, 2003, CM Corp. entered into $50 million and $10 million acquisition bridge loan facilities with Wachovia Bank in order to
fund the cash portion, fees and expenses of our acquisition of Related. These bridge loan facilities have a nine-month term with two 90-day
extension options. We have pledged our common ownership interest in Equity Issuer as security under these facilities. The facilities are
pre-payable at any time and bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.5% and 2.4%, respectively.

Our long term liquidity needs are met using primarily two sources of capital: collateralized debt securitization and various types of equity
offerings. We believe that our financing capacity and cash flow from current operations are adequate to meet our current and projected liquidity
requirements. Management is not aware of any trends or events, commitments or uncertainties, which have not otherwise been disclosed that
will or are likely to impact liquidity in a material way.

The following table summarizes, on a gross basis, our and our subsidiaries capital raising activities.

Amount of Capital Raised During (in $000 s):

Capital Source 2003 2002 2001 and prior
Equity:

Preferred

Series A $ $ 30,000 $ 145,000
Series B 25,000 73,500
Convertible CRA 103,197 34,000 35,596
Total $ 103,197 $ 89,000 $ 254,096
Common $ $ 92,835 $ 177,823
Securitizations:

MBIA

Floater Certificates $ (73,000)(1) $ 106,500 $ 350,000
Auction Rate 100,000 -
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P-Floats/RITES 101,348
Fixed Rate 100,000
Total $ 228,348
Other Debt:

PW Acquisition Facility $ (2,044)(2)
Related Warehouse Line 24,532
PW Warehouse Line (19,424)(3)
Fleet Line of Credit 21,730
Wachovia Bank Loan 60,000
Total $ 84,794
Total of all capital activity $ 416,339

(1) Negative amount is due to the restructuring of the MBIA program.

(2) Negative amount is due to the principal pay down of the PW Acquisition Facility.

(3) Negative amount is due to the principal pay down of the PW Warehouse Line.

Convertible Community Reinvestment Act Preferred Share Offerings

$

$

23,272

129,772

11,969

11,969

323,576

191,887

541,887

27,261

29,325

56,586

1,030,392

We first issued Convertible CRA Shares during 2000. Since then the program has become increasingly popular with a broad range of banks that
invest in our shares to both make an investment in us and to make a qualifying Community Reinvestment Act investment. At December 31,

2003 26 different banks had invested in our Convertible CRA Shares.
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During 2003 we issued 5,738,053 Convertible CRA Shares raising gross proceeds of approximately $103.2 million. At December 31, 2003, we
had 8,179,761 shares outstanding, of which 1,351,636 shares are convertible at the holders options into 1,275,512 common shares. The
remaining 6,828,125 shares are convertible on a one-to-one basis. Our Convertible CRA Shares continue to be a viable method to raise capital,
which we intend to continue to use in the future.

Securitizations and Debt Financings

We use floating rate securitization programs to leverage our portfolio of revenue bonds to generate capital for the acquisition of additional
revenue bonds. In each of our securitization programs, we contribute revenue bonds into trusts, which are generally credit enhanced by
investment grade rated third party entities and then floating rate certificates are sold out of the trust. We retain a residual interest in each of the
trusts.
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We use two primary securitization programs: MBIA securitizations and P-Floats/Rites ( P-Float ) program.

Under our MBIA securitizations, pools of bonds are contributed into trusts, which are credit enhanced by MBIA, a large financial insurer, and
then low-floater certificates are sold. The low-floater certificates sold have an interest rate that is reset weekly ( floating rate ) or an interest rate
that is reset periodically based on a dutch auction process ( auction rate securitizations ). MBIA has agreed to provide us with up to $650 million
in credit enhancement through 2011. Using the MBIA credit enhancement we can complete up to $425 million of floating rate securitizations

and $225 million of auction rate securitization. At December 31, 2003, we had $383.5 million of floating rate securitization and $100.0 million

of auction rate securitizations outstanding.

In the P-Floats program, Merrill Lynch deposits individual revenue bonds into a special purpose trust and provides a credit enhancement
guarantee enabling the trust to sell a weekly reset floating rate security. We are required to post additional bonds with Merrill Lynch as
collateral for the credit enhancement provided. At December 31, 2003, we had approximately $316.5 million outstanding revenue bonds under
the P-Floats program

During 2003, we completed an new fixed rate securitization, whereby we sold $100 million of two-year certificates with a fixed rate of 3.25%
collateralized by $196.8 million bonds and requiring no credit enhancement.

Our continued ability to raise capital through the use of securitization programs is dependent on the following factors: (i) the availability of
seasoned bonds to be used in securitizations or as excess collateral; (ii) the depth of the market of buyers for tax-exempt floating rate
investments and (iii) our ability to maintain and expand our relationships with credit enhancers.

We continue to actively manage our balance sheet and our relationships to mitigate the impact of the factors listed above and to continue to
diversify our sources of capital.

We believe that our current financing capacity and cash flow from current operations are adequate to meet our current and projected liquidity
requirements.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are based on the selection and application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
These estimates and assumptions sometimes involve future events which cannot be determined with absolute certainty. Therefore, our
determination of estimates requires that we exercise our judgment. While we have used our best estimates based on the facts and circumstances
available to us at the time, different results may actually occur and any such differences could be material to our financial statements.

We believe the following policies may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity and represent the critical accounting policies used in
the preparation of our financial statements.
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Investment in revenue bonds

We account for our investments in revenue bonds as available-for-sale debt securities under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities ( SFAS 115 ) due to a provision in most of our revenue
bonds under which we have a right to require redemption of the revenue bonds prior to their maturity, although we can and may elect to hold
them up to their maturity dates unless otherwise modified. As such, SFAS 115 requires us to classify these investments as available-for-sale.
Accordingly, investments in revenue bonds are carried at their estimated fair values, with unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains or losses do not affect the cash flow generated from property operations, distributions to
shareholders, the characterization of the tax-exempt income stream or the financial obligations under the revenue bonds.
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If, in our judgment, it is determined probable that we will not receive all contractual payments required, when they are due, the revenue bond is
deemed impaired and is written down to its then estimated fair value, with the amount of the write-down accounted for as a realized loss.

Because revenue bonds have a limited market, we estimate the fair value for each bond as the present value of its expected cash flows using a
discount rate for comparable tax-exempt investments. This process is based upon projections of future economic events affecting the real estate
collateralizing the bonds, such as property occupancy rates, rental rates, operating cost inflation, market capitalization rates and an appropriate
market rate of interest, all of which are based on good faith estimates and assumptions developed by us. Changes in market conditions and
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circumstances may occur which would cause these estimates and assumptions to change; therefore, actual results may vary from the estimates
and the variance may be material.

For certain revenue bonds, we believe that certain factors have impacted the near-term fair value. In these instances, the revenue bonds are
valued at either the outstanding face amount of the bond or management s estimate of the fair value, whichever is lower.

Mortgage Banking Activities

PWF is an approved seller/servicer of multi-family mortgage loans for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae. For Fannie Mae, PWF is
approved under the DUS program. Under DUS, upon obtaining a commitment from Fannie Mae with regard to a particular loan, Fannie Mae
commits to acquire the mortgage loan based upon PWF s underwriting and PWF agrees to bear a portion of the risk of potential losses in the
event of a default. Fannie Mae commitments may be made to acquire the mortgage loan for cash or in exchange for a mortgage-backed security
backed by the mortgage loan. As a Program Plus lender for Freddie Mac, Freddie Mac agrees to acquire for cash from PWF loans for which
PWF has issued commitments. Ginnie Mae agrees to exchange FHA-insured mortgages originated by PWF for Ginnie Mae securities.

Mortgage loans originated for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae are closed in the name of PWF, which uses corporate cash obtained by
borrowing from a warehouse lender to fund the loans. Approximately a week to a month following closing of a loan, loan documentation and an
assignment are delivered to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, or a document custodian on its behalf and the cash purchase price or
mortgage-backed security is delivered to PWF. PWF uses the cash it receives to repay its warehouse loans and the mortgage-backed securities
are sold pursuant to prior agreements for cash, which is also used to repay warehouse loans. PWF also underwrites and originates multi-family
and commercial mortgages for insurance companies and banks.

PWF receives origination fees which are included in mortgage banking fees in the consolidated statements of income. Neither we nor PWF
retains any interest in any of the mortgage loans, except for mortgage servicing rights ( MSRs ) and certain liabilities under the loss-sharing
arrangement with Fannie Mae.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

PWF recognizes as assets the rights to service mortgage loans for others, whether the MSRs are acquired through a separate purchase or through
loan origination, by allocating total costs incurred between the loan and the MSRs retained based on their relative fair value. MSRs are being
carried at their adjusted cost basis. MSRs are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income.

We have two areas of loss exposure related to PWF s lending activities. First, while a loan is recorded on the balance sheet, there is exposure to
potential loss if a loan becomes impaired and defaults. Second, we have exposure to loss due to the retention of a portion of credit risk within
PWF s servicing contract under the Fannie Mae DUS program.
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When a loan is owned by PWF and recorded on the balance sheet, PWF identifies loans that are impaired and evaluates the allowance for loss on
a specific loan basis for losses believed to currently exist in the recorded loan portfolio. An impaired loan is defined, as noted within accounting
guidance, when PWF determine it is probable that not all required contractual payments will be made when due. PWF s primary tool for
determining which loans are likely to currently have a loss associated with them is to evaluate the debt service coverage ratio based on PWF s
historical experience of similar properties and the frequency of such losses. Loans that are impaired and specific loans that are not impaired but
have debt service coverage ratios below a certain threshold, which indicates a high likelihood of future foreclosure and currently have an
existing loss, are evaluated. The estimate of currently existing loss includes the estimated severity of the loss which would include any advances
made or existing property loss. Property maintenance costs (when foreclosure occurs) are expensed when incurred and not included in the loss
estimate. However, as most loans are sold very quickly after origination, there typically is not a significant amount of loan loss allowance
recorded.
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We have exposure to loss due to PWF s retention of a portion of credit risk within PWF s servicing contract under the Fannie Mae DUS program.
For loans which have been sold as commercial mortgage-backed securities for which PWF retains the servicing under Fannie Mae s DUS
program, PWF s share of loss is associated with the servicing contract and determined in accordance with the loss sharing provisions under the
program. Prior to the issuance of Interpretation No. 45, Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ( FIN 45 ), because the loss sharing on these serviced loans was associated with the servicing contract, they
were valued within the servicing right and the anticipated cash flows that are associated with such servicing activities. We have determined that
these potential losses are guarantees under the definition of FIN 45 and therefore, record an asset and a corresponding liability based on our
estimate of the portion of the servicing cash flows deemed to represent compensation for our guarantee for loans originated on/or after January
1,2003. On an ongoing basis, we will account for the asset by offsetting cash received for the guarantee against the asset and crediting interest
income for the change in asset due to the passage of time. The portion of the liability representing an accrual for probable losses under SFAS

No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( FAS 5 ) is adjusted as loss estimates change; the portion representing our willingness to stand by as
guarantor will be amortized over the expected life of the guarantee.
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We derive revenues from a variety of investments and guarantees, summarized as follows:

Revenue Bond Interest Income - Interest income is recognized at the stated rate as it accrues and when collectibility of
future amounts is reasonably assured. Participating interest is recognized when received. Interest income from
revenue bonds with modified terms or where the collectibility of future amounts is uncertain is recognized based upon
expected cash receipts. Certain construction revenue bonds carry
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different interest rates during the construction and permanent financing periods. In these cases, we calculate the effective yield on the revenue
bond and use that rate to recognize interest income over the life of the bond.

Mortgage Banking Fees

Mortgage Banking Fees - PWF fees earned for arranging financings under the Fannie Mae DUS product line or on behalf
of Freddie Mac, insurance companies and banks or other lenders are recorded at the point the financing commitment is
accepted or the mortgagor and the interest rate of the mortgage loan is fixed.

Mortgage Servicing Fees - PWF receives fees for servicing the loans it has originated or purchased. This income is
recognized on an accrual basis over the estimated life of the loans being serviced.

Fund Management Fees

Origination Fees  Origination fees include both property acquisition fees and partnership management fees which are
received by Related from the proceeds raised at formation of the investment funds. Property acquisition fees
(generally 2% to 4% of equity raised) are for services performed in connection with the acquisition of interests in
property-owning partnerships and are recognized when the earnings process is complete and collectibility is
reasonably assured, which is defined as the date the investor equity is raised and the properties have been acquired by
the investment fund. Partnership management fees (generally 1% of equity raised) are for services to be performed by
Related for (i) maintaining the books and records of the investment fund, including requisite investor reporting, and
(i1) monitoring the acquired property interests to ensure that their development, leasing and operations comply with
low income housing or other tax credit requirements. Related recognizes these fees when such services are rendered,
which, per the partnership agreements, are contractually over five years following the initial closing of the investment
fund, using the straight-line method.

Acquisition Fees  Acquisition fees are earned upon acquisition of investments by publicly-held entities for which Related
acts as the advisor. These fees are calculated as a percentage of the purchase price of investments acquired, up to 1%.

Development Fees  Development fees are earned from properties co-developed by Related with unaffiliated developers
and sold to investment funds. Recognition of development fees is based on completion and stabilization of properties,
after guarantees of completion and deficits are no longer deemed to require funding. The guarantees are issued by
another one of our subsidiaries on behalf of Related and as required by the investment fund.
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Asset Management Fees - Related earns asset management fees from its investment funds on an annual basis calculated based on a percentage of
each investment fund s invested assets, generally 0.5%. These fees are paid from the investment fund s available working capital balances, and
are earned by Related for managing the Underlying Property assets of the investment fund. These fees are recorded monthly as earned, but only
when the management of Related determines that collection is reasonably assured based on the investment funds working capital balance.
Amounts not recorded as revenues, due to inadequate working capital at the investment fund level, are due upon sale or refinancing of the fund s
properties; receipt of such amounts is highly uncertain. The alternative accounting would be to accrue the full amount of the fees and then
reserve for the portion that management estimates will not be paid until there is a sale or refinancing of the Underlying Properties in the
investment fund. Related believes that the assessment of collectibility is an integral part of revenue recognition; if this factor was not
considered, net income and assets could be materially overstated. The investment funds are separate legal entities that are subject to factors and
market conditions that are beyond the control of Related, and may not generate adequate cash to pay all fees due to Related.

Other Income

Interest Income from Promissory Notes and Mortgages Receivable - Interest on mortgage loans and notes receivable is recognized
on the accrual basis as it becomes due. Deferred loan origination costs and fees are amortized over the life of the
applicable loan as an adjustment to interest income, using the interest method. Interest which was accrued is reversed
out of income if deemed to be uncollectible.

Other Interest Income - Interest income from temporary investments, such as cash in banks and short-term instruments, is
recognized on the accrual basis as it becomes due.

Construction Service Fees - CM Corp. receives fees, in advance, from borrowers for servicing revenue bonds during the
construction period. These fees are deferred and amortized into other income over the anticipated construction period.

Credit Enhancement and Guarantee Fees - CM Corp. and Related receive fees for providing credit enhancement and for
backing up primary guarantors obligations to guarantee agreed upon internal rates of return to the investors in
programs sponsored by Related. The credit enhancement fees are received monthly and recognized in other income
when received. The guarantee fees are deferred and recognized in other income on a prorata basis over the guarantee
periods.

Equity in Earnings of ARCap - Our equity in the earnings of ARCap is accrued at the preferred dividend rate of 12% on the
preferred shares we hold, unless ARCap does not have earnings and cash flows adequate to meet this dividend
requirement.

Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We have entered into several derivative instruments, including an interest rate cap, forward commitments and interest rate swaps, all of which
are accounted for under the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities
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( SFAS 133 ), as amended and interpreted. We have designated the interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges on the variable interest payments on
our floating rate securitizations. Two of the interest rate swaps do not become effective until 2005. The two interest rate swaps that are
currently in place, are recorded at their respective fair market value each accounting period, with changes in market value being recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent the hedges are effective in achieving offsetting cash flows. These hedges have been
perfectly effective, so have generated no ineffectiveness that needs to be included in earnings. The effectiveness of the other two swaps is being
measured using the hypothetical swap method, until they go into effect in 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2003, there was no
ineffectiveness related to these two swaps. Had there been any ineffectiveness or should there be any ineffectiveness in the future, the amount
would have flowed or will flow through our consolidated statements of income. The interest rate cap, although designed to mitigate our
exposure to rising interest rates, was not designated as a hedging derivative; therefore, any change in fair market value flows through the
consolidated statements of income, where it is included in interest income. The forward commitments create derivative instruments under SFAS
133, which have been designated as cash flow hedges of the anticipated funding of the Revenue Bonds, and, as such, are recorded at fair value,
with changes in fair value recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income until the revenue bonds are funded.

Income Taxes
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Effective July 1, 2001, we began operation of a new wholly owned, taxable subsidiary, CM Corp., which conducts most of our taxable business,
including any mortgage servicing activities and fund management activities in which we may engage. We provide for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( FAS 109 ). FAS 109 requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.

Share Options and Share Awards

We have issued options to employees for our common shares. We have issued restricted common shares to non-employees and employees,
some of which vested immediately upon issuance and some of which vest over various periods ranging from nine months to four years.
Additionally, we have issued SCUs of CCC to some employees, which vest in 2006 and 2007.

We account for our share options in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. ~Accordingly,
compensation cost is accrued based on the estimated fair value of the options issued, and amortized over the vesting period. Because vesting of

the options is contingent upon the recipient continuing to provide services to us until the vesting date, we estimate the fair value of the share
options at each period-end up to the vesting date, and adjust the expense accordingly. The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

Our share awards have been recorded as a separate deferred compensation line in the equity section of our consolidated financial statements.
The amount of the deferred compensation expense was calculated as the number of shares awarded at the average of the high and low price of
our common shares at the date of award, which was $19.33. Individuals holding those awards are entitled to dividends on their shares, even if
the shares have not yet vested. Any such payments will be recorded directly to Beneficial Owner s Equity other common shareholders.
However, if any individual should forfeit their awards, any amounts previously recorded directly to Beneficial Owner s Equity, would be
reversed and charged to compensation expense. The amount of the deferred compensation will be charged to compensation expense on a pro
rata basis over the relevant vesting period.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 79



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

In connection with our acquisition of Related, we have recorded goodwill in the amount of approximately $210.3 million and identifiable
intangible assets in the aggregate amount of $183.3 million. The intangible assets were recorded at this fair value as verified by an independent
third party valuation firm and are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The goodwill is the excess of the purchase price we paid over the
fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired including deferred tax liabilities, and is not being amortized. We have adopted FAS No. 141 and
142 which required us to test the goodwill for impairment at least annually and more often if circumstances indicate there may be reason to
believe goodwill has been impaired. Any such impairment would be charged to expense in the period in which it is determined. Additionally,
the useful lives of the identifiable intangible assets may need to be reassessed and amortization accelerated, or such intangible assets could be
deemed impaired. Any such amounts could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Commitments and Contingencies
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Mortgage Banking Activities

Through PWF, we originate and service multi-family mortgage loans for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and FHA. PWF s mortgage lending business
is subject to various governmental and quasi-governmental regulations. PWF is licensed or approved to service and/or originate and sell loans
under Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae and FHA programs. FHA and Ginnie Mae are agencies of the Federal government and Fannie

Mae and Freddie Mac are federally-chartered investor-owned corporations. These agencies require PWF and its subsidiaries to meet minimum
net worth and capital requirements and to comply with other requirements. Mortgage loans made under these programs are also required to meet
the requirements of these programs. In addition, under Fannie Mae s DUS program, PWF has the authority to originate loans without a prior
review by Fannie Mae and is required to share in the losses on loans originated under this program.

The DUS program is Fannie Mae s principal loan program. Under the Fannie Mae DUS Product Line, PWF originates, underwrites and services
mortgage loans on multi-family residential properties and sells the project loans directly to Fannie Mae. PWF assumes responsibility for a
portion
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of any loss that may result from borrower defaults, based on the Fannie Mae loss sharing formulas, Levels I, IT or III. At December 31, 2003, all
of PWF s loans consisted of Level I loans. For such loans, PWF is responsible for the first 5% of the unpaid principal balance and a portion of
any additional losses to a maximum of 20% of the original principal balance. Level II and Level III loans carry a higher loss sharing
percentage. Fannie Mae bears any remaining loss.

Under the terms of the Master Loss Sharing Agreement between Fannie Mae and PWF, PWF is responsible for funding 100% of mortgagor
delinquency (principal and interest) and servicing (taxes, insurance and foreclosure costs) advances until the amounts advanced exceed 5% of
the unpaid principal balance at the date of default. Thereafter, for Level I loans, we may request interim loss sharing adjustments which allow us
to fund 25% of such advances until final settlement under the Master Loss Sharing Agreement. No interim loss sharing adjustments are
available for Level II and Level III loans.

We maintain an accrued liability for probable losses under FAS 5 for loans originated under the Fannie Mae DUS product line at a level that, in
management s judgment, is adequate to provide for estimated losses. At December 31, 2003, that liability was approximately $6.7 million, which
we believe represents its probable liability at this time. Unlike loans originated for Fannie Mae, PWF does not share the risk of loss for loans
PWF originates for Freddie Mac or FHA.

In connection with the PWF warehouse line, both our Company and CM Corp. have entered into guarantees for the benefit of Fleet National
Bank ( Fleet ), guaranteeing the total advances drawn under the line, up to the maximum of $100 million, together with interest, fees, costs, and
charges related to the PWF warehouse line.

PWF maintains, as of December 31, 2003, treasury notes of approximately $4.7 million and a money market account of approximately $1.3
million, which is included in cash and cash equivalents-restricted in the consolidated balance sheet, to satisfy the Fannie Mae collateral
requirements of $6.0 million.

Due to the nature of PWF s mortgage banking activities, PWF is subject to supervision by certain regulatory agencies. Among other things, these
agencies require PWF to meet certain minimum net worth requirements, as defined. PWF met these requirements for all agencies, as applicable,
as of December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, PWF had commitments of approximately $49.8 million to five borrowers.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Credit Enhancement Transaction
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In December 2001, CM Corp. completed a credit enhancement transaction with Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. ( MLCS ). Pursuant to the
terms of the transaction, CM Corp. assumed MLCS s $46.9 million first loss position on a $351.9 million pool of tax-exempt weekly variable rate
multi-family mortgage loans. TRCLP, has provided CM Corp. with an indemnity covering 50% of any losses that are incurred by CM Corp. as
part of this transaction. As the loans mature or prepay, the first loss exposure and the fees paid to CM Corp. will both be reduced. The latest
maturity date on any loan in the portfolio occurs in 2009. The remainder of the real estate exposure after the $46.9 million first loss position has
been assumed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. In connection with the transaction, we have guaranteed the obligations of CM Corp., and have
met its obligation to post collateral, in an amount equal to 40% of the first loss amount. Our maximum exposure under the terms of this
transaction is approximately $23.5 million. During 2003, two of the tax-exempt weekly variable rate multi-family mortgage loans were repaid in
the amount of $8.9 million. These repayments reduced the first loss position to $38 million and the pool of multi-family mortgage loans to

$288.6 million. This reduced our maximum exposure under the terms of the transaction to approximately $19 million.

CM Corp. performed due diligence on each property in the pool, including an examination of loan-to-value and debt service coverage both on a
current and stressed basis. CM Corp. analyzed the portfolio on a stressed basis by increasing capitalization rates and assuming an increase in the
low floater bond rate. As of December 31, 2003, the credit enhanced pool of properties are performing according to their contractual obligations

and we do not anticipate any losses to be incurred on its guaranty. Should the Company s analysis of risk of loss change in the future, a provision

for probable loss might be required; such provision could be material.

Yield Guarantee TransactionS

CM Corp. has entered into six agreements with Merrill Lynch (the Primary Guarantor ) to guarantee agreed-upon rates of return for three pools
of multi-family properties each owned by a local partnership which in turn, is majority-owned by affiliates of Related for which CM Corp. has
or will receive guarantee fees.

Each transaction was structured as two separate guarantees, one primarily guaranteeing the returns through the lease-up phase of the properties
and the other guaranteeing the returns through the operating phase of the properties. CM Corp. receives a fee for each guarantee up front at the
start of each guarantee period. These fees will be recognized in income on a straight line basis over the period of the respective guarantees.
Total potential exposure pursuant to these guarantees is approximately $228.0 million. We have analyzed the expected operations of the
Underlying Properties and believe there is no risk of loss at this time. Should our analysis of risk of loss change in the future, a provision for
possible losses might be required; such provision could be material. We account for these guarantees under the FIN 45. We have determined
that the fees received represent the fair value of the respective liabilities and accordingly have recorded such fees as a liability included in
deferred income on our consolidated balance sheets.

Some of the local partnerships have financed their properties with the proceeds of our revenue bonds. In these cases, the Primary Guarantor has
required that those revenue bonds be deposited into a trust pursuant to which the revenue bonds were divided into senior and subordinated
interests

38

Commitments and Contingencies 83



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

with approximately 50% of each revenue bond being subordinated. We have financed the senior trust interest as part of the Merrill Lynch
P-FloatsSM/RitesSM program. The subordinate trust interests are being used as collateral in other of our Company s financing programs.

In connection with these transactions, we have posted $159.0 million as collateral with the Primary Guarantor in the form of either cash or
revenue bonds.

Revenue Bond Forward Transactions

We have entered into six transactions to purchase revenue bonds pursuant to agreements which require us, at the earlier of stabilization or
conversion to permanent financing to acquire Series A and Series B revenue bonds at a predetermined price and interest rates. We are obligated
to purchase the revenue bonds only if construction is completed. We are obligated to buy the Series B revenue bonds only if, at the date the
Series A bonds are stabilized, the property s cash flow is sufficient to provide debt service coverage of 1.15x for both the Series A and B bonds.
An unrelated third party lender will advance funds to the developer, as needed during the construction period, at a floating rate. These forward
commitments create derivative instruments under SFAS No. 133, which have been designated as a cash flow hedge of the anticipated funding of
the revenue bonds, and are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in other accumulated comprehensive income until the
revenue bonds are funded. The total potential amount we could possibly be required to fund is $84.4 million.

Other Guarantees

We have entered into three transactions related to three properties, Coventry Place, Canyon Springs and Arbor Ridge. Pursuant to the terms of
these transactions, we will provide credit support to the construction lender for project completion and Fannie Mae permanent loan conversion
and acquire subordinated bonds to the extent the construction period bonds do not fully convert. Up until the point of completion, we will
reimburse the construction lender for any draw on its construction letter of credit up to 40% of the stated amount of the letter of credit.
Following completion, up until the project loan converts to permanent loan status, we will, should the need arise, reimburse the full amount of
the letter of credit. We closely monitor these two properties, and believes there is no need currently, to provide for any potential loss. Should
our analysis of risk of loss change in the future, a provision for loss might be required; such provision could be material. The developer has also
issued several guarantees to the construction lender, each of which would be called upon before our guarantees, and each of which would be
assigned to us should its guarantees be called. Once the construction loans convert to permanent loans, we are obligated to acquire subordinated
loans for the amount by which each construction loan exceeds the corresponding permanent loan, if any. The subordinated bonds will bear
interest at 10%. Under Fannie Mae guidelines, the size of the subordinated bonds will be limited to a 1.0x debt service coverage based on 75%
of the cash flow after the senior debt.

Our maximum exposure, related to these two transactions, is 40% of the stated amount of the letter of credit of approximately $27 million.

The following table reflects our maximum exposure and carrying amount for guarantees we and our subsidiaries have entered into:

Maximum Carrying
(In thousands) Exposure Amount
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$ 17,933 $
15,000
53,236
614
19,000
228,000 5,850

$ 333,783 § 5,850

The following table provides our commitments as of December 31, 2003 to make future payments under our debt agreements and other

contractual obligations.

Payments due by Period

Less than 1 More than
(In thousands) Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Notes payable $ 153,350 $ 109,128 $ 27,182 $ 17,040
Operating lease obligations 1,376 545 831
Unfunded loan commitments 178,930 49,750 129,180
Fixed rate securitization 100,000 100,000
Employee contracts 6,000 2,000 4,000
Total $ 439,656 $ 161,423 $ 261,193 $ 17,040
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Income Taxes

We are organized as a Delaware statutory trust and, for tax purposes, are classified as a partnership. Almost all of our recurring income is
tax-exempt. From time to time we may sell or securitize various assets which may result in capital gains and losses. This tax structure allows us
to have the pass-through income characteristics of a partnership for both taxable and tax-exempt income. We do not pay tax at the partnership
level. Instead, the distributive share of our income, deductions and credits is reported to each shareholder for inclusion on their respective
income tax return. The tax-exempt income derived from most of our revenue bonds remains tax-exempt as it is passed through to shareholders.
Any cash dividends received by us from subsidiaries, organized as corporations, will be recorded as dividend income for tax purposes. For such
subsidiaries, created in 2001, there were no dividends distributed for tax purposes.

We provide for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( FAS
109 ). FAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.

We derive a substantial portion of our income from ownership of first mortgage Private Activity Bonds. The interest from these bonds is
generally tax-exempt from regular Federal income tax. However, the Tax Reform Act of 1986 classifies the interest earned on Private Activity
Bonds issued after August 7, 1986 as a tax preference item for alternative minimum tax purposes ( AMT ). The percentage of our tax-exempt
interest income subject to AMT for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately 85%, 79% and 88% respectively.
AMT is a mechanism within the Internal Revenue Code to ensure that all taxpayers pay at least a minimum amount of taxes. All taxpayers are
subject to the AMT calculation requirements although the vast majority of taxpayers will not actually pay AMT. As a result of AMT, the
percentage of our income that is exempt from federal income tax may be different for each shareholder depending on that shareholder s
individual tax situation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45. FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This Interpretation does not prescribe a specific approach for
subsequently measuring the guarantor s recognized liability over the term of the related guarantee. The initial recognition and initial
measurement provisions of this FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. CM
Corp. entered into one credit enhancement transaction and two yield guarantee transactions prior to December 31, 2002. The fee for the credit
enhancement transaction is received monthly and recognized as income when due. The fees for the yield guarantee transactions, received in
advance, were deferred and amortized over the guarantee periods. During 2003, CM Corp. entered into four more yield guarantee transactions.
We believe the fees received for these guarantees approximates the fair value of the obligations undertaken in issuing the guarantees and have
recorded liabilities included in deferred income equal to the fair values of the obligations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of
FASB statement No. 123. This statement amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employer compensation. Because we account for
our share options using the fair value method, implementation of this statement did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.
We have adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 for our share options issued to non-employees. Accordingly, compensation cost is accrued
based on the estimated fair value of the options issued, and amortized over the vesting period. Because vesting of the options is contingent upon
the recipient continuing to provide services to us until the vesting date, we estimate the fair value of the non-employee options at each
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period-end up to the vesting date, and adjust expensed amounts accordingly. The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In connection with the purchase of Related, we issued 778,420 restricted common shares to employees, of
which 52,863 vested immediately. The balance of 725,557 shares vest over two, three or four years depending on the number of shares granted
to each employee. We have adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 for these employee grants. Accordingly, we recognized compensation
expense for the vested shares at the market price for the shares on the grant date and deferred compensation expense for the non-vested shares
also at the market price on the grant date.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ( FIN 46 ). In December 2003, the FASB
issued FIN 46R, which revises FIN 46, codifying certain FASB Staff positions and extending the implementation date. FIN 46, as revised by

FIN 46R, clarifies the application of existing accounting pronouncements to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. Prior to the issuance of FIN 46R, we had not applied FIN 46 to any entities; accordingly, the
provisions of FIN 46R are effective for us beginning March 31, 2004.

FIN 46R is a complex standard that requires significant analysis and judgment. We are still in the process of evaluating its impact on our
financial statements, particularly as it applies to the investment fund sponsorship business we acquired by purchasing Related in November of
2003. In that acquisition, and in subsequent fund originations, we, through our ownership of Related, became the general partner or equivalent in
over 70 investment funds, all of which may represent variable interest entities under FIN 46R. As the general partner, and, in some cases, the
guarantor of the underlying fund returns, we may be deemed to be the primary beneficiary of some or all of such entities, even though we have
no equity investment in the investment partnerships. If we determine that we are required to consolidate all of our investment partnerships under
FIN 46R, our total assets would increase by approximately $2.5 billion. The investment partnerships do not carry debt, so minority partners
interest of approximately $2.5 billion would be recorded between liabilities and equity on our balance sheet.
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In recording our acquisition of Related, we ascribed approximately $5 million of the purchase price to the estimated future cash flows to be
received from general partner interests in investment partnerships in which we maintain a non-equity controlling partner. However, from time to
time the general partner of the investment funds, may be called upon to fund investment fund operations which we would advance on behalf of
the general partner and would be repaid to us out of future operating cash flow or sale or refinancing proceeds received by the investment fund,
so our maximum exposure to loss cannot be quantified. We also have exposure to losses under guarantees of returns on certain funds, as
described in Note 16.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and

Equity. This statement requires that certain financial instruments that have the characteristics of debt and equity be classified as debt. SFAS No.
150 was effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise was effective at the beginning of the first
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Pursuant to SFAS No. 150, on July 1, 2003 we have reclassed $273.5 million previously shown in
the mezzanine (between liabilities and equity) in the consolidated balance sheets as preferred shares of subsidiary subject to mandatory
redemption into the liability section, and the dividends paid on such shares (approximately $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003)
has been classified as interest expense; dividends related to prior periods continue to be classified as income allocated to preferred shareholders

of subsidiary.

The following recent pronouncements had no material impact on our consolidated financial statements:
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SFAS No. 145 Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical Corrections .
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SFAS No. 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities

SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities .

Inflation

Inflation did not have a material effect on our results for the periods presented.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We invest in certain financial instruments, primarily revenue bonds and other bond related investments that are subject to various forms of
market risk, including real estate risk, interest rate risk, credit and liquidity risk and prepayment risk. We seek to prudently and actively manage
such risks to earn sufficient compensation to justify the undertaking of such risks and to maintain capital levels which are commensurate with
the risks we undertake.

Real Estate Risk

We derive income by investing in revenue bonds secured by multi-family affordable residential properties. Investing in such revenue bonds
collateralized by such properties subjects us to various types and degrees of risk that could adversely affect the value of our assets and our ability
to generate revenue. The factors that may reduce our revenues, net income and cash available for distributions to shareholders include the
following: the property securing a revenue bond may not generate income sufficient to meet its operating expenses and debt service on its related
revenue bond; economic conditions, either local, regional or national, may limit the amount of rent that can be charged for rental units at the
properties, and may result in a reduction in timely rent payments or a reduction in occupancy levels; occupancy and rent levels may be affected
by construction of additional housing units and national, regional and local politics, including current or future rent stabilization and rent control
laws and agreements; federal LIHTC and city, state and federal housing subsidy or similar programs which apply to many of the properties,
could impose rent limitations and adversely affect the ability to increase rents to maintain the properties in proper condition during periods of
rapid inflation or declining market value of such properties; and, if a revenue bond defaults, the value of the property securing such revenue
bond (plus, for properties that have availed themselves of the federal LIHTC, the value of such credit) may be less than the face amount of such
revenue bond.

All of these conditions and events may increase the possibility that a property owner may be unable to meet its obligations to us under its
mortgage revenue bond. This could affect our net income and cash available for distribution to shareholders. We manage these risks through
diligent and comprehensive underwriting, asset management and ongoing monitoring of loan performance.

We may be adversely affected by periods of economic or real estate downturns that result in declining property performance or property values.
Any material decline in property values used as collateral for our revenue bonds increases the possibility of a loss in the event of default.
Additionally, some of our income may come from additional interest received from the participation of a portion of the cash flow, sale or
refinancing proceeds on Underlying Properties. The collection of such additional interest may decrease in periods of economic slowdown due to
lower cash flows or values available from the properties. In a few instances, the revenue bonds are subordinated to the claims of other senior
interest and uncertainties may exist as to a borrower s ability to meet principal and interest payments. Because of these economic factors, debt
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service on the revenue bonds, and therefore net income and cash available for distribution to shareholders is dependent on the performance of
the Underlying Properties.
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Interest Rate Risk

The nature of our investments and the instruments used to raise capital for their acquisition expose us to income and expense volatility due to
fluctuations in market interest rates. Market interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental policies, domestic and
international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control.

The revenue bonds generally bear interest at fixed rates, or pay interest according to the cash flows of the Underlying Properties, which do not
fluctuate with changes in market interest rates. In contrast, payments required under our floating rat securitization programs vary based on
market interest rates based on TBMA index and are re-set weekly.

In addition, we have floating rate debt related to our acquisition financing of PWF and Related and our warehouse facilities. PWF has loans
receivable and short term borrowings related to its mortgage origination operations which are not expected to subject PWF to significant interest
rate risk. PWF typically provides mortgages to borrowers (mortgages receivable) by borrowing from third parties (short-term borrowings).
Since PWF s mortgages receivable are typically subject to a take-out commitment by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or FHA, the related borrowings
to finance such mortgages are typically short-term. The interest income or expense that represents the difference between the interest charged to
borrowers and the interest paid to PWF s lender during the warehousing period will be earned by PWF.

Other long-term sources of capital, such as Equity Issuer s various series of Cumulative Preferred Shares, carry a fixed dividend rate and as such,
are not impacted by changes in market interest rates.

A rising interest rate environment could reduce the demand for multi-family tax-exempt and taxable financing, which could limit our ability to
invest in revenue bonds or to structure transactions. Conversely, falling interest rates may prompt historical renters to become homebuyers, in
turn potentially reducing the demand for multi-family housing.

An effective interest rate management strategy can be complex and no strategy can insulate us from all potential risks associated with interest
rate changes. Various financial vehicles exist which would allow us to mitigate the impact of interest rate fluctuations on our cash flows and
earnings. Beginning in 2001, based upon management s analysis of the interest rate environment and the costs and risks of such strategies, we
entered into interest rate swaps in order to hedge a portion of the risk of rising interest rates and the impact of such a rise on our MBIA and
P-Floats programs.

On January 5, 2001, we entered into a five-year interest swap that fixes BMA index to 3.98% on a notional amount of $50 million. On February
5, 2001, we entered into a three-year interest swap that fixes the BMA index to 3.64% on a notional amount of an additional $100 million. We
have designated both of these swaps on hedging derivatives and FAS No. 133.

During January 2002, concurrent with our acquisition of PWF and pursuant to the financing put in place to complete the acquisition, we entered
into an interest rate cap agreement with Fleet Bank, with a cap of 8% on a notional amount of $30 million. Although this transaction is designed
to mitigate our exposure to rising interest rates, we have not designated this interest rate cap as a hedging derivative under FAS 133.
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On December 17, 2003, we entered into a three-year interest rate swap that fixes TBMA at 2.56%, beginning January 2005, on a notional
amount of $100 million. On December 30, 2003, we entered into a three-year interest rate swap that fixes TBMA at 2.00%, 2.78% and 3.27%
for the twelve months beginning January 3, 2005, January 3, 2006 and January 3, 2007, respectively, on a notional amount of $50 million.

Interest rate swap agreements are subject to risk of early termination by us or the counterparty, possibly at times unfavorable to us and,
depending on market conditions at the time, may result in the recognition of a significant gain or loss from changes in the market value of the
hedging instrument. There can be no assurance that we will be able to acquire hedging instruments at favorable prices, or at all, when the
existing arrangements expire or are terminated which would then fully expose us to interest rate risk to the extent of the balance of debt subject
to such hedges. In addition, there is no assurance that the counterparty to these hedges will have the capacity to pay or perform under the stated
terms of the interest rate swap agreement; however, we seek to enter into such agreements with reputable and investment grade rated
counterparties.

We adopted statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, as amended and interpreted, on January 1, 2001. Accordingly, we have
documented and established our policy for risk management and the related objectives and strategies for the use of derivative instruments to
potentially mitigate such risks. Currently, our strategy is intended to reduce interest rate risk through the use of interest rate swaps. At
inception, we designated these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges on the variable interest payments on its floating rate financing.
Accordingly, the interest rate swaps are recorded at their fair market values each accounting period, with changes in market values being
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective in achieving offsetting cash flows. We assess,
both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the swap agreements are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash
flows of the hedged financing. Any ineffectiveness in the hedging relationship is recorded in earnings. There was no ineffectiveness in the
hedging relationship during 2001, 2002 or 2003, and we expect that these hedging relationships will be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in cash flow throughout their terms. Net amounts payable or receivable under the swap agreements are recorded as adjustments to
interest expense.

At December 31, 2003, the combined fair market value of the two interest rate swaps we entered in 2001 was a liability of approximately $2.4
million, included in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Interest paid or payable under
the terms of the swaps of approximately $4.1 million and $3.5 million, is included in interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The combined fair market value of the two new interest rate swaps we entered into in 2003 was an asset of
approximately $1.78 million, included in the other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
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At December 31, 2003, the interest rate cap was recorded as an asset with a fair market value of $34,004 included in other assets on the
consolidated balance sheets. Because we have not designated this derivative as a hedge, the change in fair market value flows through the
consolidated statements of income, where it is included in interest income.

With respect to the portion of our floating rate financing programs which are not hedged, a change in TBMA rate would result in increased or
decreased payments under these financing programs, without a corresponding change in cash flows from the investments in revenue bonds. For
example, based on the un-hedged $803 million ($953 million outstanding under these financing programs at December 31, 2003, less the $150
million notional amount subsequently hedged and assuming a perfect hedge correlation), we estimate that an increase of 1.0% in TBMA rate
would decrease our annual net income by approximately $8.0 million. Conversely, a decrease in market interest rates would generally benefit us
in the same amount described above, as a result of decreased allocations to the minority interest and interest expense without corresponding
decreases in interest received on revenue bonds.

Changes in market interest rates would also impact the estimated fair value of our portfolio of revenue bonds. We estimate the fair value for
each revenue bond as the present value of its expected cash flows, using a discount rate for comparable tax-exempt investments. Therefore, as
market interest rates for tax-exempt investments increase, the estimated fair value of our revenue bonds will generally decline, and a decline in
interest rates would be expected to result in an increase in their estimated fair values. For example, we estimate, using the same methodology
used to estimate the portfolio fair market value under FAS 115, that a 1% increase in market rates for tax-exempt investments would decrease
the estimated fair value of our portfolio of revenue bonds from its December 31, 2003 value of approximately $1,871,009,000 to approximately
$1,708,894,753. A 1% decline in interest rates would increase the value of the December 31, 2003 portfolio to approximately $1,955,110,897.
Changes in the estimated fair value of the revenue bonds do not impact our reported net income, earnings per share, distributions or cash flows,
but are reported as components of other accumulated comprehensive income and affect reported shareholders equity.

Changes in interest rates would also affect the PWF acquisition loan with Fleet, the PWF warehouse lines and the Related acquisition facility. A
1% change in the underlying interest rates would affect our annual net income by approximately $931,000 (based on the outstanding balances at
December 31, 2003 of approximately $25.2 million for the PWF acquisition loan, $21.9 million for the PWF warehouse line and $24.5 million
for the Related acquisition facility).

The assumptions related to the foregoing discussion of market risk involve judgments involving future economic market conditions, future
corporate decisions and other interrelating factors, many of which are beyond our control and all of which are difficult or impossible to predict
with accuracy. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking information are reasonable, any of the assumptions
could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking information included herein will prove to be accurate.
Due to the significant uncertainties inherent in forward-looking information, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as our
representation that our objectives and plans would be achieved.

Liquidity Risk

Our investments generally lack a regular trading market, particularly during turbulent market conditions or if any of our tax-exempt revenue
bonds become taxable or are in default. There is no limitation as to the percentage of investments that may be illiquid and we do not expect to
invest a substantial portion of its assets in liquid investments. There is a risk involved in investing in illiquid investments, particularly in the
event that we need additional cash. In a situation requiring additional cash, we could be forced to liquidate some of its investments on
unfavorable terms that could substantially impact our consolidated balance sheet and reduce the amount of distributions available and payments
made in respect of our shares.
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Risk Associated with Securitization

Through securitizations, we seek to enhance our overall return on our investments and to generate proceeds that, along with equity offering
proceeds, facilitate the acquisition of additional investments. In our debt securitizations, an investment bank and/or credit enhancer generally
provides liquidity to the underlying trust and credit enhancement to the bonds, which enables the senior interests to be sold to certain accredited
third party investors seeking investments rated AA or better. The liquidity facilities are generally for one-year terms and are renewable
annually. To the extent that the credit enhancer is downgraded below AA , either an alternative credit enhancement provider would be
substituted to reinstate the desired investment rating or the senior interests would be marketed to other accredited investors. In either case, it is
anticipated that the return on the residual interests would decrease, which would negatively impact our income. If we are unable to renew the
liquidity or credit enhancement facilities, we would be forced to find alternative liquidity or credit enhancement facilities, repurchase the
underlying bonds or liquidate the underlying bonds and its investment in the residual interests. If we are forced to liquidate our investment, we
would recognize gains or losses on the liquidation, which may be significant depending on market conditions. As of December 31, 2003, $483.5
million of senior interest is credit enhanced by an eight-year term facility through MBIA. Of this $438.5 million, $383.5 million is subject to
annual rollover renewal for liquidity. Merrill Lynch provides credit enhancement and liquidity for an additional $316.5 million of senior
interest. We do not maintain an ongoing commitment with Merrill Lynch and the senior interest is subject to a weekly re-set schedule. We
continue to review alternatives that would reduce and diversify risks associated with securitization.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

(a) 1. Financial Statements

Independent Auditors Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31. 2003. 2002 and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31. 2003, 2002 and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31. 2003. 2002 and 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
And Shareholders of
CharterMac

New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CharterMac and subsidiaries (the Company ) as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a)2. These financial statements and the
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CharterMac and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York

March 15, 2004
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CHARTERMAC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Revenue bonds-at fair value $ 1,871,009 1,579,590
Mortgage servicing rights 33,351 35,595
Cash and cash equivalents 58,257 13,699
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 26,636 46,785
Investments in partnerships 26,638
Deferred costs - net of amortization of $13,463 and $8,451 58,408 48,693
Goodwill 214,744 4,793
Other intangible assets - net of amortization of $4,163 and $1,750 194,203 11,316
Other assets 100,027 112,397
Total assets $ 2,583,273 1,852,868
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Liabilities:
Financing arrangements $ 900,008 671,659
Preferred shares of subsidiary (subject to mandatory repurchase) 273,500
Notes payable 153,350 68,556
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 34,886 42,008
Deferred income 23,691 8,998
Deferred tax liability 60,370 10,790
Distributions payable 27,612 19,020
Total liabilities 1,473,417 821,031
Preferred shares of subsidiary (subject to mandatory repurchase) 273,500
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary SCUs 288,006
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary - PWF 4,193 4,822
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders equity
Beneficial owners equity - convertible CRA share-holders (8,179,761 and
3,835,002 shares issued and
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outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively) 160,618 58,174
Beneficial owners equity - manager 1,126
Beneficial owners equity - special preferred voting shares (16,164,905 shares
authorized and issued at par $.01) 161
Beneficial owners equity - other common shareholders (100,000,000 shares
authorized; 42,726,232 issued and 42,703,600 outstanding and 41,168,618
shares issued and 41,160,218 outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively) 622,771 604,496
Deferred compensation (19,385)
Treasury shares of beneficial interest (22,632 and 8,400 shares in 2003 and
2002, respectively) (378) (103)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 53,870 89,822
Total shareholders equity 817,657 753,515
Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 2,583,273 1,852,868
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHARTERMAC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Revenue bonds interest income $ 113,655 $ 92,681 $ 71,500
Fee income:
Mortgage banking fees 13,712 13,681
Fund management 12,643
Other income 12,200 10,051 3,125
Total revenues 152,210 116,413 74,625
Expenses:
Interest expense 19,859 15,823 13,641
Interest expense-distributions to preferred shareholders of
subsidiary 9,448
Recurring fees - securitizations 4,028 3,181 2,491
General and administrative 40,945 24,506 5,209
Depreciation and amortization 11,926 8,891 865
Loss on impairment of assets 1,759 920 400
Total expenses 87,965 53,321 22,606
Income before gain (loss) on repayment of revenue bonds, sale
of loans and equity in earnings of ARCap 64,245 63,092 52,019
Equity in earnings of ARCap 2,219 2,219 456
Gain on sale of loans 5,532 10,683
Gain (loss) on repayment of revenue bonds 1,951 3,885 912)
Income before allocation to preferred shareholders of subsidiary
and minority interest 73,947 79,879 51,563
Income allocated to preferred shareholders of subsidiary (9,449) (17,266) (12,578)
Income allocated to SCUs (4,038)
(Income) loss allocated to minority interest 54 (496)
Income before benefit (provision) for income taxes 60,514 62,117 38,985
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 6,072 (1,284)
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Net income 66,586 60,833 38,985
Allocation of net income to:

Special distribution to Manager 5,332 4,872 3,621
Manager 6 56 354
Common shareholders 54,608 52,516 32,558
Convertible CRA shareholders 6,640 3,389 2,452
Total for shareholders 61,248 55,905 35,010
Net income per share

Basic 1.31 1.31 1.14
Diluted 1.31 1.31 1.14
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 46,653,270 42,697,195 30,782,161
Diluted 46,735,232 42,768,139 30,837,340
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance at
January 1, 2001

Comprehensive
income:

Net income
Other
comprehensive
(gain) loss:

Net unrealized
loss interest rate
swaps

Net unrealized
loss on Revenue
Bonds:

Net unrealized
holding loss
arising during
the period

Add:
Reclassification
adjustment for
net gain
included in net
income

Total other
comprehensive
gain
Comprehensive
income
Retirement of
convertible
CRA shares
Issuance of
Common shares

Distributions

Balance at
December 31,
2001

Comprehensive
income:

Net income
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CHARTERMAC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Dollars in thousands)

Beneficial
Beneficial Owners
Owners Equity-
Equity- Beneficial Beneficial Special Treasury Accumulated
Convertible Owner s Owner s Equity- Preferred Shares of Other
CRA Equity- Other Voting Beneficial Deferred Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shareholders Manager Shareholders Shares Interest Compensation  Income (Loss) Total
$ 34,397 $ 716 $ 344871 $ $ (103) $ $ (22,867) $ 357,014
2,452 3,975 32,558 $ 38,985 38,985
(2,958)
26,225
(3,097)
$ 20,170 20,170 20,170
$ 59,155
(8,986) (8,986)
168,294 168,294
(2,341) (3,621) (34,267) (40,229)
$ 25,522 $ 1,070 $ 511,456 $ (103) $ (2,697) $§ 535,248
3,389 4,928 52,516 $ 60,833 60,833
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Other
comprehensive
(gain) loss:

Net unrealized
loss on interest
rate derivatives
Net unrealized
gain on Revenue
Bonds:
Unrealized
holding gain
arising during
the period

Less:
Reclassification
adjustment for
net gain
included in net
income

Total other
comprehensive
gain
Comprehensive
income
Issuance of
Convertible
CRA shares
Issuance of
Common shares

Distributions

32,523

(3,260)
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(4,872)

92,383
(51,859)
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(2,607)

99,011

(3,885)

92,519 92,519 92,519

153,352

32,523

92,383
(59,991)
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Balance at
December 31,
2002

Comprehensive
income:

Net income
Other
comprehensive
gain (loss):

Net unrealized
gain on interest
rate derivatives
Net unrealized
loss on revenue
bonds:
Unrealized
holding loss
arising during
the period
Less:
Reclassification
adjustment for
net gain
included in net
income

Other
comprehensive
loss:
Comprehensive
income
Deferred
Compensation
Decrease in
manager interest
Issuance of
special preferred
voting shares
Issuance of
convertible
CRA shares
Issuance of
common shares

Distributions

Balance at
December 31,
2003
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Beneficial
Owners
Equity-

Convertible
CRA

Shareholders

$

$

58,174 $

6,640

102,532

(6,728)

160,618 $
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Beneficial
Owners
Equity-
Beneficial Beneficial Special Treasury Accumulated
Owner s Owner s Equity- Preferred Shares of Other
Equity- Other Voting Beneficial  Deferred ComprehensiveComprehensive
Manager Shareholders Shares Interest Compensation Income (Loss) Total
1,126 $ 604,496 $ $ (103) $ 89,822 § 753,515
5,338 54,608 66,586 66,586
2,607
(36,608)
(1,951)
(35,952) (35,952) (35,952)
$ 30,634
(19,385) (19,385)
(1,132) (1,132)
161 161
102,532
21,282 (275) 21,007
(5,332) (57,615) (69,675)
$ 622,771 $ 161 $ (378)$ (19,385) $ 53,870 $ 817,657

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHARTERMAC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income 66,586 $ 60,333
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
(Gain) loss on repayment of revenue bonds (1,951) (3,885)
Loss on impairment of revenue bonds 1,759 920
Depreciation and amortization 13,318 13,839
Income allocated to preferred shareholders of subsidiary 18,897 17,266
Equity in earnings of ARCap, in excess of distributions
received (104)
Increase in mortgage servicing rights (4,015) (9,500)
Increase in provision for loss under FNMA DUS product line
Income allocated to minority interest - SCUs 4,038
Repayment of project advances 8,786
Income (loss) allocated to minority interest 2,250 496
Issuance of shares of subsidiary - compensation expenses 674
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and interest receivable (1,864) (2,562)
Other assets (8,682) (2,513)
Increase in deferred Income 13,913 3,511
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 14,593 122
Deferred tax liability (12,326) 539
Due to/from affiliates (4,223)
Derivitive assets & liabilities (2,324)
Net cash provided by operating activities 108,289 79,636
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from revenue bonds and notes 113,242 122,738
Revenue bond acquisitions (444,185) (467,762)
Investment in preferred shares of ARCap
Increase in temporary investments (10,205) (5,400)
(Decrease) increase in promissory notes and notes receivable 19,015 (17,378)
Increase in goodwill (3,590)
Acquisition of Related Capital Company (56,261)
Decrease (increase) in cash and cash equivalents - restricted 20,149 (42,115)
Loans made to properties (1,314)
Net cash used in investing activities (359,559) (413,507)
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2001

38,985

912
400
4,924
12,578

(456)
(35,646)
1,937

3,652

(1,255)

(20,443)

29,594

10,251

45,433

28,605
(305,062)
(18,494)

(26,785)
(9,842)

(4,670)

(11,122)
(347,370)
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Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Distributions to shareholders (69,132) (56,441) (35,790)
Distributions paid to preferred shareholders of
subsidiary (18,897) (16,234) (11,847)
Proceeds from financing arrangements 581,415 208,224 309,310
Principal repayments of financing arrangements (297,224) (67,313) (96,826)
Issuance of common and convertible CRA shares
of subsidiary 104,315 124,876 168,264
Retirement of convertible CRA shares (8,987)
Increase in treasury stock
Increase in preferred shares of subsidiaries 52,932 47,614
Increase in other deferred costs (4,649) (3,838) (553)
Net cash provided by financing activities 295,828 242,206 371,185
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 44,558 (91,665) 69,248
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period 13,699 105,364 36,116
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 58,257 $ 13,699 $ 105,364
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 19,412 $ 12,703 $ 4,493
Reclassification of goodwill to intangible assets:
Decrease in goodwill (8,639)
Increase in Intangible assets 8,639
Issuance of restricted shares of stock 19,385
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Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Acquisition of PW Funding Inc.
Increase in guaranteed investment contracts $ (18,406)
Increase in mortgage servicing rights (35,646)
Increase in promissory notes receivable (29,325)
Increase in other assets (2,500)
Increase in notes payable 29,325
Increase in due to FNMA 18,406
Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities 9,807
Increase in reserves for possible DUS losses 1,938
Increase in minority interest in subsidiary 3,652
Increase in deferred tax liability 10,251
Increase in goodwill (9,842)
Acquisition of PWF, net of cash acquired $ (22,340)
Acquisition of Related
Increase in investment in and advance to
partnerships $ (35,424)
Increase in intangible assets (185,300)
Increase in goodwill (210,294)
Increase in other assets and liabilities (1,272)
Issuance of special common units concluded 288,006
Increase in notes payable 28,952
Increase in deferred tax liability 59,071
Acquisition of Related, net of cash acquired $ (56,261)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHARTERMAC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

CharterMac, which we refer to hereinas we , us , our ,and our Company , is a Delaware statutory trust, which commenced operations in October
1997. We and our subsidiaries are in the business of (i) portfolio investing, which includes acquiring and holding (directly and indirectly

through our subsidiaries) federally tax-exempt multi-family housing revenue bonds issued by various state or local governments, agencies or

authorities and other investments designed to produce federally tax-exempt income; (ii) mortgage banking, which includes originating and

servicing mortgage loans on behalf of third parties such as the Federal National Mortgage Association ( Fannie Mae ), the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation ( Freddie Mac ) and the Federal Housing Authority ( FHA ); (iii) credit enhancement, which includes guaranteeing tax credit
equity returns and mortgage loans; and (iv) fund management, which includes sponsoring investment programs for a fee.

We and a majority of our subsidiaries, are each either treated as partnerships or disregarded for federal income tax purposes. Therefore, we pass
through to our shareholders, in the form of distributions, income (including federally tax-exempt income) derived from our investments without
paying federal income tax on that income. We intend to operate so that a substantial portion of our ordinary income will be excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. Other income, such as capital gains and taxable interest income, as well as any dividend income from
CharterMac Corporation ( CM Corp. ) our wholly owned subsidiary, generally will be subject to tax.

In 1999, we formed CharterMac Equity Issuer Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary, (collectively, with its subsidiaries, Equity Issuer ) which holds a
substantial portion of our revenue bonds. From time to time, Equity Issuer may issue Series A and Series B Cumulative Preferred Shares
(cumulatively, Preferred Shares ) to institutional investors. The Preferred Shares have a senior claim to the tax-exempt income derived from the
investments owned by Equity Issuer. Any income in Equity Issuer after the payment of the cumulative distributions on its Preferred Shares, and
after the fulfillment of certain covenants, may then be allocated to CharterMac. The assets of Equity Issuer, while included in our consolidated
financial statements, are legally owned by Equity Issuer and are not available to any creditors of our Company outside of Equity Issuer.

In July 2001, we formed CM Corp. as a wholly owned, consolidated taxable subsidiary to help us more efficiently manage our taxable
businesses. CM Corp. and its subsidiaries conduct most of our taxable business, including many of the fee-generating activities in which we
may engage. CM Corp. isolates a substantial portion of the taxable income and expenses of our Company. Unlike CharterMac, CM Corp. is a
corporation which is subject to both Federal and State income tax.

In December 2001, our Company, through CM Corp. acquired 80% of the outstanding capital stock of PW Funding, Inc. and its subsidiaries

( PWF ). Under the acquisition agreement, the stockholders of PWF were granted the right to put their remaining 20% stock interest to CM Corp.
after an initial period of 24 to 36 months. The agreement also grants CM Corp. the right to call the remaining 20% stock interest of PWF from
PWF s stockholders after the same initial period of 24 to 36 months. Subsequent to the initial purchase of 80% of PWF s outstanding stock, and
pursuant to terms of individual employee stock purchase agreements, we have purchased additional PWF stock. At December 31, 2003, we own
approximately 87% of the outstanding shares of PWF stock.

On November 17, 2003, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests in and substantially all of the businesses operated by Related Capital
Company ( Related ) (other than specific excluded interests). Related had previously acted as our external manager ( Manager ). The acquisition
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was structured so that the selling principals of Related contributed their ownership interests in Related to CharterMac Capital Company, LLC, a
newly formed subsidiary of CM Corp. which we refer to as CCC , in exchange for 15,854,505 special common units ( SCUs ) in CCC. The
special common units are exchangeable for cash or, at our option, common shares on a one-for-one basis. All of the selling principals were also
issued one special preferred voting share of our Company for each special common unit they received. The special preferred voting shares have
no economic interest, but entitle the holder to one vote per special preferred voting share on all matters subject to a vote of the holders of our
common shares. One of the selling principals also received $50 million in cash. The selling principals of Related included its four executive
managing partners (Stuart J. Boesky, Alan P. Hirmes, Marc D. Schnitzer and Denise L. Kiley), all of whom are members of our board of
trustees, and an affiliate of The Related Companies, L.P., a New York limited partnership ( TRCLP ) with a majority of its equity controlled by
Stephen M. Ross, who is also the non-executive Chairman of our board of trustees. As a result of the acquisition, the economic interest in our
Company of (i) TRCLP equals approximately 15.4% and (ii) our management and employees equals approximately 7.1%. We conduct our fund
management business through Related.

We are governed by a board of trustees comprised of eight independent managing trustees and seven managing trustees who are affiliated with
Related.

Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ( GAAP ). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Significant estimates in the financial statements include the valuation of our investments in revenue bonds and interest
rate swap agreements.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CharterMac and its majority owned subsidiary business trusts and corporations
which it controls. We also own approximately 87% of PWF and 100% of Related through our wholly owned subsidiary, CM Corp. All
intercompany
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accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Unless otherwise indicated, the Company , as hereinafter used, refers to
CharterMac and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation.

Significant Accounting Policies

Investment in revenue bonds

We account for our investments in revenue bonds as available-for-sale debt securities under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities ( SFAS 115 ) due to a provision in most of its revenue
bonds under which we have a right to require redemption of the revenue bonds prior to their maturity, although we can and may elect to hold
them up to their maturity dates unless otherwise modified. As such, SFAS 115 requires us to classify these investments as available-for-sale.
Accordingly, investments in revenue bonds are carried at their estimated fair values, with unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains or losses do not affect the cash flow generated from property operations, distributions to
shareholders, the characterization of the tax-exempt income stream or the financial obligations under the revenue bonds.
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If in our judgment, we determine it is probable that we will not receive all contractual payments required, when they are due, the revenue bond is
deemed impaired and is written down to its then estimated fair value, with the amount of the write-down accounted for as a realized loss.

Because revenue bonds have a limited market, we estimate fair value for each bond as the present value of its expected
cash flows using a discount rate for comparable tax-exempt investments. This process is based upon projections of
future economic events affecting the real estate collateralizing the bonds, such as property occupancy rates, rental
rates, operating cost inflation, market capitalization rates and an appropriate market rate of interest, all of which are
based on good faith estimates and assumptions we develop. Changes in market conditions and circumstances may
occur which would cause these estimates and assumptions to change; therefore, actual results may vary from the
estimates and the variance may be material.

For certain revenue bonds, management believes that certain factors have impacted the near-term fair value. In these
instances, the revenue bonds are valued at either the outstanding face amount of the bond or management s estimate of
the fair value, whichever is lower.

Equity Investments
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Equity investments in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets include the following:

Investment in ARCap - Our preferred equity investment in ARCap Investors, L.L.C. ( ARCap ) is accounted for using the
equity method because we have the ability to exercise significant influence, but not control, over ARCap s operating
and financial policies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in banks and investments in short-term instruments with an original maturity of three months or less.
Certain amounts of cash and cash equivalents are restricted and serve as additional collateral for borrowings within our existing securitization
programs.

Mortgage Banking Activities

PWF is an approved seller/servicer of multi-family mortgage loans for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHA and the Government National Mortgage
Association ( Ginnie Mae ). For Fannie Mae, PWF is approved under the Delegated Underwriting and Servicing ( DUS ) program. Under DUS,
upon obtaining a commitment from Fannie Mae with regard to a particular loan, Fannie Mae commits to acquire the mortgage loan based upon
PWF s underwriting and PWF agrees to bear a portion of the risk of potential losses in the event of a default. Fannie Mae commitments may be
made to acquire the mortgage loan for cash or in exchange for a mortgage-backed security backed by the mortgage loan. As a Program Plus

lender for Freddie Mac, Freddie Mac agrees to acquire for cash from PWF loans for which PWF has issued commitments. Ginnie Mae agrees to
exchange FHA-insured mortgages originated by PWF for Ginnie Mae securities.

Mortgage loans originated for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae are closed in the name of PWF, which uses corporate cash obtained by
borrowing from a warehouse lender to fund the loans. Approximately a week to a month following closing of a loan, loan documentation and an
assignment are delivered to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, or a document custodian on its behalf and the cash purchase price or
mortgage-backed security is delivered to PWF. PWF uses the cash it receives to repay its warehouse loans and the mortgage-backed securities
are sold pursuant to prior agreements for cash, which is also used to repay warehouse loans. PWF also underwrites and originates multi-family
and commercial mortgages for insurance companies and banks.
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PWF receives origination fees which are included in mortgage banking fees in the consolidated statements of income. Neither we nor PWF
retain any interest in any of the mortgage loans, except for mortgage servicing rights ( MSRs ) and certain liabilities under the loss-sharing
arrangement with Fannie Mae.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

PWF recognizes as assets the rights to service mortgage loans for others, whether the MSRs are acquired through a separate purchase or through
loan origination, by allocating total costs incurred between the loan and the MSRs retained based on their relative fair value. MSRs are being
carried at their adjusted cost basis. MSRs are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income.

We have two areas of loss exposure related to its lending activities. First, while a loan is recorded on the balance sheet, there is exposure to
potential loss if a loan becomes impaired and defaults. Second, we have exposure to loss due to the retention of a portion of credit risk within
PWF s servicing contract under the Fannie Mae DUS program.

For loans on our balance sheet, we identify loans that are impaired and evaluate the allowance for loss on a specific loan basis for losses believed
to currently exist.

We account for exposure to loss under our servicing contract with Fannie Mae, as guarantees under FIN 45, by recording an asset equal to our
estimate of the portion of the servicing cash flows deemed to represent compensation for our guarantee for loans originated on/or after January
1,2003. On an ongoing basis, we will account for the asset by offsetting cash received for the guarantee against the asset and crediting interest
income for the change in asset due to the passage of time. The portion of the liability representing an accrual for probable losses under SFAS
No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( FAS 5 ) is adjusted as loss estimates change; the portion representing our willingness to stand by as
guarantor will be amortized over the expected life of the guarantee..

Equity Investments 117



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

The components of the change in MSRs are as follows:

The estimated fair values of the MSRs were $39.7 million and $36.7 million, at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Servicing Assets

Balance at December 31, 2002 $
MSRs capitalized during the year

ended December 31, 2003

Amortization
Increase in reserves
Balance at December 31, 2003 $

Reserve for Loan Loss Reserves of
Servicing Assets

Balance at December 31, 2002 $
Additions
Balance at December 31, 2003 $

(Dollars in millions)

35.6

6.5
(6.3)
(2.4)
334

4.3
2.4
6.7

The significant assumptions used by the third party valuation firm in estimating the fair value of the servicing assets at December 31, 2003 were

as follows:

Weighted average discount rate
Weighted average pre-pay speed
Weighted average lockout period
Cost to service loans

Acquisition cost (per loan)

Fannie Mae FHA
17.13% 17.00%
13.19% 10.59%
57.6 months 34.9 months
$2,450 $1,289
$1,500 $500
55

Freddie Mac

17.20%
11.27%
84.8 months
$1,937
$1,481

Equity Investments
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The table below illustrates hypothetical, fair values of PWF s MSRs at December 31, 2003 caused by assumed immediate adverse changes to key
assumptions are used to determine fair value.

(In thousands)
Fair value of MSRs at December 31, 2003  $ 39,664
Prepayment speed:
Fair value after impact of +10% change 39,320
Fair value after impact of -10% change 40,012
Fair value after impact of +20% change 39,011
Fair value after impact of -20% change 40,398
Discount rate:
Fair value after impact of +10% change 37,688
Fair value after impact of -10% change 41,860
Fair value after impact of +20% change 35,900
Fair value after impact of -10% change 44,310
Default rate:
Fair value after impact of +10% change 39,591
Fair value after impact of -10% change 39,746
Fair value after impact of +20% change 39,528
Fair value after impact of -20% change 39,809

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenues from a variety of investments and guarantees, summarized as follows:

Revenue Bond Interest Income - Interest income is recognized at the stated rate as it accrues and when
collectibility of future amounts is reasonably assured. Contingent interest is recognized when received. Interest
income from revenue bonds with modified terms or where the collectibility of future amounts is uncertain is
recognized based upon expected cash receipts. Certain construction revenue bonds carry a higher interest rate during
the construction period, which declines to a lower rate for the balance of the term. In these cases, we calculate the
effective yield on the revenue bond and uses that rate to recognize interest over the life of the bond.

Mortgage Banking Fees PWEF fees earned for arranging financings under the Fannie Mae DUS product line as well as Freddie Mac,
insurance and banking or other programs are recorded at the point the financing commitment is accepted by the mortgagor and the interest rate
of the mortgage loan is fixed. PWF also receives fees for servicing the loans it has originated. This income is recognized on an accrual basis.
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Other Income

Interest Income from Promissory Notes and Mortgages Receivable — Interest on mortgage loans and notes receivable is recognized
on the accrual basis as it becomes due. Deferred loan origination costs and fees are amortized over the life of the
applicable loan as an adjustment to interest income, using the interest method. Interest which was accrued is reversed
out of income if deemed to be uncollectible.

Interest Income on Temporary Investments Interest income from temporary investments, such as cash in banks and short-term instruments, is
recognized on the accrual basis as it becomes due.

Construction Service Fees We receive fees, in advance, from borrowers for servicing revenue bonds during the construction period. These fees
are deferred and amortized into other income over the anticipated construction period.

Credit Enhancement Fees We receive fees for providing credit enhancements. The credit enhancement fees are received monthly and
recognized in other income when received.

Guarantee Fees We receive fees for providing guarantees on guaranteed yields. These fees are deferred and recognized in other income on a
pro-rata basis over the guarantee period.
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Fund Management Fees

Origination Fees  Origination fees include both property acquisition fees and partnership management fees which are
received by Related from the proceeds raised at formation of the investment funds. Property acquisition fees
(generally 2% to 4% of equity raised) are for services performed in connection with the acquisition of interests in
property-owning partnerships and are recognized when the earnings process is complete and collectibility is
reasonably assured, which is defined as the date the investor equity is raised and the properties have been acquired by
the investment fund. Partnership management fees (generally 1% of equity raised) are for services to be performed by
Related for (i) maintaining the books and records of the investment fund, including requisite investor reporting, and
(i1) monitoring the acquired property interests to ensure that their development, leasing and operations comply with
low income housing or other tax credit requirements. Related recognizes these fees when such services are rendered,
which, per the partnership agreements, are contractually over five years following the initial closing of the investment
fund, using the straight-line method.

Acquisition Fees  Acquisition fees are earned upon acquisition of investments by publicly-held entities for which Related
acts as the advisor. These fees are calculated as a percentage of the purchase price of investments acquired, up to 1%.

Development Fees  Development fees are earned from properties co-developed by Related with unaffiliated developers
and sold to investment funds. Recognition of development fees is based on completion and stabilization of properties,
after guarantees of completion and deficits are no longer deemed to require funding. The guarantees are issued by an
affiliate of Related, which is also a subsidiary of CharterMac to the lender (for the underlying financing of the
properties) on behalf of Related and as required by the investment fund.

Asset Management Fees - Related earns asset management fees from its investment funds on an annual basis calculated
based on a percentage of each investment fund s invested assets, generally 0.5%. These fees are paid from the
investment fund s available working capital balances, and are earned by Related for managing the Underlying Property
assets of the investment fund. These fees are recorded monthly as earned, but only when the management of Related
determines that collection is reasonably assured based on the investment funds working capital balance.

Equity in Earnings of ARCap Our equity in the earnings of ARCap Investors, LLC (  ARCap ) is accrued at our preferred dividend
rate of 12%, unless ARCap does not have earnings and cash flows adequate to meet this dividend requirement. In the case where earnings are
not sufficient to cover the 12% dividend rate, any excess dividends received would be a returned capital and would decrease our investment.

Deferred Costs
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Prior to our acquisition of Related, we paid fees to Related, as our Manager, for its activities performed to acquire revenue bonds, including their
evaluation and selection, negotiation of mortgage loan terms, coordination of property developers and government agencies, and other direct
expenditures of acquiring or investing in revenue bonds. These fees are capitalized and amortized as a reduction to interest income over the
terms of the revenue bonds. Direct costs relating to unsuccessful acquisitions and all indirect costs relating to the revenue bonds are charged to
operations.

Costs incurred in connection with our TOP, such as legal, accounting, documentation and other direct costs, have been capitalized and are being
amortized using the straight-line method over 10 years, which approximates the average remaining term to maturity of the revenue bonds in this
program.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of preferred shares of Equity Issuer subsidiary, such as legal, accounting, documentation and
other direct costs, have been capitalized and are being amortized using the straight line method over the period to the mandatory repurchase date
of the shares, approximately 50 years. Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of Convertible Community Reinvestment Act ( CRA )
Shares, such as legal, accounting, documentation and other direct costs, have been accounted for as an offset to beneficial owners equity of such
shares.

Basis of Consolidation

We consolidate all of our wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries. We own a non-controlling interest in ARCap, which we record on an
equity basis. We also invest in partnership interests, related to the real estate equity investment funds we sponsor. Typically, we hold these
investments for a short period, essentially warehousing the investments until a new fund is established. We exercise no control during this
period. The assets are shown as Investments in Partnership on our consolidated balance sheets. We record our interest in these investments on
the equity basis.

Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We have entered into several derivative instruments, including an interest rate cap, forward commitments and interest rate swaps, all of which
are accounted for under the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities ( SFAS 133 ), as amended and interpreted. We have designated the interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges on the variable interest
payments on our floating rate securitizations. Two of the interest rate swaps do not become effective until 2005. The two interest rate swaps
that are currently
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in place, are recorded at their respective fair market value each accounting period, with changes in market value being recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income to the extent the hedges are effective in achieving offsetting cash flows. These hedges have been perfectly
effective, so have generated no ineffectiveness that needs to be included in earnings. The effectiveness of the other two swaps is being measured
using the hypothetical swap method, until they go into effect in 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2003, there was no ineffectiveness
related to these two swaps. Had there been any ineffectiveness or should there be any ineffectiveness in the future, the amount would have been
or will flow through our consolidated statements of income. The interest rate cap, although designed to mitigate our exposure to rising interest
rates, was not designated as a hedging derivative; therefore, any change in fair market value flows through the consolidated statements of
income, where it is included in interest income. The forward commitments create derivative instruments under SFAS 133, which have been
designated as cash flow hedges of the anticipated funding of the revenue bonds, and, as such, are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair
value recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income until the revenue bonds are funded.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We have adopted SFAS 141 on July 1, 2001 and SFAS 142, on January 1, 2002. We have determined that the amounts previously capitalized as
goodwill relating to our initial formation and to the merger of American Tax-Exempt Bond Trust meet the criteria in SFAS 141 for recognition
as intangible assets apart from goodwill, and accordingly will continue to amortize the remaining $2.2 million over their remaining useful lives,
subject to impairment testing. Therefore, the implementation of SFAS 142 did not materially affect our results of operations.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2002, PWF engaged a third party valuation firm to evaluate PWF s licenses with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac,
FHA, GNMA and various private investors. As a result of this process, approximately $8.6 million has been reclassified from goodwill to
intangible assets, representing the estimated market value of PWF s licenses. These licenses have an indefinite life and, as a result, are not being
amortized.

On November 17, 2003, we completed our purchase of Related, which resulted in additional intangible assets and goodwill, which were based
on fair values verified by an independent third party valuation firm. (See Note 2).

We amortize intangible assets on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The goodwill amounts recorded are tested annually for
impairment in accordance with the provisions of FAS 142. We have concluded that goodwill was not impaired at December 31, 2003.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As described above, our investments in revenue bonds, its mortgage servicing rights and its liability under the interest rate derivatives are carried
at estimated fair values. We have determined that the fair value of its remaining financial instruments, including its temporary investments, cash
and cash equivalents, promissory notes receivable, mortgage notes receivable and borrowings approximate their carrying values at December 31,
2003 and 2002.

Income Taxes
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Effective July 1, 2001, we began operation of a new wholly owned, taxable subsidiary, CM Corp., which conducts most of our taxable business,
including our mortgage servicing activities and fund management activities in which we may engage. We provide for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( FAS 109 ). FAS 109 requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.

Segment Information

SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information , requires enterprises to report certain financial and
descriptive information about their reportable operating segments, and certain enterprise-wide disclosures regarding products and services,
geographic areas and major customers.

We have three reportable business segments: portfolio investing, mortgage banking and fund management. Portfolio investing includes our
activities related to investing in revenue bonds. Mortgage banking includes our activities, carried out through PWF involving origination
mortgages on behalf of third parties. Fund management involves our activities related to providing management services to real estate
investment programs sponsored by Related.

New Pronouncements

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145 Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and
Technical Corrections . SFAS No. 145, among other things, rescinds SFAS No. 4, Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt
and accordingly, the reporting of gains or losses from the early extinguishments of debt as extraordinary items will only be required if they meet
the specific criteria of extraordinary items included in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations . The
revision of SFAS No. 4 became effective January 2003. The implementation of SFAS No. 145 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.
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In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities . SFAS No. 146 replaces current
accounting literature and requires the recognition of costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date
of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS No. 146 became effective January 1, 2003. The implementation of SFAS No. 146 did not

have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45. FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This Interpretation does not prescribe a specific approach for
subsequently measuring the guarantor s recognized liability over the term of the related guarantee. The initial recognition and initial
measurement provisions of this FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We
entered into one credit enhancement transaction and two yield guarantee transactions prior to December 31, 2002. The fee for the credit
enhancement transaction is received monthly and recognized as income when due. The fees for the yield guarantee transactions, received in
advance, were deferred and amortized over the guarantee periods. During 2003, we entered into four more yield guarantee transactions. We
believe the fees received for these guarantees approximates the fair value of the obligations undertaken in issuing the guarantees and have
recorded liabilities included in deferred income equal to the fair values of the obligations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of
FASB statement No. 123. This statement amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employer compensation. Because we account for
our share options using the fair value method, implementation of this statement did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.
We have adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 for its share options issued to employees. Accordingly, compensation cost is accrued based
on the estimated fair value of the options issued, and amortized over the vesting period. Because vesting of the options is contingent upon the
recipient continuing to provide services to us until the vesting date, we estimate the fair value of the employee options at each period-end up to
the vesting date, and adjust expensed amounts accordingly. The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. In connection with the purchase of Related, we issued 778,420 common shares to employees, of which 52,863 vested
immediately. The balance of 725,557 vests over two, three or four years depending on the number of shares granted to each employee. We
recognized compensation expense for the vested shares at the market price for the shares on the grant date and deferred compensation expense
for the non-vested shares also at the market price on the grant date.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ( FIN 46 ). In December 2003, the FASB
issued FIN 46R, which revises FIN 46, codifying certain FASB Staff positions and extending the implementation date. FIN 46, as revised by

FIN 46R, clarifies the application of existing accounting pronouncements to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. Prior to the issuance of FIN 46R, we had not applied FIN 46 to any entities; accordingly, the
provision of FIN 46R are effective for us beginning March 31, 2004.

FIN 46R is a complex standard that requires significant analysis and judgment. We are still in the process of evaluating its impact on our
financial statements, particularly as it applies to the investment fund sponsorship business we acquired by purchasing Related in November of
2003. In that acquisition, and in subsequent fund originations, we became the general partner or equivalent in over 70 investment funds, all of
which may represent variable interest entities under FIN 46R. As the general partner, and, in some cases, the guarantor of the underlying fund
returns, we may be deemed to be the primary beneficiary of some or all of such entities, even though we have no equity investment in the
investment partnerships. If we determine that we are required to consolidate all of our investment partnerships under FIN 46R, our total assets
would increase by approximately $2.5 billion. The investment partnerships do not carry debt, so minority partners interest of approximately
$2.5 billion would be recorded between liabilities and equity on our balance sheet.
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In recording our acquisition of Related, we ascribed approximately $5 million of the purchase price to the estimated future cash flows to be
received from general partner interests in investment partnership in which we maintain a non-equity controlling partner. However, from time to
time the general partner of the investment funds, may be called upon to fund investment fund operations which we would advance on behalf of
the general partner and would be repaid to us out of future operating cash flow or sale or refinancing proceeds received by the investment fund,
S0 our maximum exposure to loss cannot be quantified. We also have exposure to losses under guarantees of returns on certain funds, as
described in Note 16.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS 149
amends and clarifies the accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities under SFAS 133. SFAS 149 is generally effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging
relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 on July 1, 2003, as required, had no impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and

Equity. This statement requires that certain financial instruments that have the characteristics of debt and equity be classified as debt. SFAS No.
150 was effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise was effective at the beginning of the first
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Pursuant to SFAS No. 150, on July 1, 2003 we classified the $273.5 million previously shown in
the mezzanine (between liabilities and equity) in the consolidated balance sheets as preferred shares of subsidiary subject to mandatory
redemption into the liability section, and the dividends paid on such shares (approximately $9.4 million for the period from July 1, 2003 through
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December 31, 2003) have been classified as interest expense; dividends related to prior periods continue to be classified as income allocated to
preferred shareholders of subsidiary.

NOTE 2 Acquisition of Related Capital Company

On November 17, 2003, we purchased 100% of the ownership interests and substantially all of the businesses operated by Related for
approximately $346 million, of which $50 million was paid in cash and the remainder by SCUs issued by a newly formed, 100% owned
subsidiary of CM Corp., CharterMac Capital Company ( CCC ). In conjunction with the acquisition, two bridge loans totaling $60 million were
obtained to cover the cash portion of the purchase price as well as other acquisition related costs.

The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase. The total purchase price was approximately $346 million, including acquisition costs. We
allocated our cost of the acquisition on the basis of the estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities assumed, as summarized below. Certain
allocations are preliminary as of December 31, 2003 and may be refined as we gather further information on fair value. The excess of the
purchase price over the net of the amounts assigned to the assets acquired and liability assumed was recognized as goodwill.

Purchase of Related
Summary of Net Assets

(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash $ 422
Investment in partnerships 34,282
Intangible assets 185,300
Goodwill 210,294
Deferred costs 1,142
Other assets 2,991
Total assets 434,431
LIABILITIES:

Note payable 28,952
Deferred tax liability 59,071
Total liabilities 88,023
Purchase price $ 346,408

We assigned the following amounts to various identifiable intangible assets.
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(Dollars in thousands)

December
Estimated 31, 2003
Estimated Useful 2003 Unamortized

Intangible Asset Fair Value Life Amortization Balance
Trademarks and trade names $ 25,100 21 $ 143 $ 24,957
Partnership service contract AMAC 17,900 10 214 17,686
Partnership service contracts  other 29,400 9 390 29,010
Transactional relationships GSEs 73,400 21 417 72,983
Transactional relationships  other 29,600 6 589 29,011
Joint venture developer relationships 4,800 5 115 4,685
General partner interests 5,100 9 68 5,032

$ 185,300 $ 1,936 $ 183,364

60
The estimated amortization expense for these intangible assets for the next five years is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2004 16,207

2005 16,207

2006 16,207

2007 16,207

2008 16,092

The following unaudited pro forma data summarizes the results of operations for the periods indicated as if our acquisition of Related had been
completed as one of the beginning of the periods presented. The pro forma data includes the actual operating results prior to the acquisition date,
adjusted as if the intangible assets had been amortized as of the beginning of the period. These pro forma amounts are not indicative of the
results that would have been obtained had the acquisition actually occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented or that may be obtained
in future periods.

For the Year For the Year
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Ended December 31, 2003 Ended December 31, 2002
Total revenues $ 209,547 $ 182,996
Net income $ 36,634 $ 27,655
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 079 $ 0.65
Diluted $ 078 $ 0.65

In connection with the acquisition, we established a restricted share program and issued 778,420 of our common shares to employees of Related,
other than the Related Principals. As a result of the acquisition, the economic interest in our Company of (i) TRCLP equals approximately
15.4% and (ii) our management and employees equals approximately 7.1%. We conduct our fund management business through Related.
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The following tables summarize our revenue bond portfolio at December 31, 2003.

By Region:
East

Central
West
Total

By State:
Texas

Georgia
California
Florida
Missouri
All others
Total

By Property
Status:

Stabilized
Lease-up
Construction
Rehab

Total

By Region:
East

Central
West
Total

By State:

Number
of
Bonds

80
112
51
243

64
19
36
22
11
91
243

83
66
70
24
243

Current
Stated
Interest
Rate

6.91%
6.96%
6.90%
6.93%

Equity Investments

Number

15,163
18,855

6,538
40,556

10,318
4,309
4,354
3,950
2,107

15,518

40,556

15,499
9,883
9,907
5,267

40,556

Pertinent Weighted Average Dates
Optional

Put Date

Sep-17
Oct-19
Mar-18
Oct-18

Units

% of Total

37.4%
46.5%
16.1%
100.0%

25.4%
10.6%
10.7%
9.7%
5.2%
38.4%
100.0%

38.2%
24.4%
24.4%
13.0%
100.0%

Redemption

Date

May-14
Dec-17
Dec-15

May-16

Face Amount of Bond Fair Value at 12/31/03

$ Amount % of Total $ Amount % of Total
671,505,172 36.5% 680,636,000 36.4%
898,390,385 489% 916,466,000 49.0%
268,905,439 14.6% 273,907,000 14.6%
1,838,800,996 100.0% 1,871,009,000 100.0%
545,976,970 29.7% 564,279,000 30.2%
211,910,000 11.5% 214,068,000 11.4%
189,936,439 10.3% 197,947,000 10.6%
160,614,765 8.7% 163,771,000 8.8%
103,048,000 5.6% 101,612,000 5.4%
627,314,822 342% 629,332,000 33.6%
1,838,800,996 100.0% 1,871,009,000 100.0%
613,004,923 33.3% 627,521,000 33.6%
517,994,377 28.2% 530,357,000 28.3%
515,001,381 28.0% 520,747,000 27.8%
192,800,315 10.5% 192,384,000 10.3%
1,838,800,996 100.0% 1,871,009,000 100.0%

Annualized Base Interest Occupancy

on Stabi- DSCR on

Maturity % of lized Stabilized

Date $ Amount Total Properties Properties
May-37 46,326,358 36.5% 92.2% 1.16x
Jul-39 61,530,647 48.4% 87.6% 1.12x
Dec-36 19,145,029 15.1% 94.3% 1.31x
May-38 127,002,034 100.0% 91.8% 1.20x
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Texas 7.16%  Feb-21 Apr-20 May-41 38,096,626 30.0% 92.3% 0.98x
Georgia 6.47%  Apr-16 Nov-12 Jun-38 13,999,183 11.0% 82.8% 0.91x
California 6.84%  Apr-18 Mar-16 Feb-37 13,579,197 10.7% 94.7% 1.29x
Florida 7.06%  Apr-20 Apr-15 Jun-39 11,274,382 8.9% 95.0% 1.22x
Missouri 6.95%  Sep-14 Jul-09 Dec-29 7,206,965 5.7% 82.0% 1.33x
All others 6.87%  Feb-18 Jul-15 Apr-37 42,845,681 33.7% 94.3% 1.42x
Total 6.93%  Oct-18 May-16 May-38 127,002,034 100.0% 91.8% 1.20x
By Property
Status:
Stabilized 7.22%  Sep-15 Sep-12 Jun-32 43,954,222 34.6% 91.8% 1.20x
Lease-up 7.31%  Sep-18 Apr-16 May-41 37,773,932 29.7% N/A N/A
Construction 6.44%  Jul-22 Apr-21 Aug-42 32,967,266 26.0% N/A N/A
Rehab 6.33%  Jul-18 Jul-14 Oct-37 12,306,614 9.7% N/A N/A
Total 6.93%  Oct-18 May-16 May-38 127,002,034 100.0% 91.8% 1.20x
62
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By Put Date:
No put date
With 6 months
notice

Pre-2000
2001-2005
2006-2010
2011-2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
Total

By Maturity
Date:

2003-2005
2006-2010
2011-2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2045
2046 and after
Total

By Put Date:
No put date
With 6 months
notice

Pre-2000
2001-2005
2006-2010
2011-2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
Total

Number
of
Bonds

48

153

10
243

20
16
17
10
10
10
54
102

243

Current
Stated
Interest
Rate

7.3%

8.0%

7.0%
7.3%
7.1%
6.9%
5.7%
6.5%
6.93%
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Units Face Amount of Bond Fair Value at 12/31/03

Number % of Total $ Amount % of Total $ Amount % of Total
1,362 3.4% 80,229,724 4.4% 79,105,000 4.2%
400 1.0% 13,975,000 0.8% 12,538,000 0.7%
0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
1,380 3.4% 58,750,000 3.2% 57,840,000 3.1%
1,806 4.5% 69,835,000 3.8% 69,229,000 3.7%
2,414 6.0% 89,853,000 4.9% 94,214,000 5.0%
30,155 74.2% 1,384,440,985 75.2% 1,418,928,000 75.8%
1,062 2.6% 51,350,000 2.8% 51,768,000 2.8%
1,977 4.9% 90,367,287 4.9% 87,387,000 4.7%
40,556 100.0% 1,838,800,996 100.0% 1,871,009,000 100.0%
0.0% 3,317,381 0.2% 2,969,000 0.2%
640 1.6% 36,187,500 2.0% 32,910,000 1.8%
293 0.7% 18,943,160 1.0% 17,683,000 0.9%
1,978 4.9% 100,086,683 5.4% 98,559,000 5.3%
1,024 2.5% 55,130,800 3.0% 53,282,000 2.8%
2,132 5.3% 68,847,428 3.7% 71,162,000 3.8%
1,985 4.9% 81,322,000 4.4% 84,320,000 4.5%
10,919 26.9% 429,880,490 23.4% 444,699,000 23.8%
21,585 53.2% 1,045,085,554 56.9% 1,065,425,000 56.9%
0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
40,556 100.00% 1,838,800,996 100.00% 1,871,009,000 100.00%

Pertinent Weighted Average Dates Annualized Base Interest Occupancy

Optional on Stabi- DSCR on

Redemption Maturity % of lized Stabilized

Put Date Date Date $ Amount Total Properties Properties
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By Maturity

Date: 9.2%
2003-2005 7.2%
2006-2010 6.3%
2011-2015 7.0%
2016-2020 9.1%
2021-2025 7.0%
2026-2030 7.0%
2031-2035 7.2%
2036-2040 6.7%
2041-2045

2046 and after

Total 6.93%

Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

63

Equity Investments

134



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

(Dollars in thousands)

Reconciliation of revenue bonds:

Balance at beginning of period
Acquisitions
Proceeds from repayments of bonds

Periodic principal repayments of bonds
Carrying amount of bonds in excess of (less than)
proceeds from the repayment

Bond advance held by Trustee
Loss on impairment of assets

Net change in fair value of bonds
Accretion of deferred income and purchase accounting
adjustment

Balance at close of period

2003 2002 2001
$ 1,579,590 $ 1,137,715 $ 845,405
432,915 457,060 295,962
(83,795) (108,630) (24,227)
(16,136) (4,986) (1,584)
2,472 4,273 (681)
(3,643)
(1,759) (920) (400)
(38,559) 95,126 23,135
(76) (48) 105
$ 1,871,009 $ 1,579,590 $ 1,137,715

Total interest income from revenue bonds, including participating interest, was approximately $113,655,000, $92,681,000 and $71,500,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively, which represents an average annual yield of 7.06%, 7.32% and 7.40% based
on weighted average face amounts of approximately $1,609,000, $1,267,000 and $965,865,000, respectively.

The amortized cost basis of our portfolio of revenue bonds at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $1,814,180,000 and
$1,468,233,000 , respectively. The net unrealized gain on revenue bonds of approximately $56,829,000 at December 31, 2003 consisted of
gross unrealized gains and losses of approximately $65,394,000 and $8,565,000, respectively. The net unrealized gain on revenue bonds of
approximately $95,387,000 at December 31, 2002 consisted of gross unrealized gains and losses of approximately $100,964,000 and

$5,577,000, respectively.

The fair value and gross unrealized losses of our revenue bonds aggregated by length of time that individual bonds have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2003, is summarized in the table below:

(In thousands)
Fair value
Gross unrealized loss

(In thousands)

Equity Investments

Less than 12 Months

12 Months or More Total
$ 216,743 $ 36,660 $ 253,403
$ (5,789) $ 2,777) $ (8,565)

The following is a table summarizing the maturity dates of our revenue bonds.

Weighted
Outstanding Average
Bond Amount Fair Value Interest Rate
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Due in less than one year $ 3,159 $ 2,969 9.69%
Due between one and five years 30,822 28,463 6.84%
Due after five years 1,796,085 1,839,577 7.03%
Total $ 1,830,066 $ 1,871,009 7.03%

All of our revenue bonds have fixed interest rates.

The principal and interest payments on each revenue bond are payable only from the cash flows of the Underlying Properties, including proceeds
from a sale of an Underlying Property or the refinancing of the mortgage loan securing such revenue bonds. None of the revenue bonds
constitutes a general obligation of any state or local government, agency or authority. The structure of each Mortgage Loan mirrors the structure
of the corresponding revenue bond that it secures. In order to protect the tax-exempt status of the revenue bonds, the owners of the Underlying
Properties are required to enter into certain agreements to own, manage and operate such Underlying Properties in accordance with requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

No single revenue bond provided interest income that exceeded 10% of our total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 or 2001.
Based on the face amount of revenue bonds at December 31, 2003, approximately 29.7% are located in Texas, 11.5% are located in Georgia and
10.3% are located in California. No other state comprises more than 10% of the total face amount at December 31, 2003. Based on the face
amount of revenue bonds at December 31, 2002, approximately 29.6% were located in Texas, 12.5% were located in California, and 11.2% were
located in Florida. No other state comprised more than 10% of the total face amount at December 31, 2002.
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Our revenue bonds bear a fixed base interest rate and, to the extent permitted by existing regulations, may or may not also provide for contingent
interest and other features. Terms are expected to be five to 35 years, although we may have the right to cause repayment prior to maturity
through a mandatory redemption feature (five to seven years with up to six month s notice). In some cases, the bonds call for amortization or

sinking fund payments, generally at the completion of rehabilitation or construction, of principal based on thirty to forty year level debt service
amortization schedules.

Revenue bonds are generally not subject to optional prepayment during the first 5-10 years of our ownership of the bonds and may carry
prepayment penalties thereafter beginning at 5% of the outstanding principal balance, declining by 1% per annum. Certain revenue bonds may
be purchased at a discount from their face value. Up to 15% of our Total Market Value (as defined in its trust agreement) may be invested in
revenue bonds secured by Underlying Properties in which affiliates of Related have a controlling interest, equity interest or security interest.
The 15% limit is not applicable to properties to which Related or its affiliates have taken title for the benefit of us and only applies to revenue
bonds acquired after the Merger. In selected circumstances and generally only in connection with the acquisition of tax-exempt revenue bonds,
we may acquire a small amount of taxable bonds (i) which we may be required to acquire in order to satisfy state regulations with respect to the
issuance of tax-exempt bonds and (ii) to fund certain costs associated with the issuance of revenue bonds, that under current law cannot be
funded by the revenue bond itself.

Certain revenue bonds provide for participating interest which is equal to a percentage of net property cash flow of the net sale or refinancing
proceeds. Both the stated and participating interest on the revenue bonds are exempt from federal income tax. During the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, participating interest was collected amounting to approximately $2.0 million, $3.1 million and $1.5 million,
respectively. Revenue bonds that contain provisions for contingent interest are referred to as participating ; revenue bonds lacking this provision
are non-participating .

2003 Transactions

Revenue bonds acquired or additional fundings made during 2003 are summarized below:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Face Construction Permanent
(In thousands) Amount Rate Interest Rate
Non-participating revenue bonds
Construction/rehabilitation properties $ 421,595 6.21% 6.58%
Additional fundings of existing bonds $ 11,320 7.00% 7.00%
Revenue bonds and notes repaid during 2003 are summarized below:
Face Realized
(In thousands) Amount Cost Gains/Losses

Participating revenue bonds
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Stabilized $ 23,550 $ 21,330 $ 2,219

Non-participating revenue bonds

Stabilized 61,081 60,615 (268)
Notes
Stabilized 245 245
$ 1,951
65
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2002 Transactions

Revenue bonds and other investments acquired or made during 2002 are summarized below:

(In thousands)

Non-participating revenue bonds

Construction/rehabilitation properties

Other Investments

Bridge and mezzanine loans

Face
Amount

$ 457,060

4,375

Revenue bond and notes repaid during 2002 are summarized below:

Bond Impairment

(In thousands)

Participating revenue bonds
Stabilized

Non-participating revenue bonds
Stabilized

Notes
Stabilized

Face Amount

$ 36,175 §

81,825

7,350

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Construction Permanent
Rate Interest Rate
6.940% 6.981%
N/A 8.257%
Realized
Cost Gains
39,143 $ 2,968
82,749 917
7,350
$ 3,885

The original developer of Waterford Place Phase II, is in the process of divesting its assets and unwinding its business, which triggered defaults
under our guarantees with the developer. Additionally, we have determined there has been a softening of this market. The equity investor, an

affiliate of Related, has agreed to release and transfer its ownership to a nominee of our Company, who will foreclose on the Underlying
Property. We have determined this bond is impaired, and as such we have stopped accruing interest and have written down the bond to its

estimated fair value of approximately $900,000, taking a loss on impairment of approximately $1.8 million during the quarter ended September
30, 2003. We determined the fair value of the property as equal to the appraised value of the land plus the cost of certain improvements made to
date, discounted for the softening in the market.
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During the second quarter of 2001, the borrowers of Lexington Trails failed to make the regular interest payments. As a result, we determined
the bond was impaired and stopped accruing interest, and have written down the bond to its estimated fair value of
approximately $5.5 million and took a loss on impairment of $400,000. During the fourth quarter of 2001, we caused
the trustee, for the benefit of us, to foreclose on the Underlying Property. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we began
marketing the Underlying Property for sale, and we wrote this bond down to its estimated fair value of $4.5 million
resulting in a recorded loss of $920,000. Lexington Trails was sold on December 31, 2003, for a total sales price of
approximately $4,412,500 million, which resulted in a loss of $630,695.

NOTE 4 Investment in Partnerships

Investments in partnerships at December 31, 2003 consist of:

(In thousands) 2003
Investment to acquire equity interests $ 24,644
Investment in properties in development 1,994
$ 26,638
66
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A subsidiary wholly owned by Related acquires equity interests in property ownership entities on a short-term basis, and also invests funds with
third party developers to develop properties for inclusion in offerings to investors, which are arranged by Related. Such amounts are expected to
be distributed from the proceeds of the equity and debt financing when the investment fund has closed. The developer has also guaranteed
repayment of these investments to Related. Substantially all of these investments are pledged as collateral for Related s borrowings under the
warehouse facility.

Related also invests funds in affiliated entities, whereby subsidiaries of Related co-develops properties to be sold to investment funds.
Development investments include amounts invested to fund pre-development and development costs. Investment funds organized by Related
acquire the limited partnership interests in these properties. Distributions of the development investment by the affiliated entity is expected to be
made from various sources attributable to the properties, including capital contributions of investments funds, cash flow from operations, and/or
from co-development partners, who in turn have cash flow notes from the properties. In connection with Related s co-development agreements,
affiliates of CharterMac issue construction completion, development deficit guarantees and operating deficit guarantees to the lender and
investment funds (for the underlying financing of the properties) on behalf of Related.

NOTE 5 Other Investments

Investment in ARCap

On October 18, 2001, our Company, through CM Corp., purchased 739,741 units of Series A Convertible Preferred Membership Interests in
ARCap Investors, LLC at the price of $25 per unit, with a preferred return of 12%. The carrying value of our interests in ARCap at December
31, 2003 was $19,054,409, which is included in other assets.

ARCap Investors, LLC was formed in January 1999 by REM/CAP and Apollo Real Estate Investors to invest exclusively in subordinated
CMBS. Since then, ARCap has changed its focus and has begun to provide portfolio management services for third parties.

NOTE 6 - Deferred Costs

The components of deferred costs are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred bond selection costs (1) $ 46,479 $ 34,810
Deferred financing costs 11,170 8,030
10,445 10,445
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Deferred costs relating to the issuance of preferred shares of subsidiary (see Note

9)
Deferred costs relating to acquisition of Related 2,483
Other deferred costs 3,777 1,376
71,871 57,144
Less: Accumulated amortization (13,463) (8,451)
$ 58,408 $ 48,693

(1) This primarily represents the 2% bond selection fee paid to the Manager prior to our acquisition of Related (see Note 12).

NOTE 7 - Financing Arrangements

We raise capital to acquire additional revenue bonds through two securitization programs.

P-FLOATS/RITES Program ( P-FLOATS )

We have securitized certain revenue bonds through the Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner & Smith Incorporated ( Merrill Lynch ) P-FLOATS/RITES
program. Under this program, we transfer certain revenue bonds to Merrill Lynch. Merrill Lynch deposits each revenue bond into an individual
special purpose trust together with a credit enhancement guarantee ( Guarantee ). Two types of securities are then issued by each trust, (1)
Puttable Floating Option Tax-Exempt Receipts ( P-FLOATS ), a short-term senior security which bears interest at a floating rate that is reset
weekly and (2) Residual Interest Tax Exempt Securities ( RITES ), a subordinate security which receives the residual interest payment after
payment of P-FLOAT interest and ongoing transaction fees. The P-FLOATS are sold to third party investors and the RITES are generally sold
back to us. We have the right, with 14 days notice to the trustee, to purchase the outstanding P-FLOATS and withdraw the underlying revenue
bonds from the trust. When the revenue bonds are deposited into the P-FLOAT Trust, we receive the proceeds from the sale of the P-FLOATS
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less certain transaction costs. In certain other cases, Merrill Lynch may directly buy the revenue bonds from local issuers, deposit them in the
trust, sell the P-FLOAT security to investors and then the RITES to us.

For financial reporting purposes, due to the repurchase right, we account for the net proceeds received upon the transfer of our revenue bonds
through the P-FLOATS/RITES program as secured borrowings and, accordingly, continue to account for the revenue bonds as assets. When
Merrill Lynch purchases revenue bonds directly and sells the RITES to us, the RITES are included in other assets and accounted for at fair value
as available-for-sale debt securities.

In order to facilitate the securitization, we have pledged certain additional revenue bonds as collateral for the benefit of the credit enhancer or
liquidity provider. At December 31, 2003, the total carrying amount of such additional revenue bonds, cash and cash equivalents and temporary
investments pledged as collateral was approximately $168.9 million.

During the year 2003, we transferred 46 revenue bonds with an aggregate face amount of approximately $292.7 million to the
P-FLOATS/RITES program and received proceeds of approximately $297.7 million. Additionally, we repurchased 14 revenue bonds with an
aggregate face value of approximately $190.5 million.

Our cost of funds relating to its secured borrowings under the Merrill Lynch P-FLOATS/RITES program (calculated as interest expense as a
percentage of the weighted average amount of the secured borrowings) was approximately 2.03%, 2.4% and 3.7%, annualized, for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and 2001, respectively.

MBIA

On May 21, 1998, our Company closed on the MBIA Tender Option Program ( TOPs ). MBIA is a financial insurer, which has entered into a
surety commitment with our Company and certain of its subsidiaries whereby MBIA has agreed to credit enhance certain pools of bonds in
exchange for certain fees. Under the TOPs structure, we contribute revenue bonds to CharterMac Origination Trust I (the Origination Trust ), a
consolidated wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of our Company. The Origination Trust then contributes certain of these revenue bonds to
CharterMac Owner Trust I (the Owner Trust ) and others to CharterMac Action Rate Trust I (the Auction Rate Trust ), which are controlled by
us. The Owner Trust and the Auction Trust contribute selected bonds to specific Series Trusts. As of December 31, 2003, seven such Series
Trusts were created. Six of these series trusts reside beneath Owner Trust including two California only series and four National (non-state
specific) series. One series trust resides beneath Auction Trust.

Each Series Trust, issues two equity certificates: (i) a Senior Certificate which has been deposited into a Certificate Trust which issues and sells
Floater Certificates or Auction Certificates representing proportional interests in the Senior Certificate to new investors and (ii) a Residual
Certificate, issued to the Origination Trust which represents the remaining beneficial ownership interest in each Series Trust.

As of December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of capital that could be raised under the TOPs facility was $650 million, including $425 million
in Floater Certificates under the Owner Trust and $225 million in Auction Certificates under the Auction Trust. In addition, the surety
commitment by MBIA was recently extended for eight years, through October 1, 2011. As of December 31, 2003, total outstanding under the
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TOPs program was $483.5 million, including $383.5 million in Floater Certificates and $100.0 million in Auction Certificates.

The surety commitment by MBIA can be used to enhance certificates sold under low floater and auction rate programs. The low floater program
requires the existence of liquidity due to the put option available to the buyers of the low floater certificates. The liquidity is currently supplied
by a consortium of highly-rated banks. The liquidity commitments are one-year renewable contracts. We expect to renew or replace such
commitments upon expiration of their terms. The auction rate program does not require liquidity as the buyers of those securities do not have
the option to put their certificates back to the seller.

The effect of the TOPs structure is that a portion of the interest received on the revenue bonds in the Owner Trust and the Auction Trust is
distributed through the Senior Certificate to the holders of the Floater or Auction Rate Certificates with any remaining interest remitted to the
Origination Trust (and thus to our benefit) via the Residual Certificate. The revenue bonds remaining in the Origination Trust (aggregate
principal amount of approximately $160 million) are an additional collateral pool for the Owner Trust s obligations. In addition, five taxable
revenue bonds totaling $10.8 million in principal outstanding, have been allocated as additional collateral for Owner Trust s obligations.

Our Company s floating rate cost of funds relating to the TOPs program (calculated as interest expense plus recurring fees as a percentage of the
weighted average amount of the outstanding Senior Certificate) was approximately 2.2%, 2.4% and 3.5% for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During 2003, we further refined the TOP. We placed certain revenue bonds in trusts, in connection with our guarantees of specified rate of
returns to third party investors in mortgage pools. (See Note 16). We agreed to subordinate approximately 50% of the par value of the revenue
bonds we acquired that are secured by the properties in these pools. The trusts issued Class A Certificates, which have been securitized through
the P-Floats/RITES program. The Class B Certificates are currently being held at CharterMac as excess collateral to support our obligations to
the Primary Guarantor.
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For financial accounting and reporting purposes, the Owner Trust, which is controlled by our Company, is consolidated. Income earned by the
Owner Trust is allocated to the minority interest in an amount equal to the distributions through the Senior Certificate to the holders of the
Floater Certificates.

On October 30, 2003, we entered into a new form of securitization, under which auction rate certificates secured by an open pool of revenue
bonds were auctioned through UBS Financial Services Inc. to corporations as an alternative to tax-exempt money market funds.

We placed revenue bonds with an aggregate par value of approximately $143 million into CharterMac Auction Rate Certificate Trust I,

( ARCSI ). A portion of these bonds, approximately $81 million, had been previously securitized under TOPS in the Nat-1 Series Trust. In order
to move the bonds to ARCSI, we redeemed low-floater certificates aggregating approximately $118 million. On October 30, 2003, ARCSI

issued $100 million of auction rate certificates. These certificates have an initial rate of 1% which will be reset every 35 days through a dutch
auction process.

On April 1, 2003, we closed on our sale of Tax-Exempt Multi-family Housing Trust Certificates Series 2003A (the Trust ). Pursuant to the terms
of the Trust, we contributed revenue bonds with an aggregate par value of approximately $196.8 million in aggregate principal into a trust out of
which was sold $100 million in Class A Certificates to various institutional investors. A consolidated wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
CharterMac retained the subordinated Class B Certificates totaling approximately $96.8 million. CharterMac has agreed that it will hold the

Class B Certificates until the Trust is terminated. The Class A Certificates will accrue interest at the fixed rate of 3.25% per annum for two

years. Distributions to the Class A Certificate holders are made on the 15" day of each month, commencing on May 15, 2003. The Class A
Certificates will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase at a price equal to the outstanding Certificate Balance thereof plus accrued interest
thereon on March 15, 2005. If CharterMac does not exercise its option to terminate the Trust on March 15, 2005, the Class A Certificates will

be subject to remarketing. The Class A Certificates will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase and cancellation on the Final Distribution
Date from proceeds of the liquidation of the bonds on March 15, 2007.

The following table shows the components of the financing arrangements.

Amount Financed (Dollars in thousands)

Financing Arrangement December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
P-FLOATS/RITES $ 316,508 $ 215,159
MBIA: Loan Floater 383,500 456,500
MBIA: Auction Rate 100,000

Fixed-Rate Securitization 100,000

Total $ 900,008 $ 671,659

NOTE 8 - Notes Payable
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In connection with the acquisition of PWF, we entered into a loan commitment (the PWF acquisition loan ). The PWF Acquisition Loan has a
term of five years with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. The loan is interest only for the first twelve months. Beginning in January 2003
and through the remaining loan term, quarterly straight-line principal amortization on the Initial Advance is paid based on a ten-year
amortization period.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, there was approximately $25.2 and $27.2 million outstanding on this loan, respectively, included in notes
payable in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PWF has a $100 million secured, revolving mortgage warehouse facility, subject to annual renewal. CM Corp. is a guarantor of this warehouse
facility. The interest rate for each warehouse advance is the Fed Funds rate at the end of each year plus 1.25%, which at December 31, 2003 was
2.24%. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the amount outstanding was approximately $21.9 and $41.3 million, respectively.

In order to further increase financial flexibility, on March 31, 2003, Equity Issuer entered into a $75 million secured revolving tax-exempt bond
warehouse line of credit with Fleet Securities, Inc. and Wachovia Securities, Inc. This facility has a built in accordion feature allowing up to a
$25 million increase for a total size of $100 million and a term of two years, plus a one year extension at our option. This facility bears interest
at 31, 60, 90, or 180-day reserve adjusted LIBOR plus 1.5%, or prime plus 0.25%, at our option. During the third quarter of 2003, Citibank
became the third lender under this facility. The outstanding balance of this facility at December 31, 2003 was approximately $21.7 million.

On November 17, 2003, CM Corp. entered into $50 million and $10 million acquisition bridge loan facilities with Wachovia Bank in order to
fund the cash portion, fees and expenses of our acquisition of Related. These bridge loan facilities have a nine-month term with two 90-day
extension options. We have pledged our common ownership interest in the Equity Issuer as security under these facilities. The facilities are
pre-payable at any time and bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.5% and 2.4%, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, CM Corp. had borrowed the
full $60 million available under these facilities.
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On November 17, 2003, Related entered into a warehouse facility in the amount of $85 million, with Fleet National Bank, Merrill Lynch C.D.C
and Citicorp, USA. This facility has a maturity date of October 29, 2004 and bears interest, at Related s option, at either LIBOR plus 2% or the
prime rate plus .125%. At December 31, 2003, there was an outstanding balance of $24.5 million at a weighted average net rate of 3.73%. This
facility is collateralized by a lien on certain limited partnership interests (See Note 4). Payments of interest only are due on a monthly basis.
Related has the option to extend the warehouse facility upon its maturity in 2004, renegotiate the terms of the warehouse facility or arrange
alternate sources of financing to repay the outstanding balance.

(In thousands) Payments Due
2004 $ 109,128
2005 24,456
2006 2,726
2007 2,726
2008 and thereafter 14,314
$ 153,350

NOTE 9 - Preferred Shares of Subsidiary

Since June 1999, our Company, through a consolidated subsidiary, has issued multiple series of Cumulative Preferred Shares .

Liquidation

Preferred Date of Mandatory Mandatory Number of Preference Total Face Dividend
Series Issuance Tender Repurchase Shares per Share Amount Rate
Series A 06/29/99 06/30/09 06/30/49 45 $ 2,000,000 $ 90,000,000 6.625%
Series A-1 07/21/00 06/30/09 06/30/49 48 500,000 24,000,000 7.100%
Series A-2 10/09/01 06/30/09 06/30/49 62 500,000 31,000,000 6.300%
Series A-3 06/04/02 10/31/14 10/31/52 60 500,000 30,000,000 6.800%
Series B 07/21/00 11/30/10 11/30/50 110 500,000 55,000,000 7.600%
Series B-1 10/09/01 11/30/10 11/30/50 37 500,000 18,500,000 6.800%
Series B-2 06/04/02 10/31/14 10/31/52 50 500,000 25,000,000 7.200%

In connection with the offerings of these Cumulative Preferred Shares, we caused 100% of the ownership of Origination Trust to be transferred
to Equity Issuer, a Delaware business trust and a consolidated indirectly-owned subsidiary in which we own 100% of the common equity.
Equity Issuer then issues the Cumulative Preferred Shares and, as a result, Equity Issuer became the direct and indirect owner of the entire
outstanding issue of revenue bonds held by the Origination Trust and Owner Trust and its directly-owned and indirectly-owned subsidiaries (see
discussion of Private Label Tender Option Program, above). In addition to contributing the ownership of Origination Trust, we also contributed
certain additional revenue bonds to Equity Issuer.

Equity Investments 147



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

Each series of Cumulative Preferred Shares has an annual preferred dividend payable quarterly in arrears upon declaration thereof by the Board
of Trustees, but only to the extent of tax-exempt net income for the particular quarter. All series of Cumulative Preferred Shares are subject to
mandatory tender by the holders thereof for remarketing and purchase on their respective mandatory tender dates and each remarketing date
thereafter at their respective liquidation preference per share plus an amount equal to all distributions accrued but unpaid.

Holders of Cumulative Preferred Shares may elect to retain their shares upon remarketing, with a distribution rate to be determined immediately
prior to the remarketing date by the remarketing agent. Each holder of Cumulative Preferred Shares will be required to tender its shares to the
Issuer for mandatory repurchase on the mandatory repurchase date, unless we decide to remarket the shares on such date. Cumulative Preferred
Shares are not convertible into common shares of our Company.

The Series A, A-1, A-2 and A-3 Cumulative Preferred Shares rank, with respect to payment of distributions and amounts upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of our Company, senior to all classes or series of Convertible CRA Shares, Series B, B-1 and B-2 Cumulative
Preferred Shares and Common shares of our Company. The Series B, B-1 and B-2 Subordinate Cumulative Preferred Shares rank, with respect
to payment of distributions and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our Company, senior to our Company s common shares
and our Convertible CRA Shares and junior to the Issuer s Series A, A-1, A-2 and A-3 Cumulative Preferred Shares.

Since issuance of the Cumulative Preferred Shares, all quarterly distributions have been declared at each stated annualized dividend rate for each
respective series and all distributions due have been paid.

In accordance with FAS 150, we began, in July 2003, to include the Cumulative Preferred Shares in the liability section of our consolidated
balance sheet, and to include the dividends paid in those share as an interest expense on our consolidated statement of operations.
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NOTE 10 - Income Taxes

The income tax benefit (provision) consisted of the following components:

2003 2002
Current:
Federal $ 2,212) $ (1,303)
State and Local (1,207) (520)
Total current $ (3,419) $ (1,823)
Deferred Federal, State and Local 9,491 539
Total benefit (provision) for income taxes $ 6,072 $ (1,284)

Until December 30, 2001, PWF elected for both Federal and state income tax purposes to be treated as an S corporation. As an S corporation,

the net earnings of PWF were taxed directly to its stockholders rather than PWF.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed based on temporary differences between the financial statement and income tax bases of

assets and liabilities that existed at December 31, 2003.

Our effective tax rate for CM Corp. is 44.2% and 45.8% for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, due to State income

taxes, net of the Federal benefit.

A reconciliation of the statutory federal tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Statutory tax rate 34.0%
State and Local 10.2%
Effective tax rate 44.2%

The components of the deferred tax, liability are as follows:

2003
Allowance for loan loss reserves $ $
Originated mortgage service rights 11,072

Equity Investments

2002
(752)
12,314
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Deferred guarantee fees (2,619) (1,456)
Deferred construction servicing fees (3,352) (1,477)
Other deferred costs (900) 2,161
Intangible asset 58,398
Deferred management fee fund (2,229)

$ 60,370 $ 10,790

NOTE 11 - Convertible Community Reinvestment Act Preferred Share Offerings

Our Convertible CRA Shares enable financial institutions to receive certain regulatory benefits in connection with their investment. We have
developed a proprietary method for specially allocating these regulatory benefits to specific financial institutions that invest in the Convertible
CRA Shares. Other than the preferred allocation of regulatory benefits, the preferred investors receive the same economic benefits as common
shareholders of our Company, including receipt of the same dividends per share as those paid to common shareholders. The Convertible CRA
Shares have no voting rights, except on matters relating to the terms of the Convertible CRA Shares or to amendments to our Trust Agreement
which would adversely affect the Convertible CRA Shares Our earnings are allocated pro rata among the common shares and the Convertible
CRA Shares, and the Convertible CRA Shares rank on parity with the common shares with respect to rights upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of our Company.

The investors, at their option, have the ability to convert their Convertible CRA Shares into common shares at a predetermined conversion

price. Upon conversion, the investors will no longer be entitled to a special allocation of the regulatory benefit. The conversion price is the
greater of (i) our book value per common share as set forth in our most recently issued annual or quarterly report filed with the SEC prior to the
respective Convertible CRA Share issuance date or (ii) 110% of the closing price of a common share on the respective Convertible CRA Share s
pricing date.

During July and November 2002, we issued approximately 1.4 million and 576,000 Series A Convertible CRA Shares, respectively. The shares
were priced at $17.43 and $17.37 respectively, raising net proceeds for the two issuances of approximately $32.5 million. These Series A CRA
Shares are convertible on a one to one basis. As of December 31, 2002, there were 3,835,002 Convertible CRA Shares outstanding, which are
convertible at the holders option into 3,717,301 common shares. Series A Convertible CRA Shares may be converted to common shares on a
one-to-one basis.

In August 2003, we issued approximately 3.1 million Series A Convertible CRA Shares, at $18.48 per share, raising proceeds net of
underwriting discounts of approximately $54.2 million. We used these proceeds to fund additional investments in revenue bonds.
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In October 2003, we issued approximately 1.7 million and 239,000 Series A Convertible CRA Shares in two separate offerings, at $18.67 and
$18.86 per share, respectively, raising proceeds net of underwriting discounts of approximately $30.2 and $4.3 million, respectively. We used
these proceeds to invest in additional revenue bonds and for our general purposes, including reduction of our indebtedness.

In December 2003, we completed a private placement of approximately 755,000 Series A Convertible CRA Shares, at $19.87 per share, raising
proceeds net of underwriting discounts of approximately $14.4 million. We used these proceeds to invest in additional revenue bonds.

As of December 31, 2003, we had outstanding, 1,351,636 Convertible CRA Shares which could convert to 1,275,512 common shares, and
6,828,125 Series A Convertible CRA Shares convertible to common at a ratio of one-to-one.

NOTE 12 Related Parties

Due to our acquisition of Related, our related parties have changed substantially from the period prior to the acquisition to the period after the
acquisition.

Prior to the Related Acquisition

Prior to our acquisition of Related, we and our subsidiaries had engaged a subsidiary of Related to provide us with management services.

Pursuant to the terms of our prior management Agreement, the Manager was entitled to receive the fees and other compensation set forth below:

Fees/Compensation* Amount

Bond Selection Fee 2.00% of the face amount of each asset invested in or acquired by CharterMac or its
subsidiaries.

Special Distributions/Investment Management Fee 0.375% per annum of the total invested assets of CharterMac or its subsidiaries.

Loan Servicing Fee 0.25% per annum based on the outstanding face amount of revenue bonds and other
investments owned by CharterMac or its subsidiaries.

Operating Expense Reimbursement For direct expenses incurred by the Manager in an amount not to exceed $901,035

per annum (subject to increase based on increases in CharterMac s and its
subsidiaries assets and to annual increases based upon increases in the Consumer
Price Index).

Incentive Share Options The Manager may receive options to acquire additional Common shares pursuant to
the Share Option Plan only if CharterMac s distributions in any year exceed $0.9517
per common share and the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees
determines to grant such options.

Liquidation Fee 1.50% of the gross sales price of the assets sold by CharterMac in connection with a
liquidation of CharterMac assets supervised by Related.
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*  Related is also permitted to earn miscellaneous compensation which may include, without limitation, construction
fees, escrow interest, property management fees, leasing commissions and insurance brokerage fees. The payment of
any such compensation is generally limited to the competitive rate for the services being performed. A bond
placement fee of 1.0% to 1.5% of the face amount of each asset invested in or acquired by CharterMac or its
subsidiaries is payable to the Manager by the borrower, and not by CharterMac or its subsidiaries.

Affiliates of Related may provide certain financial guarantees to facilitate leveraging by CharterMac, for which they could be paid market rate
fees. In addition, affiliates of Related may provide certain financial guarantees to the owner (or partners of the owners) of the Underlying
Properties securing CharterMac s revenue bonds, for which they could be paid market rate fees.

Subsequent to the Related Acquisition

Subsequent to the Related acquisition the Management Agreement was terminated and therefore the fees included in the agreement are no longer
applicable. Since most of our employees work directly for Related, certain of our subsidiaries have entered into management agreements with
Related, under which Related is due a fee of .1% of the assets under management. CharterMac has entered into a management agreement with
Related under which CharterMac will reimburse Related for its actual costs to provide the management services under the provisions of the
management agreement, after receiving credit for the .1% management fees paid by its subsidiaries. The fees between CharterMac, our
subsidiaries, and Related all eliminate in consolidation.
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The costs, expenses and the special distributions paid or payable to Related, prior to our acquisition of Related, its affiliates, and TRCLP for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

(In thousands)

Bond selection fees
Special
distribution/Investment
management fee

Bond servicing fees
Expense reimbursement

Shared service agreement

Equity Investments

Paid or
Payable to
TRCLP
Nov 18
Dec 31

2003

755

755 $

Paid or Payable to Related and Affiliates

Jan 1
Nov 17

2003

8,905

3,809
5,764
901

19,379

2002

Year Ended
December 31,
11,104 $
4,872
3,792
768
20,536 $

2001

7,853

3,621
2,535
556

14,565
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Substantially all of Related s revenues are received from investment funds they have originated and manage. Affiliates of Related maintain a
continuing equity interest in the investment funds general partner and/or managing member/advisor. Related has no direct investments in these
general partner and/or managing member/advisor entities, and Related does not guarantee the obligations of the general partner and/or managing
member/advisor entities. Related has agreements with these entities under which Related provides ongoing services for the investment funds on
behalf of the general partners and/or managing members/advisors, and receives all fee income to which these entities are entitled. Related does
not participate in the investment funds operating income or losses or on gains or losses from property sales.
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As of December 31, 2003, the obligors of certain revenue bonds are local partnerships for which the general partners of the controlling
investment partnerships are non-equity managing partners controlled by Related.
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On November 17, 2003, CCC entered into an agreement with TRCLP for the purpose of TRCLP to provide various services to CCC and any of
its affiliates including Related. The services provided include computer support, office management, payroll, human resources and other office
services as defined in the agreement. The majority of the services are charged to CCC at 100% of the direct costs incurred by TRCLP.

As of December 31, 2002, the owner of the Underlying Property and obligor of the Highpointe revenue bond was an affiliate of Related who has
not made an equity investment. This entity has assumed the day-to-day responsibilities and obligations of the Underlying Property. Buyers are
being sought who would make equity investments in the Underlying Property and assume the nonrecourse obligations for the revenue bond or
otherwise buy the property and payoff all or most of the revenue bond obligation.

In December 2001, we completed a credit enhancement transaction with Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. ( MLCS ) pursuant to which CM
Corp. initially will receive an annual fee of approximately $1.2 million in return for assuming MLCS s $46.9 million first loss position on a
$351.9 million pool of tax-exempt weekly variable rate multi-family mortgage loans originated by CreditRe Mortgage Capital, LL.C, an affiliate
of Credit Suisse First Boston and the Related Companies, L.P. During 2003, two of the tax-exempt weekly variable rate multi-family mortgage
loans were repaid in the amount of $8.9 million. These repayments reduced the first loss position to $38 million and the pool of multi-family
mortgage loans to $288.6 million. This reduced our maximum exposure under the terms of the transaction to approximately $19 million.

On April 11, 2000, Relcap Holding Company LLC ( Relcap ), an entity which was formed to hold the excluded assets and liabilities not included
with the Related acquisition, entered into an agreement to purchase $500,000 of the outstanding face amount of the Walnut Park bonds, in
$100,000 increments annually beginning April 1, 2001. Relcap has agreed, pursuant to an Intercreditor Agreement that its right to payment on

the purchased bonds is subordinate to the right to payment on the bonds held by our Company.

We have entered into several agreements with an unrelated third party (the Primary Guarantor ) to guarantee agreed-upon internal rates of return
for pools of multi-family properties owned by real estate investment funds for which we have received guarantee fees during 2003 totaling
approximately $7.3 million.

Related Management Company ( RMC ), which is wholly owned by TRCLP earned fees for performing property management services for
various properties held in investment funds, which are managed by Related. The fees totaled $2,903,000, $2,516,000 and $2,261,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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NOTE 13  Earnings Per Share, Profit and Loss Allocations and Distributions

Prior to our acquisition of Related, pursuant to our Trust Agreement and the Management Agreement with the Manager, Related was entitled, in
its capacity as our general partner, to a special distribution equal to .375% per annum of our total invested assets (which equals the face amount
of the revenue bonds and other investments), payable quarterly. After payment of the special distribution, distributions were made to the
shareholders in accordance with their percentage interests.

Income was allocated first to Related in an amount equal to the special distribution. The net remaining profits or losses, after a special allocation
of .1% to Related, were then allocated to shareholders in accordance with their percentage interests.

Subsequent to the Related acquisition, CCC s income is allocated first to the holders of the SCUs in an amount equivalent to the dividend per
common share divided by .72, to take into account the fact that dividends paid on the SCUs are taxable.

Net income per share is computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic income per share is calculated by dividing
income allocated to Common and Convertible CRA Shareholders ( Shareholders ) (See Note 9) by the weighted average number of Common and
Convertible CRA Shares outstanding during the period. The Convertible CRA shareholders are included in the calculation of shares outstanding
as they share the same economic benefits as Common shareholders, including receipt of the same dividends per share as common shareholders.
Diluted income per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period plus the additional dilutive
effect of common share equivalents. The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is calculated using the treasury stock method. The dilutive
effect of the SCUs is calculated using the if-converted method . The SCUs will always be antidilutive, because while the shares are convertible
on a one-to-one basis, the dividends paid will always be greater than the dividends paid per common share.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Income Shares* Per Share
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Numerator Denominator Amount
Net income allocable to shareholders (Basic EPS) $ 61,248 46,653,270 $ 1.31
Effect of Dilutive securities 1,119,914 stock options 81,962
Diluted net income allocable to shareholders (Diluted
EPS) $ 61,248 46,735,232 $ 1.31

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Income Shares* Per Share
Numerator Denominator Amount

Net income allocable to shareholders (Basic EPS) $ 55,905 42,697,195 $ 1.31
Effect of Dilutive securities 263,509 stock options 70,944
Diluted net income allocable to shareholders (Diluted
EPS) $ 55,905 42,768,139 $ 1.31

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
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Income Shares* Per Share
Numerator Denominator Amount
Net income allocable to shareholders (Basic EPS) $ 35,010 30,782,161 $ 1.14
Effect of Dilutive securities 228,262 stock options 55,179
Diluted net income allocable to shareholders (Diluted
EPS) $ 35,010 30,837,340 $ 1.14

NOTE 14 Capital Stock and Share Option Plan

We have adopted an incentive share option plan (the Incentive Share Option Plan ), the purpose of which is to (i) attract and retain qualified
persons as trustees and officers and (ii) to provide incentive and more closely align the financial interests of Related and its employees and
officers with the interests of the shareholders by providing Related and its employees with substantial financial interest in our success. The
Compensation Committee of our board of trustees administers the Incentive Share Option Plan. Pursuant to the Incentive Share Option Plan, the
maximum number of common shares that may be awarded is the lesser of (i) 10% of the number of shares outstanding as of December 31
preceding issuances of such awards and (ii) the limited prescribed by the American Stock Exchange or any other national security exchange or
national quotation system on which the shares may then be listed.
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All options granted by the Compensation Committee have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of the common shares
on the date of the grant. The maximum option term is ten years from the date of grant. All common share options granted pursuant to the
Incentive Share Option Plan may vest immediately upon issuance or in accordance with the determination of the Compensation Committee.

We have adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation for its share options issued to non-employees.
Accordingly, compensation cost is accrued based on the estimated fair value of the options issued. The accrued compensation cost is being
amortized over the vesting period. Because vesting of the options is contingent upon the recipient continuing to provide services to us until the
vesting date. We estimate the fair value of the non-employee options at each period-end up to the vesting date, and adjust the expense
accordingly. The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

On May 1, 2000, options to purchase 297,830 common shares were granted to our officers and certain employees of an affiliate of Related, none
of who are our employees. The exercise price of these options is $11.5625 per share. The term of each option is ten years. The options vest in
equal installments on May 1, 2001, 2002 and 2003. The options granted on May 1, 2000 had an estimated fair value at December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 of $886,542, $681,038 and $445,752, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the fair value, was calculated using the
Black-Scholes model, used the following assumptions: dividend yield of 6.8%, estimated volatility of 20%, swap rate of 3.83% and expected
lives of 7.1 years. On May 1, 2001, one-third, or 99,276, of the options vested, of which 69,568 were exercised. On May 1, 2002 an additional
99,276 options vested, of which 4,753 were exercised. On May 1, 2003 the remaining one-third of the options vested, leaving a balance of
79,914 fully vested and not exercised. We recorded compensation cost of $228,447, $379,206 and $168,936 during the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, relating to these option grants.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2002, we issued 40,000 options at a strike price of $17.56. These options vest equally, in thirds, in
September 2003, 2004 and 2005 and expire in 10 years. These options were antidilutive for the year ended December 31, 2003, so were not
taken into account in the calculation of diluted shares. At December 31, 2003, these options had a fair value of $62,500 based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model, using the following assumptions: dividend yield of 6.7%, estimated volatility of 20%, swap rate of 4.175% and
expected lives of 8.7 years. We recorded compensation cost of $35,705 and $3,222 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, relating to
these options, respectively.

As part of the Related acquisition, we issued 1,000,000 options to Stephen M. Ross, at a strike price of $17.78, which vest over five years and
expire in 10 years. At December 31, 2003, these options had a fair value of $3,460,000.

Also, in conjunction with the Related acquisition, we issued 778,420 restricted common shares to various individuals who are either employees
of Related or TRCLP. A small portion of these shares, 52,863, vested immediately. The balance of 725,557 vest over periods ranging from
three months to four years.

We have recorded deferred compensation of approximately $19.4 million equal to the number of shares for the share awards at $19.33, not yet
vested, included in the equity section of our consolidated balance sheet. The deferred compensation is being amortized as compensation expense
on a straight line basis over the respective vesting periods. Distributions paid related to these non-vested shares are being recorded directly to
equity. We recorded compensation expense of $1,021,842 related to the 52,863 which vested immediately.

The following table shows the number of options outstanding granted, exercised and exercisable and the exercise price of those options.

Equity Investments 161



Options outstanding at
beginning of year

Options granted during the
year

Options exercised during the
year

Options outstanding at end
of year

Options exercisable at end
of year

Weighted-average fair value
of options granted during
the year

Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

2003
Options
263,509 §
1,000,000 $
143,595 $
1,119,914
93,247 $
$

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

11.5625

17.78

11.5625

263,509

11.5625

3,460,000

Year Ended December 31,

2002
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options Price

228262 $ 11.5625

40,000 $ 17.56

4753 $ 11.5625

$ 11.5625 228,262

124231  § 11.5625

$ 33,600

75

$

2001
Options

297,830 $

$

69,568 $
11.5625

29,708 $

$

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

11.5625

11.5625

11.5625
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted-Average Weighted Number Weighted
Exercise Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable at Average
Prices at 12/31/03 Contractual Life Exercise Price 12/31/03 Exercise Price
$ 11.5625 79,914 7.4 $ 11.5625 79,914 $ 11.5625
$ 17.56 40,000 9.7 $ 17.5600 13,333 $ 17.5600
$ 17.78 1,000,000 9.9 $ 17.7800 $ 17.7800

Through November 17, 2003, two of our independent trustees are entitled to receive annual compensation for serving as trustees in the aggregate
amount of $17,500 payable in cash (maximum of $7,500 per year) and/or common shares valued at their fair market value on the date of
issuance. The third independent trustee is entitled to receive annual compensation in the aggregate amount of $30,000 payable in cash
(maximum of $20,000 per year) and/or common shares. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 1,728 and 1,830 common shares, respectively,
having an aggregate value on the date of issuance of $30,000 each year, were issued to the independent trustees as compensation for services
rendered during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. The independent trustees also received an aggregate of 5,535 shares, worth
$97,500 at the time of issuance, as payment for their work on the special committee analyzing the proposed acquisition of Related. After the
acquisition of Related, the five new independent trustees received $18,750 as compensation for their services rendered during the year ended
December 31, 2003. In 2004, all eight of the independent trustees will receive annual compensation of $30,000 payable in cash (maximum of
$15,000 per year) and/or common shares valued at their fair market value on the date of issuance.

Effective May 3, 2000, we implemented a dividend reinvestment and Common share purchase plan (the Plan ). Under the Plan, common
shareholders may elect to have their distributions from our Company automatically reinvested in additional common shares at a purchase price
equal to the average of the high and low market price from the previous day s trading. If a common shareholder participates in the Plan, such
shareholder may also purchase additional common shares through quarterly voluntary cash payments with a minimum contribution of $500.
There are no commissions for common shares purchased under the Plan. Participation in the Plan is voluntary and a common shareholder may
join or withdraw at any time. The opportunity for participation in the Plan began with the distributions paid in August 2000.

The Board of Trustees has authorized the implementation of a Common share repurchase plan, enabling us to repurchase, from time to time, up
to 1,500,000 of its common shares. The repurchases will be made in the open market and the timing is dependant on the availability of common
shares and other market conditions. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, we have acquired 22,632 and 8,400 of its common shares for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $378,000 and $103,000, respectively (including commissions and service charges). Repurchased
common shares are accounted for as treasury shares of beneficial interest.
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NOTE 15- Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Revenues:

Revenue bonds interest income
Fee income:

Mortgage banking fees

Fund management

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses:

Interest expense
Interest expense-distributions to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary

Recurring fees - securitizations
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on impairment of assets

Total expenses

Income before gain (loss) on repayment of

revenue bonds, gain on sale of loans and equity in

earnings of ARCap
Equity in earnings of ARCap
Gain on sale of loans

Gain (loss) on repayment of revenue bonds

Income before allocation to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary and minority interest

Income allocated to preferred stockholders of
subsidiary

Income allocated to SCUs
Income (loss) allocated to minority interest
Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Equity Investments

March 31

26,250

3,067

2,604

31,921

3,816

963
7,054
1,687

13,520

18,401

555

2,139

(412)

20,683

(4,724)

(28)

15,931

1,976

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
2003 Quarter Ended
June 30 September 30
26,925 $ 30,353
3,473 3,171
2,810 2,324
33,208 35,848
4,887 4,889
4,724
1,019 1,039
5,935 7,673
2,915 2,242
1,758
14,756 22,325
18,452 13,523
555 555
411 444
2,652 557
22,070 15,079
(4,725)

67 147
17,412 15,226
788 689

December 31

30,127
4,001
12,643

4,462
51,233

6,267

4,724
1,007
20,284
5,082

37,364

13,869

554

2,538

(846)

16,115

(4,038)

(132)

11,945

2,619
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Net income $ 17,907 18,200 15,915 14,564

Allocation of net income to:

Special distribution to Manager $ 1,411 1,459 1,583 879

Manager $ 2 1 2 1

Common shareholders $ 15,089 15,316 12,727 11,476

Convertible CRA shareholders 1,405 1,424 1,603 2,208

Total for shareholders $ 16,494 16,740 14,330 13,684

Net income per share

Basic $ 0.37 0.37 0.31 0.27

Diluted $ 0.37 0.37 0.31 0.27

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 45,013,292 45,090,477 46,331,385 50,121,357

Diluted 45,070,595 45,130,042 46,366,342 50,256,026
77
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Revenues:

Revenue bonds interest income
Fee income:

Mortgage banking fess

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses:

Interest expense
Recurring fees relating to the Private Label
Tender Option Program

General and Administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on impairment of assets

Total expenses

Income before gain (loss) on repayment of
revenue bonds, gain on sale of loans and equity
in earnings of ARCap

Equity in earnings of ARCap
Gain on sale of loans
Gain (loss) on repayment of revenue bonds

Income before allocation to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary and minority interest

Income allocated to preferred shareholders of
subsidiary

Income allocated to minority interest

Income before (provision) benefit for income
taxes

(Provision) benefit for income taxes
Net income

Allocation of net income to:
Special distribution to Manager
Manager

Common shareholders
Convertible CRA shareholders
Total shareholders

Equity Investments

March 31
22,920
3,509

2,374
28,803

3,991

727
6,365
2,240

13,323

15,480
547

3,287
3,757

23,071

(3,764)

(302)

19,005

(181)

18,824

1,088
18
16,866
852
17,718

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
2002 Quarter Ended
June 30 September 30
22,025 $ 22,819
3,403 2,644
2,632 2,621
28,060 28,084
3,793 3,850
751 811
6,052 5,041
1,760 2,024
532
12,356 12,258
15,704 15,826
563 555
3,119 1,465
222
19,608 17,846
(4,053) (4,724)
49 (124)
15,604 12,998
(1,457) 656
14,147 $ 13,654
1,240 $ 1,294
13 $ 12
12,350 $ 11,439
544 909
12,894 $ 12,348

December 31
24,917
4,125

2,424
31,466

4,189

892
7,048
2,867

388

15,384

16,082
554

2,812
94)

19,354

(4,725)

(119)

14,510
(302)
14,208
1,250
13
11,861

1,084
12,945
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Net income per share:
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Basic $ 0.45 $ 0.30 $ 0.28 0.29

Diluted $ 0.45 $ 0.30 $ 0.28 0.29

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 38,781,464 43,035,102 44,209,982 44,676,079

Diluted 38,845,985 43,107,175 44,282,733 44,752,197
78

Equity Investments 167



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

NOTE 16 - Commitments and Contingencies

PW Funding Inc.

Through PWF, we originate and service multi-family mortgage loans for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and FHA. PWF and its subsidiaries
mortgage lending business is subject to various governmental and quasi-governmental regulation. PWF and/or its subsidiaries, collectively, are
licensed or approved to service and/or originate and sell loans under Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae and FHA programs. FHA and
Ginnie Mae are agencies of the Federal government and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are federally-chartered investor-owned corporations.
These agencies require PWF and its subsidiaries to meet minimum net worth and capital requirements and to comply with other requirements.
Mortgage loans made under these programs are also required to meet the requirements of these programs. In addition, under Fannie Mae s DUS
program, PWF has the authority to originate loans without a prior review by Fannie Mae and is required to share in the losses on loans originated
under this program.

The DUS program is Fannie Mae s principal loan program. Under the Fannie Mae DUS Product Line, PWF originates, underwrites and services
mortgage loans on multi-family residential properties and sells the project loans directly to Fannie Mae. PWF assumes responsibility for a
portion of any loss that may result from borrower defaults, based on the Fannie Mae loss sharing formulas, Levels I, II or III. At December 31,
2003, all of PWF s loans consisted of Level I loans. For such loans, PWF is responsible for the first 5% of the unpaid principal balance and a
portion of any additional losses to a maximum of 20% of the original principal balance. Level II and Level III loans carry a higher loss sharing
percentage. Fannie Mae bears any remaining loss.

Under the terms of the Master Loss Sharing Agreement between Fannie Mae and PWF, PWF is responsible for funding 100% of mortgagor
delinquency (principal and interest) and servicing (taxes, insurance and foreclosure costs) advances until the amounts advanced exceed 5% of
the unpaid principal balance at the date of default. Thereafter, for Level I loans, we may request interim loss sharing adjustments which allow us
to fund 25% of such advances until final settlement under the Master Loss Sharing Agreement. No interim loss sharing adjustments are
available for Level II and Level III loans.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses for loans originated under the Fannie Mae DUS product line at a level that, in management s judgment,
is adequate to provide for estimated losses. At December 31, 2003, that reserve was approximately $6.7 million, which we believe represents its
maximum liability at this time. Unlike loans originated for Fannie Mae, PWF does not share the risk of loss for loans it originates for Freddie
Mac or FHA.

In connection with the PWF warehouse line, both CharterMac and CM Corp. have entered into guarantees for the benefit of Fleet National Bank
( Fleet ), guaranteeing the total advances drawn under the line, up to the maximum of $100 million, together with interest, fees, costs, and charges
related to the PWF warehouse line.

PWF maintains, as of December 31, 2003, treasury notes of approximately $4.7 million and a money market account of approximately $1.3
million, which is included in cash and cash equivalents-restricted in the consolidated balance sheet, to satisfy the Fannie Mae collateral
requirements of $6.0 million.

Equity Investments 168



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

Due to the nature of PWF s mortgage banking activities, PWF is subject to supervision by certain regulatory agencies. Among other things, these
agencies require PWF to meet certain minimum net worth requirements, as defined. PWF met these requirements for all agencies, as applicable,
as of December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, PWF had commitments of approximately $49.8 million to five borrowers.

Credit Enhancement Transaction

In December 2001, CM Corp. completed a credit enhancement transaction with Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. ( MLCS ), as described
previously. Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, CM Corp. assumes MLCS s $46.9 million first loss position on a $351.9
million pool of tax-exempt weekly variable rate multi-family mortgage loans. The Related Companies, L.P. has
provided CM Corp. with an indemnity covering 50% of any losses that are incurred by CM Corp. as part of this
transaction. As the loans mature or prepay, the first loss exposure and the fees paid to CM Corp. will both be
reduced. The latest maturity date on any loan in the portfolio occurs in 2009. The remainder of the real estate
exposure after the $46.9 million first loss position has been assumed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. In connection
with the transaction, CharterMac has guaranteed the obligations of CM Corp., and as security therefore, have posted
collateral, initially in an amount equal to 50% of the first loss amount, which may be reduced to 40% if certain post
closing conditions are met. Our maximum exposure under the terms of this transaction is approximately $23.5
million. During 2003, two of the tax-exempt weekly variable rate multi-family mortgage loans were repaid in the
amount of $8.9 million. These repayments reduced the first loss position to $38 million and the pool of multi-family
mortgage loans to $288.6 million. This reduced our maximum exposure under the terms of the transaction to
approximately $19 million.

CM Corp. performed due diligence on each property in the pool, including an examination of loan-to-value and debt service coverage both on a
current and stressed basis. CM Corp. analyzed the portfolio on a stressed basis by increasing capitalization rates and
assuming an increase in the low floater bond rate. As of December 31, 2003, the credit enhanced pool of properties
are performing according to their contractual obligations
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and we do not anticipate any losses to be incurred on its guaranty. Should our analysis of risk of loss change in the future, a provision for
probable loss might be required; such provision could be material.

Fees related to the credit enhancement transaction for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, included in other income, was
approximately $1,131,000 and $1,251,000, respectively. Income is recognized monthly as the fees are received.

Yield Guarantee Transaction

On October 31, 2003, we entered into two agreements with Merrill Lynch (the Primary Guarantor ) to guarantee an agreed upon rate of return for
a pool of seven multi-family properties owned by RCGCP 11, an investment fund sponsored by Related prior to our acquisition of Related.

The transaction was structured as two separate guarantees, one primarily guaranteeing the return through the lease-up phase of the properties and
the other guaranteeing the return through the operating phase of the properties. The fee for the first guarantee, in the amount of approximately
$2.0 million, was paid in October 2003 at closing. The fee for the second guarantee will be paid in two installments. The first installment, in the
amount of approximately $1.0 million, will be paid in October 2004, and the final installment, in the amount of approximately $341,000, will be
paid in April 2005. These fees will be recognized in income on a straight line basis over the period of the respective guarantees.

In connection with the transaction, we posted $3.9 million in bonds for approximately ten years and $4.8 million in bonds until the earlier of
lease-up to 90% occupancy or LIHTC Certification. The release of the $4.8 million in collateral can occur in two steps with 50% being released
when at least 50% of the assets in the fund have reached the occupancy or certification hurdle and with the remaining 50% being released when
all of the properties have met the hurdle.

In addition, we agreed to subordinate approximately 50% of the approximately $112.3 million in bonds it acquired that are secured by the
properties in this fund. The Class A Certificates, which total approximately $56.15 million in par value, have been securitized through the
P-Floats/RITES program. The Class B Certificates, which total approximately $56.15 million in par value, are currently being held at
CharterMac as excess collateral to support our obligations to the Primary Guarantor.

On September 24, 2003, we entered into two agreements with Primary Guarantor to guarantee an agreed-upon rate of return for a pool of 14

multi-family properties each owned by a local partnership which in turn, is majority-owned by RCGCP  Series B, an
investment fund sponsored by Related prior to our acquisition of Related for which we will receive two guarantee fees
totaling approximately $5.9 million.

The transaction was structured as two separate guarantees, one primarily guaranteeing the return through the lease-up phase of the properties and
the other guaranteeing the return through the operating phase of the properties. The fee for the first guarantee, in the amount of approximately
$3.6 million, was paid in September 2003 at closing. The fee for the second guarantee will be paid in two installments. The first installment, in
the amount of approximately $1.7 million, will be paid in July 2004, and the final installment, in the amount of approximately $562,000, will be
paid in January 2005. These fees will be recognized in income on a straight line basis over the period of the respective guarantees.
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Of the 14 local partnerships, 13 financed their properties with the proceeds of revenue bonds acquired by an affiliate of CharterMac. In
connection with the transaction, the Primary Guarantor required that those revenue bonds be deposited into a trust pursuant to which the revenue
bonds were divided into senior and subordinated interests with 50% of each revenue bond being subordinated. We have financed the senior trust
interest as part of the Merrill Lynch P-FloatsSM/RitesSM program. The subordinate trust interests are being used as collateral in other of our
financing programs.

In connection with the transaction, we posted $14.5 million of revenue bonds as collateral to the Primary Guarantor in the form of either cash or
Revenue bonds.

On July 18, 2002, we entered into two agreements with Primary Guarantor to guarantee an agreed-upon rate of return for a pool of 11
multi-family properties owned by RCGCP, an investment fund sponsored by Related prior to our acquisition of Related.

In connection with the transaction, we posted $18.2 million of revenue bonds as collateral to the Primary Guarantor, which will be reduced to
$1.4 million over a period of up to 20 years as the properties reach certain operating benchmarks. In addition, we agreed to subordinate 25% of
each of the bonds it acquired that are secured by the properties and to not use the subordinated portion of such bonds as collateral in connection
with any borrowings.

The total potential liability to us pursuant to these guarantees is approximately $228 million. We have analyzed the expected operations of the
Underlying Properties and believe there is no risk of loss at this time. Should our analysis of risk of loss change in the future, a provision for
probable losses might be required; such provision could be material.
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Other

During December 2002, we entered into three transactions related to three properties, Coventry Place, Canyon Springs and Arbor Ridge.
Pursuant to the terms of these deals, we will provide credit support to the construction lender for project completion and Fannie Mae conversion
and acquire subordinated bonds to the extent the construction period bonds do not fully convert.

Up until the point of completion, we will guaranty the construction lender reimbursement of any draw on its construction letter of credit up to
40% of the stated amount of the Letter of Credit. Following completion, up until the project loan converts to permanent loan status, we will
guarantee the full amount of the letter of credit.

The developer has also issued several guarantees to the construction lender, each of which would be called upon before our guarantees, and each
of which would be assigned to us should its guarantees are called.

Once the construction loans convert to permanent loans, we are obligated to acquire subordinated loans for the amount by which each
construction loan exceeds the corresponding permanent loan, if any. The subordinated bonds will bear interest at 10%. Under FNMA
guidelines, the size of the subordinated bonds will be limited to a 1.0x debt service coverage based on 75% of the cash flow after the senior debt.

Our maximum exposure, related to these three transactions, is 40% of the stated amount of the Letter of Credit of approximately $27 million.

We have entered into six transactions to purchase revenue bonds pursuant to agreements which require us, at the earlier of stabilization or
conversion to permanent financing to acquire Series A and Series B revenue bonds at a predetermined price and interest rates. We are obligated
to purchase the revenue bonds only if construction is completed. We are obligated to buy the Series B revenue bonds only if, at the date the
Series A bonds are stabilized, the property s cash flow is sufficient to provide debt service coverage of 1.15x for both the Series A and B bonds.
An unrelated third party lender will advance funds to the developer, as needed during the construction period, at a floating rate. These forward
commitments create derivative instruments under SFAS No. 133, which have been designated as a cash flow hedge of the anticipated funding of
the revenue bonds, and are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income until the
revenue bonds are funded. The total potential amount we could possibly be required to fund is $84.4 million.

We are subject to routine litigation and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not believe that
such matters will have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In connection with the PWF warehouse line, both the CharterMac and CM Corp. have entered into guarantees for the benefit of Fleet,
guaranteeing the total advances drawn under the line, up to the maximum of $100 million, together with interest, fees, costs, and charges related
to the PWF warehouse line.
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PWF maintains, as of December 31, 2003, treasury notes of approximately $4.7 million and a money market account of approximately $1.3
million, which is included in restricted cash and securities in the consolidated balance sheet, to satisfy the Fannie Mae collateral requirements of
$6.0 million.

Due to the nature of our mortgage banking activities, we are subject to supervision by certain regulatory agencies. Among other things, these
agencies require us to meet certain minimum net worth requirements, as defined. We met these requirements for all agencies, as applicable, as
of December 31, 2003.

NOTE 17 - Acquisition of PW Funding, Inc.

On December 31, 2001, CM Corp. acquired 80% of the outstanding capital stock of PWF, for approximately $34.9 million, of which,
approximately $21.6 million was financed and $7.6 million was paid in cash. Additionally, we repaid a $5.7 million loan on behalf of PWF. It
is anticipated that CM Corp. will acquire the remaining 13% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of PWF over the next 12 months. Under
the agreement, the stockholders of PWF were granted the right to put their remaining 20% stock interest to CM Corp. after an initial period of 24
to 36 months. The agreement also grants CM Corp. the right to call the remaining 20% stock interest of PWF from PWF s stockholders after the
same initial period of 24 to 36 months.

CharterMac is entitled to a cumulative preferential distribution from PWF s cash available for distribution equal to 10% of its invested capital.
The remaining cash available for distribution will be distributed approximately 87% to CharterMac and 13% to the other stockholders.
CharterMac will also be entitled to an additional cumulative priority return equal to 4.3% of its invested capital prior to the purchase payments to
PWF s stockholders on exercise of the put or call options. The fee income generated by PWF will be taxable income. However, CM Corp.
incurs tax-deductible expenses which will be used to offset a portion of this taxable income.

The acquisition of PWF was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, with approximately $7.9 million of the purchase price
allocated to mortgage service rights, based on their estimated fair value.
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During 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, CM Corp. made additional payments to the original shareholders of PWF of approximately $3.6

million ( the True-Up payments ) pursuant to the original acquisition agreement. The True-Up payments were based on i) the increase in value of
servicing rights due to certain loans closing, ii) positive changes in the audited balance sheets used for the initial purchase price and the audited
balance sheet at December 31, 2001, iii) payments of certain servicing fees, and iv) forward conversions of loans previously committed. The
acquisition agreement stipulates additional true-up payments to be made periodically for a period of up to three years from the acquisition date.

As part of the PWF acquisition, the purchase agreement provided that CharterMac has the right to purchase the remaining 20% of PWF shares
within the 37 months following the close of the acquisition, (the Call Option ). The agreement also gives the owners of the remaining 20% of
PWF s shares the right to put those shares to CharterMac (the Put Option ), within the 34 months following the close of the acquisition. We
consider these two options to be a single unit (a forward contract), due to the fact the Put Option and Call Option were entered into at the same
time, have the same counter parties, have the same risk, and could have been accomplished in a single transaction. The price at which the shares
of stock are to be repurchased is based on many factors, determined in the future including the performance of the underlying revenues of PWF,
the value of PWF s servicing portfolio and other factors which are not currently determinable. We determined the forward contract should not be
recorded until the contract is settled and the associated shares transferred to our Company. During the period of the forward contract, we will
allocate subsidiary income or loss to the minority interest on a pro-rata basis, determined by its ownership percentage.

NOTE 18 - Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Our revenue bonds generally bear fixed rates of interest, but the P-FLOATS and TOP financing programs incur interest expense at variable rates
re-set weekly, so we are exposed to interest rate risks. Various financial vehicles exist which allow our management to hedge against the impact
of interest rate fluctuations on our cash flows and earnings.

We currently manage a portion of our interest rate risk through the use of The Bond Market Association ( TBMA ) indexed interest rate swaps.
Under each interest rate swap agreement, for a specified period of time we are required to pay a fixed rate of interest on a specified notional
amount to the transaction counterparty and we receive a floating rate of interest equivalent to the TBMA index, which is the most widely used
tax-exempt floating rate index. As of December 31, 2003, we have entered into two such swaps with MLCS as counterparty: the first has a
notional amount of $50 million fixed at an annual rate of 3.98%, which expires in January 2006. The second has a notional amount of $100
million fixed at an annual rate of 3.64%, which expires in February 2004. We have also entered into two interest rate swaps with Fleet as the
counterparty. One has a notional amount of $100 million fixed at an annual rate of 2.56% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in December
2007. The other swap with Fleet has a notional amount of $50 million and fixed rates of 2.00%, 2.78%, and 3.27% for the twelve months
beginning January 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

The average BMA rates for 2003 and 2002, were 1.03% and 1.38%, respectively. Net swap payments received by us, if any, will be taxable
income to our Company and, accordingly, to shareholders. A possible risk of such swap agreements is the possible inability of the Counterparty
to meet the terms of the contracts with us; however, there is no current indication of such an inability.

We adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended and interpreted, on January 1, 2001. Accordingly, we have established a policy for risk management
and our objectives and strategies for the use of derivative instruments to potentially mitigate such risks. We evaluate our interest rate risk on an
ongoing basis to determine whether or not it would be advantageous to engage in any further hedging transactions. At inception, we designated
these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges on the variable interest payments on our floating rate securitizations. Two of the interest rate
swaps do not become effective until 2005. The two interest rate swaps that are currently in place are recorded at their respective fair market
value each accounting period, with changes in market value being recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent that the
hedges are effective in achieving offsetting cash flows. We assess, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis whether the swap
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agreements are perfectly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged financing. Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationship is recorded in earnings. There was no ineffectiveness in the hedging relationship during 2002 or 2003, and we expect that these
hedging relationships will be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flow throughout their terms. Net amounts payable or
receivable under the swap agreements are recorded as adjustments to interest expense.

At December 31, 2003, the first two interest rate swaps were recorded as a liability with a combined fair market value of approximately $2.4
million, included in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Interest paid or payable under
the terms of the swaps, of approximately $4.1 million, is included in interest expense. The two new interest rate swaps were recorded as an asset
with a fair market value of $1.7 million, included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

We estimate that approximately $3.3 million of the net derivative loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassed
into interest expense within the next twelve months.

During January 2002, we entered into an interest rate cap agreement with Fleet, with a cap of 8% on a notional amount of $30 million. Although
this transaction is designed to mitigate our exposure to rising interest rates, we have not designated this interest rate cap as a hedging derivative.
As of December 31, 2003, this interest rate cap was recorded as an asset with a fair market value of $34,004 included in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets. Because we have not designated this derivative as a hedge, the change in fair market value flows through the
consolidated statements of income, where it is included in interest income, in the amount of $27,050 for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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NOTE 19 Business Segments

We have three reportable business segments with include portfolio investing, mortgage banking, and fund management.

The portfolio investing segment consists primarily of subsidiaries holding investments in revenue bonds producing primarily tax-exempt interest
income and includes our credit enhancement activities.

The mortgage banking segment consists of subsidiaries which originate mortgages on behalf of third parties and receive mortgage origination
and mortgage servicing fees generated by those activities.

The fund management segment consists of subsidiaries that generate fee income from the asset management, underwriting, originating and other
services provided to the real estate equity investment programs Related sponsors, and the management and related services provided to us and a
publicly-traded real estate investment trust.

Segment results include all direct and contractual revenues and expenses of each segment and allocations of indirect expenses based on specific
methodologies. These reportable segments are strategic business units that primarily generate revenue streams that are distinctly different and
are generally managed separately.
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The following table provides more information regarding our Company s segments:

(Dollars in thousands)

Revenues:
Revenue bonds interest
income

Fee income:

Mortgage banking fees
Fund management
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses:

Interest expense

Interest
expense-distributions to
preferred shareholders of
subsidiary

Recurring fees -
securitizations

General and administrative
Depreciation and
amortization

Loss on impairment of
assets

Total expenses

Income before gain (loss)
on repayment of revenue
bonds, gain on sale of loans
and equity in earnings of
ARCap

Equity in earnings of
ARCap

Gain on sale of loans

Gain on repayment of
revenue bonds

Income (loss) before
allocation to preferred
shareholders of subsidiary
and minority interest

Equity Investments

Portfolio
Investing

113,655

7,120
120,775

18,794

9,448

4,028
11,746

3,370

1,759

49,145

71,630

2,219

1,951

75,800

December 31, 2003

Mortgage
Banking

13,712

3,978
17,690

799

16,635

6,426

23,860

(6,170)

5,532

(638)

Fund
Management

12,643
1,102
13,745

266

12,564

2,130

14,960

(1,215)

(1,215)

Total

$ 113,655 $
13,712
12,643

12,200
152,210

19,859

9,448

4,028
40,945

11,926

1,759

87,965

64,245

2,219

5,532

1,951

73,947

December 31, 2002 (1)

Portfolio
Investing

92,681

5,527
98,208

14,558

3,181
8,621

1,131

920

28,411

69,797

2,219

3,885

75,901

Mortgage
Banking (2)

Total

$ 92,681

13,681 13,681

4,524 10,051

18,205 116,413

1,265 15,823

3,181

15,885 24,506

7,760 8,891

920

24,910 53,321

(6,705) 63,092

2,219

10,683 10,683

3,885

3,978 79,879
177



Income allocated to
preferred shareholders of
subsidiary

Income allocated to SCUs

Income (loss) allocated to
minority interest

Income (loss) before
provision for income taxes

Benefit (Provision) for
income taxes

Net income (loss)

Total assets

Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

(9,449)

54

66,405

5,763

$ 72,168

$ 2,102,755

$

$

(638)

309

(329)

90,094

$

$

(4,038)

(5,253)

(5,253)

390,425

(9,449) (17,266) (17,266)
(4,038)
54 (496) (496)
60,514 58,139 3,978 62,117
6,072 213 (1,497) (1,284)

$ 66,586 $ 58352 § 2481 $ 60,833

$ 2583274 $ 1,729,194 $ 123,674 $ 1,852,868

(1) The Fund Management segment began with our acquisition of Related on November 17, 2003.

(2) The Mortgage Banking segment began January 1, 2002.

NOTE 20 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We adopted SFAS 141 on July 1, 2001 and SFAS 142, on January 1, 2002. We have determined that the amounts previously capitalized as
goodwill relating to our initial formation and to the merger of American Tax Exempt Bond Trust, meet the criteria in SFAS 141 for recognition
as intangible assets apart from goodwill, and accordingly will continue to be amortized over their remaining useful lives, subject to impairment

testing.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2002, PWF engaged a third party valuation firm to evaluate PWF s licenses with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac,
FHA, Ginnie Mae and various private investors. As a result of this process approximately $8.6 million has been reclassified from goodwill to
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intangible assets, representing the estimated market value of PWF s licenses. These licenses have an indefinite life and, as a result, are not being
amortized.

During 2002 and the nine months ended September 30, 2003, pursuant to the original acquisition agreement, we paid approximately $3.0 and $.7
million, respectively, in true-up payments representing payments due to the original PWF stockholders which was recorded as additional
goodwill during the fourth quarter of 2002 and the first nine months of 2003. These true-up payments were based on i) the increase in the value
of MSRs due to certain loans closing, ii) positive changes between PWF s audited balance sheet used for the initial purchase price and the
audited balance sheet at December 31, 2001, iii) payments of certain servicing fees, and iv) forward conversions of loans previously committed.
The acquisition agreement stipulates additional true-up payments to be made periodically for a period of up to three years from the acquisition
date.

In conjunction with our purchase of Related, we acquired additional intangible assets and goodwill. The value of the intangible assets was
verified via third party valuation. The excess of the total paid over the fair value of the assets and liabilities was classified as goodwill. (See
Note 2).

The following table provides further information regarding our intangible assets:

(Dollars in thousands)

Other Total
Identifiable Related Identifiable
Intangible PWF Intangible Intangible
Assets Licenses Assets Assets GoodWill
Balance at December
31, 2002 $ 4,427 $ 8,639 $ $ 13,066 $ 4,793
Accumulated
amortization (1,750) (1,750)
Net balance at
December 31, 2002 2,677 8,639 11,316 4,793
Additions (see Note 2) 185,300 185,300 209,951
Amortization expense 477) (1,936) (2,413)
Balance at December
31,2003 $ 2,200 $ 8,639 $ 183,364 $ 194,203 $ 214,744

Amortization expense

for the year ended

December 31, 2003 $ 477  $ $ 1,936  $ 2413 $
Estimated amortization

expense per year for

next five years $ 4771  $ $ 16,207  $ 16,684  $

The amortization is included as a reduction to revenue bond interest income.
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The amounts indicated as goodwill in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2003 are related to the
acquisition, on December 31, 2001 of PWF and on November 17, 2003 of Related. These amounts represent goodwill under SFAS 142, and
therefore, are not being amortized. In accordance with SFAS 142, we have concluded that no impairment exists at December 31, 2003. We
will perform the required annual impairment tests in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Note 21 Dividends and Restricted Assets

CharterMac may not receive any distributions from our consolidated subsidiary, Equity Issuer, until Equity Issuer has either paid all accrued but
unpaid distributions related to its preferred shares, or in the case of the next following distribution payment date, set aside funds sufficient for
payment. The distributions related to the preferred shares are payable only from Equity Issuer s quarterly net income, defined as the tax-exempt
income (net of expenses) for the particular calendar quarter. Equity Issuer is required, under the terms of its preferred share issuance, to meet
certain leverage ratios calculated as its total obligations divided by the gross fair value of investments. This could limit the ability of Equity
Issuer to distribute cash or revenue bonds to us or to make loans or advances to us.

Equity Issuer and its subsidiaries hold revenue bonds which at December 31, 2003, had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately $1.71
billion that serve as collateral for securitized borrowings or are securitized. The total securitized borrowings at December 31, 2003 were
approximately $517 million. Equity Issuer s net assets at December 31, 2003 were approximately $455 million.

CharterMac may not receive any distributions from CCC, until CCC has paid all distributions related to the SCUs. These distributions are
payable first from CCC and then to the extent CCC lacks sufficient cash flow to pay the distributions, from CharterMac, except for all but $5
million of these distributions. Any such remaining shortfall will earn interest at a market rate and will be payable from time to time as CCC has
sufficient cash flow. Dividends are payable to the holders of SCUs only if dividends are declared and paid to common shareholders.
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NOTE 22 Mortgage Servicing Rights

PWF recognizes as assets the rights to service mortgage loans for others, whether the MSRs are acquired through a separate purchase or through
loan origination, by allocating total costs incurred between the loan and the MSRs retained based on their relative fair value. MSRs are being
carried at their adjusted cost basis. MSRs are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income.

We have two areas of loss exposure related to its lending activities. First, while a loan is recorded on the balance sheet, there is exposure to
potential loss if a loan becomes impaired and defaults. Second, we have exposure to loss due to the retention of a portion of credit risk within
PWF s servicing contract under the Fannie Mae DUS program.

When a loan is owned by PWF and recorded on the balance sheet, PWF identifies loans that are impaired and evaluates the allowance for loss on
a specific loan basis for losses believed to currently exist in the recorded loan portfolio. An impaired loan is defined, as noted within accounting
guidance, when we determine it is probable that not all required contractual payments will be made when due. PWF s primary tool for
determining which loans are likely to currently have a loss associated with them is to evaluate the debt service coverage ratio based on PWF s
historical experience of similar properties and the frequency of such losses. Loans that are impaired and specific loans that are not impaired but
have debt service coverage ratios below a certain threshold, which indicates a high likelihood of future foreclosure and currently have an
existing loss, are evaluated. The estimate of currently existing loss includes the estimated severity of the loss which would include any advances
made or existing property loss. Property maintenance costs (when foreclosure occurs) are expensed when incurred and not included in the loss
estimate. However, as most loans are sold very quickly after origination, there typically is not a significant amount of loan loss allowance
recorded.
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We have exposure to loss due to our retention of a portion of credit risk within PWF s servicing contract under the Fannie Mae DUS program.

For loans which have been sold as commercial mortgage-backed securities for which PWF retains the servicing under Fannie Mae s DUS
program, PWF s share of loss is associated with the servicing contract and determined in accordance with the loss sharing provisions under the
program. Prior to the issuance of Interpretation No. 45, Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ( FIN 45 ), because the loss sharing on these serviced loans was associated with the servicing contract, they
were valued within the servicing right and the anticipated cash flows that are associated with such servicing activities. We have determined that
these potential losses are guarantees under the definition of FIN 45 and therefore, record an asset and a corresponding liability based on our
estimate of the portion of the servicing cash flows deemed to represent compensation for our guarantee for loans originated on/or after January
1,2003. On an ongoing basis, we will account for the asset by offsetting cash received for the guarantee against the asset and crediting interest
income for the change in asset due to the passage of time. The portion of the liability representing an accrual for probable losses under SFAS

No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( FAS 5 ) is adjusted as loss estimates change; the portion representing our willingness to stand by as
guarantor will be amortized over the expected life of the guarantee.
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NOTE 23 Subsequent Events

New Acquisitions

Subsequent to December 31, 2003, CharterMac has acquired eight revenue bonds with a total aggregate face amount of approximately $70.2
million, secured by 1,321 multi-family units.

Interest Rate Swap Transactions

On January 15, 2004, CharterMac entered into two interest rate swap agreements with Fleet as the counterparty. One has a notional amount of
$50 million fixed at an annual rate of 2.86% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in January 2008. The other swap has the same notional
amount of $50 million fixed at an annual rate 3.08% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in January 2009. On February 13, 3004,
CharterMac also entered into two interest rate swaps with RBC Capital Markets and Fleet as counterparties, respectively. Both have a notional
amount of $100 million. The one with RBC has a fixed annual rate of 3.075% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in January 2009. The
other swap with Fleet has a fixed annual rate of 3.265% beginning in January 2005 and expiring in January 2010.
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Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act )) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, such officers have concluded that, as of the end of such
period, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting during the fiscal quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Directors and Executive Officers of our Company

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) 1. Financial Statements

Independent Auditors Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31. 2003. 2002 and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31. 2003, 2002 and
2001

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31. 2003. 2002 and 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule I Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in
the financial statements and the notes thereto.

(b). Reports on Form 8-K

Current report on Form 8-K relating to our Company s press release announcing its intent to acquire Related
Company, dated and filed December 20, 2002.

(©). Exhibits

3.1(a) Certificate of Business Trust dated as of August 12, 1996 (incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement
on Form 10, File No. 001-13237)

3.1(b)  Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Business Trust (incorporated by reference to our
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed on November 24, 2003 File No. 001-13237)

3.1(c) Second Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the Commission on November 24, 2003)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with
the Commission on November 24, 2003)

4.1
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Specimen Copy of Share Certificate for shares of our beneficial interest (incorporated by reference to our
Company s Form S-8, filed with the Commission on November 24, 2003

4.2 Certificate of Designation of Special Preferred Voting Shares, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by
reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003)
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10(a) Management Agreement dated as of November 17, 2003, between us and Related Capital Company LLC Filed
herewith

10(b) Insurance Agreement among MBIA, CharterMac, Origination Trust, Owner Trust, CharterMac Floater Certificate
Trust ( Floater Certificate Trust ), First Tennessee Bank National Association ( First Tennessee ), Related Charter
LP, and Bayerische Landesbank Girozentrale, New York Branch ( Bayerische ) dated as of May 21, 1998
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaay) in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q)

10(c) Liquidity Agreement among Owner Trust, Floater Certificate Trust, First Tennessee, MBIA and Bayerische dated
as of May 21, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaaz) in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q)

10(d) Liquidity Pledge and Security Agreement among Origination Trust, Owner Trust, Floater Certificate Trust,
MBIA, First Tennessee and Bayerische dated as of May 21, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaaaa)
in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q)

10(e) Fee Agreement among Wilmington Trust Company, Floater Certificate Trust and CharterMac dated as of May 21,
1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaaab) in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q)

10(f) Certificate Placement Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaaac) in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q)

10(g) Remarketing Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (aaaad) in our June 30, 1998 Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q)
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10(h) Contribution Agreement dated as of December 17, 2002 (incorporated by reference to our Preliminary Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A filed on February 2, 2003)

10(1) Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of CharterMac Capital Company LLC, dated as of November 17,
2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10Gj) Special Preferred Voting Shares Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among the
Company and APH Associates L.P., DLK Associates L.P., Marc Associates, L.P., Related General II, L.P. and
SJB Associates L.P. (incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(k) Standstill Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among the Company and APH Associates L.P.,
DLK Associates L.P., Marc Associates, L.P., Related General II, L.P. and SJB Associates L.P. (incorporated by
reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003
Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(1) Voting Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among the Company and APH Associates L.P., DLK
Associates L.P., Marc Associates, L.P., Related General II, L.P. and SJB Associates L.P. (incorporated by
reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003
Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(m)  Exchange Rights Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among CharterMac Capital Company, LLC,
CharterMac Corporation, APH Associates L.P., DLK Associates L.P, Marc Associates, L.P., Related General II,
L.P. and SJB Associates L.P.(incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(n) Lock-up Agreement of Denise L. Kiley, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(o) Lock-up Agreement of Alan P. Hirmes, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(p) Lock-up Agreement of Marc D. Schnitzer, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(q) Lock-up Agreement of Stuart J. Boesky, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(r) Lock-up Agreement of Stephen M. Ross, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(s) Employment Agreement of Denise L. Kiley, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No.
001-13237)

10(t) Employment Agreement of Alan P. Hirmes, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No.
001-13237)

10(u) Employment Agreement of Mare D. Schnitzer, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No.
001-13237)
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10(v) Employment Agreement of Stuart J. Boesky, dated November 17, 2003 (incorporated by reference to our
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003 Commission File No.
001-13237)

10(w)  Future Relations Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among Stephen Ross, Related General 11
L.P., RCMP Management Inc., the Related Companies, L.P., and CharterMac Capital Company, LLLC
(incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commision on Decemebr
1, 2003. Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(x) Ross Non-Qualified Share Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to our Company s registration statement
on Form S-8, filed on November 24, 2003 (Commission File No. 001-13237)).

10(y) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among our Company and APH Associates
L>P>, DLK Associates L>P>, Mare Associates, L.P., Related General II, L.P. and SJB Associates L.P.
(incorporated by reference to our Company s registration statement on Form S-8, filed on November 24, 2003
(Commission File No. 001-13237)).

10(z) Shared Services Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and among The Related Companies, L.P.,
Related Management Company, and CharterMac Capital Company (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003, Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(aa)  Other Services Agreement, dated November 17, 2003, by and between Relcap Holding Company LLC and
CharterMac Capital Companay, LLC (incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003, Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(ab)  Trade Namae License Agreement and Acknowledgement, dated as of November 17, 2003, by and between The
Related Companies, L.P. and CharterMac Capital Company, LLC (incorporated by reference to our Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003, Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(ac)  CharterMac Guaranty, dated December 17, 2002 (incorporated by reference to our Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 1, 2003, Commission File No. 001-13237)

10(ad) The Company s Restricted Share Plan (previously filed with the Company s registration statement on Form S-8,
filed with the Commission on November 24, 2003 Commission File No. 001-13237).

10(ae)  The Company s Amended and Restated Incentive Share Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company s Form
S-8/A, filed with the Commission on March 2, 2004 Commission File No. 001-13237).

12 Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred share dividends of subsidiary

21 Subsidiaries of our Company (filed herewith

31.1 Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
312 Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

322 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule I Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in
the financial statements and the notes thereto.
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Lisa Gans, Attorney at Law Paul. Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP 75 East 55th Street, New York, NY 100221 direct
212 318-68721 main: 212 318-6000 direct fax: 212 230-78131 lisagans @paulhastings.com

The information transmitted is intended only for the person of entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or priviledged
material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CHARTERMAC
(COMPANY)
Date: March 15, 2004 By:
Date: March 15, 2004 By:
91

Stuart J. Boesky
Managing Trustee
and Chief Executive Officer

Stuart A. Rothstein
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Stuart J. Boesky, Alan P. Hirmes and Stuart A. Rothstein, and each
or either of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead,
in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report, and to cause the same to be filed, with all exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby granting to said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing whatsoever requisite or desirable to be done in and
about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all acts

and things that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or either of them, or their substitutes or substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by

virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf
of us and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature

Stuart J. Boesky

Stephen M. Ross

Alan P. Hirmes

Stuart A. Rothstein

Peter T. Allen

Arthur P. Fisch

Thomas M. White

Charles L. Edson

Mark D. Schnitzer
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Title

Managing Trustee and
Chief Executive Officer

Managing Trustee and
Chairman of the Board

Managing Trustee and
Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer and

Chief Accounting Officer

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee,
President

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

Date
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Managing Trustee,

Denise L. Kiley Chief Credit Officer March 15, 2004
Jeff T. Blau Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Robert A. Meister Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Jerome V. Halperin Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Janice Cook Roberts Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Nathan Gantcher Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Robert L. Lorerd Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CHARTERMAC
(COMPANY)
Date: March 15, 2004 By:
Date: March 15, 2004 By:
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/s/ Stuart J. Boesky

Stuart J. Boesky

Managing Trustee

and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Stuart A. Rothstein
Stuart A. Rothstein
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Stuart J. Boesky, Alan P. Hirmes and Stuart A. Rothstein, and each
or either of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead,
in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report, and to cause the same to be filed, with all exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby granting to said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing whatsoever requisite or desirable to be done in and
about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all acts

and things that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or either of them, or their substitutes or substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by

virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf
of us and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature

/s/ Stuart J. Boesky
Stuart J. Boesky

/s/ Stephen M. Ross
Stephen M. Ross

/s/ Alan P. Hirmes
Alan P. Hirmes

/s/ Stuart A. Rothstein
Stuart A. Rothstein

/s/ Peter T. Allen
Peter T. Allen

/s/ Arthur P. Fisch
Arthur P. Fisch

/s/ Thomas M. White
Thomas M. White

/s/ Charles L. Edson
Charles L. Edson

/s/ Mark D. Schnitzer
Mark D. Schnitzer
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Title

Managing Trustee and
Chief Executive Officer

Managing Trustee and
Chairman of the Board

Managing Trustee and
Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer and

Chief Accounting Officer

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee

Managing Trustee,
President

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

March 15, 2004

Date
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/s/ Denise L. Kiley
Denise L. Kiley

/s/ Jeff T. Blau
Jeff T. Blau

/s/ Robert A. Meister
Robert A. Meister

/s/ Jerome V. Halperin
Jerome V. Halperin

/s/ Janice Cook Roberts
Janice Cook Roberts

/s/ Nathan Gantcher
Nathan Gantcher

/s/ Robert L. Lorerd
Robert L. Lorerd
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Managing Trustee,

Chief Credit Officer March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
Managing Trustee March 15, 2004
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

ASSETS

Revenue bonds-at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents
net of amortization of $4,442 and $7,349
Due from subsidiaries

Deferred costs

Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

Total Assets

(Dollars in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Deferred income

Due to subsidiaries
Distributions payable

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholder s equity
Beneficial owners equity

Equity Investments

convertible CRA shareholders (8,179,761 and
3,835,002 shares issued and outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively)

Beneficial owners equity manager

Summarized condensed financial information of registrant (not including its consolidated subsidiaries)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2003

93,293
16,763
10,017
101,265
538,719
28,347

788,404

1,987
1,819

18,851

22,657

160,618

161

2002

166,477
4,374
34,683

494,352
36,816

736,702

4,526
2,639
41,304
14,296

62,765

58,174
1,126
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Beneficial owners equity special preferred voting shares (16,164,905 shares
authorized and issued as par $.01)

Beneficial owners equity other common shareholders (100,000,000 shares
authorized; 42,726,232 issued and 42,703,600 outstanding and 41,168,618

issued and 41,160,218 outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively) 622,771 604,496

Deferred compensation (19,385)

Treasury shares of beneficial interest (22,632 and 8,400 shares in 2003 and

2002, respectively) (378) (103)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 1,960 10,244

Total shareholders equity 765,747 673,937

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 788,404 736,702
See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CHARTERMAC
SCHEDULE I
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in thousands)

Revenues:

Revenue bonds interest income $ 8,309 $ 4,701 $ 1
Other income 4,191 1,219 1,640
Total revenues 12,500 5,920 1,641
Expenses:

Interest expense 3 412
General and administrative 7,146 4,574 2,673
Amortization 1,140 876 727
Total expenses 8,286 5,453 3,812

Income (loss) before loss on repayment of revenue bonds,
sale of loans, income from sub-sidiaries in earnings of

ARCap 4,214 467 (2,171)
Income from subsidiaries 60,604 59,637 40,920
Equity in earnings of ARCap 2,219 1,116 456
Loss on repayment of revenue bonds (451) (387) (220)
Net income $ 66,586 $ 60,833 $ 38,985

Allocation of net income to:

Special distribution to Manager $ 5,332 $ 4,872 $ 3,621
Manager $ 6 $ 56 $ 354
Common shareholders $ 54,608 $ 52,516 $ 32,555
Convertible CRA shareholders 6,640 3,389 2,455
Total for shareholders $ 61,248 $ 55,905 $ 35,010

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Equity Investments 199



Edgar Filing: CHARTERMAC - Form 10-K

CHARTERMAC
SCHEDULE I

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income 66,586 60,833 38,985
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Loss on repayment of revenue bonds 451 387 220
Other Amortization 1,235 3,493 727
Amortization of bond selection costs 1,094 1,781 2,511
Amortization of intangible assets 345 345 182
Income from investment in subsidiaries (60,604) (59,637) (40,920)
Equity in earnings of ARCap, in excess of distributions
received (105) (456)
Deferred Compensation (19,385)
Contribution of revenue bonds to subsidiaries 69,266
Contribution of deferred costs to subsidiaries 25,112
Interest receivable (192) (976) 101
Other assets 2,278 (2,500) (181)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (2,509) 1,450 1,124
Deferred Income (820) 22
Due to / from subsidiaries (59,961) 30,229 4,308
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,896 35,322 6,601
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repayment of revenue bonds 17,090 200
Periodic principal payments of revenue bonds 916 353 85
Purchase of revenue bonds (12,708) (16,101) (7,075)
Decrease in bond selection costs (390) (10,702) (7,899)
Investment in subsidiaries (67,501) (82,009) (82,763)
Purchase of temporary investments (18,493)
Decrease in promissory notes (3,629) (4,547)
Loans made to properties (861) (11,971)
Principal payments received from loans made to properties 784 99
Net cash used in investing activities (66,222) (112,883) (128,017)
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Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Distributions paid to the Manager and Common
shareholders (60,050) (53,741) (33,456)
Distributions paid to Convertible CRA shareholders (5,071) (2,700) (2,334)
Repayment of note payable 6,226
Label Tender Option Program (2,456) 921) (873)
Issuance of common shares 21,252 92,353 168,264
Issuance of convertible preferred shares of subsidiary 102,532 32,523
Increase in treasury stock (275) (8,987)
Issuance of special preferred voting shares 161
Increase in other deferred costs (378) (2,955)
Net cash provided by financing activities 55,715 64,559 128,840
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,389 (13,002) 7,424
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4,374 17,376 9,952
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 16,763 4,374 17,376
Supplemental information
Interest paid 3 412
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Contribution of revenue bonds to subsidiaries 69,266 8,345
Contribution of notes receivable to subsidiaries 12,498
Distribution of revenue bonds from subsidiaries 128,693
Distribution of notes receivable from subsidiaries 4,503

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CHARTERMAC
SCHEDULE I
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation

Basis of Financial Information

The accompanying condensed financial statements (the Parent Company Financial Statements ) are for CharterMac (not including its
consolidated subsidiaries).

The Parent Company Financial Statements, including the notes thereto, should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements
and the notes thereto which are included in this Form 10-K.

2. Cash Dividends received from subsidiaries

The table below reflects the cash dividends received for each of the last three fiscal years from consolidated subsidiaries and 50% or less owned
persons accounted for under the equity method.

(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Consolidated subsidiaries
PWF $ 1,942 $ 400 $

Equity method ARCap $ 2219 $ 2219 $ 456
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